
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Meeting 

 
June 5, 2017 

 

1



 
 

June 2, 2017 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet at 5:30 p.m., 
Monday, June 5, 2017, in Room 201 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.  

 
BOARD WORKSHOP 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 
 

II. Roll Call of Board Members 
 
III. Update on 85th Legislative Session  
 
IV. Review of Board of Trustees Bylaws 
 

V. Discuss Board Oath of Office and Officers Election Process   
 
VI. Discuss Naming Opportunities for the Center for Petrochemical, Energy, and 

Technology  
 

VII. Review of Calendar  
 

VIII. General Discussion of Meeting Items 
 

IX. Adjournment of Workshop and Proceed to Dinner  
 

Additional Closed Session Authority 
If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should 
determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held 
or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or 
executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas 
Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, 
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the 
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all 
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney 
on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law. 
 
Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property. 
 
Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a 
prospective gift or donation. 

2



 
Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for 
implementation, of security personnel or devices.  
 
Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a hearing 
during examination of another witness. 
 
Section 551.087– To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial 
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board seeks 
or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the College and 
with which the Board is conducting economic development negotiations or to 
deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect.  
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the 
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or 
session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either: 
 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public 

meeting, or 
 

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board 
shall determine. 

 
Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice 

 
On this day, June 2, 2017, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place 
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto 
Community College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s 
website, and is readily accessible to the public upon request.  

 
_____________________________________________ 
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 

3



June 2, 2017 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet at 7:00 p.m. 
on Monday, June 5, 2017, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas. 

 
BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call the Meeting to Order 
 

II. Roll Call of Board Members  
 

III. Invocation and Pledge to the Flags  
 
IV. Special Announcements, Recognitions, Introductions, and Presentations 

 
Albemarle Check Presentation      Ruth Keenan  
 
Athletics Recognition – Baseball and Softball Teams  Brenda Jones  
         Brenda Hellyer 
 
Recognition from State Representative Greg Bonnen for  Brenda Hellyer 
Being an Aspen Prize Rising Star Recipient   
 

V. Student Success Presentations 
 
Update on Transfer Students’ GPAs at     George González 
University of Houston Institutions    
        

VI. Communications to the Board of Trustees  
 

VII. Hearing of Such Citizens or Groups of Citizens Desiring to be Heard Before the 
Board 
 
In accordance with the San Jacinto Community College District Board of Trustees 
Bylaws, Item III, Article II, Sections 12 & 13, located on the College’s website, a 
citizen desiring to appear before the Board of Trustees shall complete the Application 
for Hearing before the Board of Trustees and file said application along with any 
supporting information concerning the citizen's concern, complaint or commendation, 
with the secretary to the Chancellor, ten (10) minutes before the scheduled meeting is 
called to order. The time allotted each citizen or organization for presentation shall 
be no more than five (5) minutes. The total time for hearing of citizens shall be no 
more than 60 minutes at any one meeting. Presentation of matters concerning a 
complaint or charge against a San Jacinto College Community District employee or 
officer will be heard in closed session unless the individual who is the subject of the 
change or complaint requests a public hearing. 

 
VIII. Informative Reports to the Board 

A. San Jacinto College Financial Statement   4



B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statement 
1. March 2017 
2. April 2017 
3.   Financial Audit – June 30, 2016 

C. Capital Improvement Program  
D. San Jacinto College Building Committee Minutes  
E. San Jacinto College Finance Committee Minutes 
 

IX. Special Recognition  
 
Recognition of Trustee Brad Hance      Dan Mims 
 

ACTION ITEMS  
 

X. Oath of Office Administered to Recently Elected Trustees 
 

XI. Consideration of Approval of Election of Officers for the Board of Trustees  
 
XII. Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget for 

Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants 
 

XIII. Consideration of Approval of the Board of Trustees Bylaws  
 

XIV. Consideration of Policy III.3000.A, Campus Carry – Second Reading  
 
XV. Consideration of Approval of Galena Park Career and Technical Early College 

High School Memorandum of Understanding 
 

XVI. Consideration of Approval of College Readiness Mathematics Courses 
Memorandum of Understanding with University of Texas Dana Center 

 
XVII. Consideration of Approval of the Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto 

Community College District and Lamar University 
 
PURCHASING REQUESTS 

 
XVIII. Consideration of Purchasing Requests  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
XIX. Consent Agenda 

(Any item placed on the consent agenda shall be removed and taken up as a separate 
matter, if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will be voted 
on with one (1) motion.) 
A. Approval of the Minutes for the May 1, 2017 Board Workshop and Regular 

Board Meeting  
B. Approval of the Minutes for the April 10, 2017 Board Strategic Planning 

Retreat  
C. Approval of the Minutes for the May 17, 2017 Special Board Meeting 
D. Approval of the Budget Transfers 
E. Approval of Personnel Recommendations  
F. Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
G. Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting  

 5



XX. Items for Discussion/Possible Action  
(Items removed from the Consent Agenda or items discussed in closed session, will 
be considered at this time) 

 
XXI. Adjournment 

 
 Closed Session Authority 

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should 
determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held 
or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or 
executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas 
Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, 
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the 
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all 
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
Section 551.071 – For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney 
on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law. 
 
Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property. 
 
Section 551.073 – For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a 
prospective gift or donation. 
 
Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.076 – To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for 
implementation, of security personnel or devices.  
 
Section 551.084 – For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a hearing 
during examination of another witness. 
 
Section 551.087– To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial 
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board seeks 
or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the College and 
with which the Board is conducting economic development negotiations or to 
deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect.  
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the 
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or 
session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either: 
 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public 

meeting, or 
 

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board 
shall determine. 

 
 
 
 

6



 
Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice 
On this day, June 2, 2017, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place 
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto Community 
College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s website, and is 
readily accessible to the public upon request.  
 
 
____________________________________________  
Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 

7



1 8



San Jacinto Community College District 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position 

For the Eight Months Ended April 30, 2017 

Consolidated -All Funds 

(Not Including Capital Improvement Program) 

% Actual to 

Actual Adjusted 

Adjusted Budget (66.67%) Budget 

REVENUES: 

State Appropriations $ 46,488,413 $ 29,393,268 63.23 
Local Taxes - Maintenance & Operations 64,696,546 62,599,476 96.76 
Local Taxes - Debt Service 27,502,805 26,273,192 95.53 
Credit Tuition 45,355,983 43,456,912 95.81 
Credit Fees 15,571,302 14,638,682 94.01 
Credit Exemptions & Waivers (4,129,096) (4,503,207) 109.06 
Bad Debt (2,350,779) ( 1,567, 186) 66.67 
Continuing Professional Development 5,573,314 3,602,753 64.64 
Sales & Services 1,717,933 1,385,506 80.65 
Investment Income 105,979 802,329 757.06 
Auxiliary Services 3,373,075 2,578,653 76.45 
Grants 62,926,096 43,080,857 68.46 
Local Grants 2,163,822 1,678,091 77.55 

Total 268,995,393 223,419,326 83.06 

EXPENDITURES: 

Instruction 73,498,223 53,223,765 72.42 
Public Service 5,272,628 3,567,924 67.67 
Academic Support 25,709,999 11,742,009 45.67 
Student Services 16,375,749 9,837,842 60.08 
Institutional Support 74,513,032 40,409,663 54.23 
Physical Plant 18,004,405 10,142,566 56.33 
Scholarships and Fellowships 51,129,628 42,043,962 82.23 
Auxiliary Enterprises 4,490,639 3, 131,838 69.74 
Depreciation 20,351,251 12,032,282 59.12 
Capital Purchases (454,974) 

Total 289,345,554 185,676,877 64.17 

TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS: 

Transfers In (4,077,059) (2,203,093) 
Transfers Out 4,077,059 2,203,093 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ (20,350, 161) $ 37,742,449 

% of 

8/31/16 

4/30/16 Actual 

$ 28,398,925 62.62 

59,864,054 98.02 

21,979,933 97.56 

39,518,337 95.92 

12,639,644 93.65 

(3,614,288) 92.24 

(541,336) 65.98 

5,033,400 69.25 

1,821,185 75.02 

227,975 41.21 

2,717,631 80.13 

42,179,951 86.66 

1,493,281 62.50 

211,718,692 86.91 

50,393,980 72.74 

4,138,794 60.41 

I 0,386,371 64.78 

9,229,181 64.14 

36,350,547 62.93 

11,067,635 62.36 

42,133,175 89.10 
3,360,810 75.00 

10,643,889 66.87 

(539,680) 36.93 

177,164,702 71.35 

(3,035,627) 

3,035,627 

$ 34,553,990 

2 9



3 10



4 11



5 12



6 13



7 14



8 15



9 16



10 17



11 18



12 19



13 20



14 21



15 22



16 23



17 24



18 25



19 26



20 27



21 28



22 29



23 30



24 31



 

 

 

 

Foundation Financials  

March 2017 

32



ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

General Fund $1,286,020

Other Funds ‐                      

Total Checking/Savings 1,286,020

Accounts Receivable

Pledge Receivables 413,800

Special Events Receivables 27,695

Total Accounts Receivable 441,495

Other Current Assets

Short Term Investments

Goldman Sachs 9,601,796

Capital Bank  CD 203,153

Prosperity Bank 201,986

Total SJC Short Term Investments 10,006,935

Total Current Assets 11,734,450

TOTAL ASSETS $11,734,450

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Event Payable 635

Grants Payable 28,168

Programs Payable 33,164

Endowments Payable 27,853

Scholarship Payables 85,264

Student Success Payables 23,098

Total Accounts Payable 198,182

Total Current Liabilities 198,182

Total Liabilities 198,182

Equity

Net Assets 10,665,964

Net Income 870,304

Total Equity 11,536,268

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $11,734,450

San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Financial Position

As of March 31, 2017

1 33



2017 2016
Favorable / 

(Unfavorable)
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
Contributions

Grant Contributions $17,310 $91,500 ($74,190)
Permanently Restricted 238,280 222,365 15,915
Program Sponsorship 279,753 633,545 (353,792)
Unrestricted Foundation 0 6,975 (6,975)
Temporarily Restricted 470,774 141,021 329,753

Total Contributions 1,006,117 1,095,406 (89,289)

Other Income
Special Events 109,012 240,901 (131,889)
Investment Income 141,583 282,461 (140,878)
Realized Gain / (Loss) 1,211,386 (51,663) 1,263,049
Unrealized Gain / (Loss) (1,152,823) 129,823 (1,282,646)

Total Other Income 309,157 601,521 (292,364)

Total Income 1,315,274 1,696,928 (381,653)

Expense
Programs

Scholarships Awarded 175,220 248,773 73,554
Grants Awarded (18,355) 169,302 187,656
Programs Sponsored 143,745 341,717 197,972
Student Success Initiatives 35,277 35,277 0

Total Programs 335,886 795,068 459,182

Supporting Services
Management and General 25,852 9,572 (16,280)
Fundraising 81,881 123,505 41,624
Sponsorship Expense 1,350 2,977 1,627

Total Supporting Services 109,084 136,054 26,971

Total Expense 444,970 931,122 486,153

Net Ordinary Income 870,304 765,805 104,499

Other Income / Expenses

Net Other Income $870,304 $765,805 $104,499

San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Activities

For the Period Ending March 31, 2017

2 34



Donors Amount Fund

Corporations $7,425

Beta Sigma Phi North Channel Scholarship, 
Catherine O'Brien Emergency Scholarship, 
Krogers, Lady Gators Basketball, Promise for 
their Future, South Softball Program, 

Foundations 10,500           
Greater Houston Community Foundation, 
John P. McGovern Foundation

Individuals 100 Alumni 

Total Donation 18,025           

Employee Contributions

Various 975 

Brysch Garza Firefighter Scholarship, 
Catherine O' Brien Emergency Fund, 
Dunseith Sr. Memorial Fund, John Locke 
Memorial, Promise for their Future, 
Veteran's Center

Total Employee Contributions 975 

Total Contributions $19,000

Contributions Report
March 2017

3 35



 

 

 

 

Foundation Financials  

April 2017 

36



ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

General Fund $1,188,663

Other Funds ‐

Total Checking/Savings 1,188,663

Accounts Receivable

Pledge Receivables 413,700

Special Events Receivables 27,695

Total Accounts Receivable 441,395

Other Current Assets

Short Term Investments

Goldman Sachs 9,800,439

Capital Bank  CD 203,153

Prosperity Bank 201,986

Total SJC Short Term Investments 10,205,578

Total Current Assets 11,835,636

TOTAL ASSETS $11,835,636

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Event Payable 635

Grants Payable 33,168

Programs Payable 33,164

Endowments Payable 27,853

Scholarship Payables 86,534

Student Success Payables 23,098

Total Accounts Payable 204,453

Total Current Liabilities 204,453

Total Liabilities 204,453

Equity

Net Assets 10,725,964

Net Income 905,220

Total Equity 11,631,184

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $11,835,636

San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Financial Position

As of April 30, 2017

1 37



2017 2016
Favorable / 

(Unfavorable)
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
Contributions

Grant Contributions $17,310 $111,500 ($94,190)
Permanently Restricted 275,162 223,445 51,717
Program Sponsorship 247,990 673,607 (425,618)
Unrestricted Foundation 0 6,975 (6,975)
Temporarily Restricted 526,774 103,774 423,000

Total Contributions 1,067,236 1,119,302 (52,066)

Other Income
Special Events 109,112 321,001 (211,889)
Investment Income 134,656 284,952 (150,296)
Realized Gain / (Loss) 1,211,386 (51,663) 1,263,049
Unrealized Gain / (Loss) (1,097,305) 136,806 (1,234,111)

Total Other Income 357,849 691,095 (333,246)

Total Income 1,425,084 1,810,397 (385,312)

Expense
Programs

Scholarships Awarded 177,490 246,573 69,083
Grants Awarded 46,645 169,302 122,656
Programs Sponsored 146,419 328,842 182,423
Student Success Initiatives 35,277 35,277 0

Total Programs 405,831 779,994 374,163

Supporting Services
Management and General 26,639 9,953 (16,685)
Fundraising 84,545 134,995 50,450
Sponsorship Expense 2,850 3,972 1,122

Total Supporting Services 114,033 148,920 34,887

Total Expense 519,864 928,914 409,050

Net Ordinary Income 905,220 881,482 23,738

Other Income / Expenses

Net Other Income $905,220 $881,482 $23,738

San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Activities

For the Period Ending April 30, 2017

2 38



Donors Amount Fund

Corporations $39,336

Bayer Foundation, College Prep Department, 
Deanna Shaygan Memorial, Energy Venture 
Scholarhsip, Golf, North Campus Baseball 
Program, Promise for their Future, San Jac 
Star Scholarship, Unrestriced,

Foundations 18,882           Leffie Mae Ramsey

Individuals 3,100             
Energy Venture Scholarship, Jennifer 
Puryear

Total Donation 61,318           

Employee Contributions
Various -                 NA

Total Employee Contributions -                 

Total Contributions $61,318

Contributions Report
April 2017

3 39



 

 

 

 

Foundation Audit – June 30, 2016 

40



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

JUNE 30, 2016 
(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon) 

 
 
 
 

41



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

 

 
 Page 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ...................................................................................  1 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Statement of Financial Position .................................................................................................  3 
 
 Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets ...................................................................  4 
 
 Statement of Cash Flows ...........................................................................................................  5 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements ...................................................................................................  6 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 

 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Board of Directors 
 of San Jacinto Community College Foundation, Inc. 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of San Jacinto Community College 
Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of          
June 30, 2016 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Foundation’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.

43



 

 - 2 - 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of San Jacinto Community College Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2016, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis-of-Matter - Restatement 
 
As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the classification of net assets as of July 1, 2015 
has been restated to properly reflect board-designated endowment amounts as unrestricted net assets, 
rather than permanently restricted net assets as previously reported.  This restatement had no impact 
on total net assets as of July 1, 2015.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
 
 
 
 
Houston, Texas 
May 15, 2017 
 
 

44



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 1,352,781$      
Unconditional promises to give (Notes 4 and 10) 284,195
Investments (Notes 5 and 10) 9,415,407

Total assets 11,052,383$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Scholarships and programs payable (Note 6) 326,419$         

Total liabilities 326,419

Net assets:
Unrestricted (Notes 7 and 8) 2,319,782
Temporarily restricted (Notes 7 and 8) 4,173,982
Permanently restricted (Notes 7 and 8) 4,232,200

Total net assets 10,725,964

Total liabilities and net assets 11,052,383$    

JUNE 30, 2016

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
FOUNDATION, INC.

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 3 -
45



Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Public support and revenues:  
Contributions (Notes 8 and 9) 750,011$       1,022,991$     125,078$       1,898,080$    
Special events 167,165        -                    -                   167,165        
Interest and dividends 307,572        -                    -                   307,572        
Net change in fair value of 

investments 184,560        149,066         -                   333,626        
Net assets released from

restrictions (Note 7) 750,464        (800,464)       50,000          -                   

Total public support 
and revenues 2,159,772     371,593         175,078        2,706,443     

Expenses:
Programs:

Student scholarships 311,280        -                    -                   311,280        
Grants awarded 169,302        -                    -                   169,302        
Student success initiatives 35,277          -                    -                   35,277          
Programs sponsored 269,882        -                    -                   269,882        

Total programs 785,741        -                    -                   785,741        

Supporting services:
Management and general (Note 9) 488,921        -                    -                   488,921        
Fundraising 191,328        -                    -                   191,328        
Sponsorship expenses 5,322            -                    -                   5,322            

Total supporting services 685,571        -                    -                   685,571        

Total expenses 1,471,312     -                    -                   1,471,312     

Change in net assets 688,460        371,593         175,078        1,235,131     

Net assets, beginning of year,
as restated (Note 3) 1,631,322     3,802,389      4,057,122     9,490,833     

Net assets, end of year 2,319,782$    4,173,982$     4,232,200$    10,725,964$  

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FOUNDATION, INC.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 4 -
46



Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets 1,235,131$      
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Net change in fair value of investments (333,626)      
Contributions permanently restricted (125,078)      
Increase in unconditional promises to give (66,697)        
Increase in scholarships and programs payable 6,773           

Net cash provided by operating activities 716,503         

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (6,427,838)     
Sales of investments 5,426,410      

Net cash used by investing activities (1,001,428)     

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from contributions permanently restricted 125,078         

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (159,847)        

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,512,628      

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,352,781$      

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

FOUNDATION, INC.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 5 -
47



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 6 - Continued 

Note 1 - Description of Organization 
 
 San Jacinto Community College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was organized in the 

State of Texas on November 4, 1996 to function as a not-for-profit corporation.  The 
duration of the Foundation is perpetual.  The Foundation was established to raise private 
funds for the San Jacinto Community College District (the College) for charitable, 
scientific, literary, and educational purposes, which are to be administered by the 
Foundation solely for the benefit of the College, and to account for and enhance the value 
of funds submitted to it in support of the educational mission of the College. 

 
 The Foundation is supported by private gifts, bequests and donations from individuals 

and private organizations. 
 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 Financial Statement Presentation 
 
 The Foundation reports information regarding its financial position and activities 

according to the three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted 
net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.  Net assets, including endowment funds, 
and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

 
1. Unrestricted net assets - net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 

stipulations.  Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purpose by 
action of the Board of Directors. 

 
2. Temporarily restricted net assets - net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations 

that may or will be met either by action of the Foundation and/or passage of time. 
 

3. Permanently restricted net assets - net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations 
that they be maintained permanently by the Foundation.  Generally, the donors of 
these assets permit the Foundation to use all or part of the income earned on the 
related investments for specific or general purposes. 

 
 Public Support and Revenue 
 
 Contributions are generally available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by 

the donor.  Unconditional promises to give are recorded as received.  Unconditional 
promises to give that are due in the next year are recorded at their net realizable value.  
Unconditional promises to give that are due in subsequent years are discounted to 
estimate the present value of future cash flows, if material.  An allowance of 
uncollectable promises is provided based on management’s evaluation of potential 
uncollectable promises receivable at year end. 

48



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 7 - Continued 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 Public Support and Revenue (Continued) 
 
 Grants and other contributions of cash and other assets are reported as temporarily 

restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the 
donated assets.  When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction and or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. 

 
 Certain donors have required that investment return (investment income and gains and 

losses) be restricted for specific purposes.  Such amounts are reported as additions or 
reductions to temporarily restricted net assets. 

 
 Contributions of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period 

received.  Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or 
that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and 
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their 
fair values in the period received. 

 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
 The Foundation considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months 

or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  Cash equivalents held for investment 
purposes are classified as investments in the statement of financial position and are not 
considered cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. 

 
 Investments 
 
 Investments are recorded at fair value as described in Note 5.  Investment income and 

realized and unrealized gain and losses from investment transactions are initially 
recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted, based on donor 
imposed restrictions, if any, and are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in 
the statement of activities to the extent amounts become available for use during the 
period.  Realized gains and losses are determined using the specific identification 
method. 

 
 Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
 The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a 

functional basis in the statement of activities.  Expenses are charged directly to programs 
and supporting services based on specific identification.  No indirect expenses have been 
allocated to programs. 

49



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 8 - Continued 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 Donated Services 
 
 The Foundation receives a significant amount of donated services from unpaid volunteers 

who assist in fundraising and special projects.  No amounts have been recognized in the 
statement of activities because the criteria for recognition have not been satisfied. 

 
 Federal Income Tax 
 
 The Foundation is a non-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the 

Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to 
Section 501(a) of the Code.  The Foundation is not classified as a private foundation. 

 
 GAAP requires the Foundation’s management to evaluate tax positions taken by the 

Foundation and recognize a tax liability if the Foundation has taken an uncertain position 
that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal 
Revenue Service.  Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Foundation 
and has concluded that as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, there are no uncertain positions 
taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition or disclosure within the 
financial statements.  The Foundation is subject to audits by taxing jurisdictions; 
however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress.  Management 
believes that the Foundation is no longer subject to income tax examinations for years 
prior to 2012. 

 
 Use of Estimates 
 
 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management 

to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Note 3 - Restatement 
 
 Beginning net asset classifications as of July 1, 2015 were restated to properly reflect 

internal board-designations that function as an endowment.  These amounts were 
previously reported as permanently restricted net assets, with the related unrealized and 
realized investment gain or loss reported as temporarily restricted net assets.  The              
July 1, 2015 beginning net asset classifications have been restated to properly reflect 
these internal board-designations.  This restatement resulted in an increase of $402,319 in 
unrestricted net assets and a decrease of $402,319 in permanently restricted net assets as 
of July 1, 2015.  In addition, the balance associated with donor-endowed investment 
income decreased by $173,771 as of July 1, 2015.  This restatement had no impact on 
total net assets as of July 1, 2015. 

50



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 9 - Continued 

Note 4 - Unconditional Promises to Give 
 
 Unconditional promises to give consist of the following at June 30, 2016: 
 
 Amounts to be collected within one year $ 184,195 
 Amounts to be collected one to five years  100,000 
 
   Unconditional promises to give $ 284,195 
 
Note 5 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
 
 The Foundation has estimated the fair value of financial instruments in accordance with 

the requirements of fair value reporting.  The Foundation utilizes observable market data 
when available, or models that utilize observable market data.  In addition to market 
information, the Foundation incorporates transaction specific details that, in 
management’s judgment, market participants would utilize in a fair value measurement. 

 
 Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 

a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date 
(exit price).  Inputs used in determining fair value are characterized using a hierarchy that 
prioritizes inputs depending on the degree to which they are observable.  The three levels 
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

 
Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical investments. 

 
Level 2 - Other significant observable inputs, including quoted prices for similar 

investments in active markets or in markets not considered to be active. 
 

Level 3 - Inputs that are not observable from objective sources, including the 
Foundation’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments. 

 
 The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is 

based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs. 

 
 The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at 

fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2016.  There have been no changes in the 
methodologies used at June 30, 2016 from June 30, 2015. 

 
 Mutual and index funds:  Valued at the underlying price per unit, which approximates fair 

value based on the publicly quoted market price of these funds. 
 
 Fixed income securities:  Valued based on pricing models that consider standard input 

factors such as observable market data and benchmark yields.   
 
 Bank deposit account:  Valued at cost, which approximates fair value.  
 
 Certificates of deposit:  Valued at carrying amount, which approximates fair value. 

51



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 10 - Continued 

Note 5 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 
 The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 

indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, while 
management believes the valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other 
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the 
fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value 
measurement at the reporting date. 

 
 The following tables present the Foundation’s fair value hierarchy for those assets 

measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2016: 
 
  Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total  

  Large value mutual fund $ 2,654,041 $ - $ - $2,654,041 
  Mid-cap blend index fund  992,150  -  -  992,150 
  Fixed income securities: 
   Government Sponsored 
    Enterprises  -  3,005,383  -  3,005,383 
   Corporate  -  138,621  -  138,621 
  Bank deposit account  1,286,847  -  -  1,286,847 
  Certificates of deposit  1,338,365  -  -  1,338,365 
 
 Total investments at fair value $ 6,271,403 $ 3,144,004 $ - $9,415,407 
 
 Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit.  Due to 

the level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty 
related to changes in the fair value of investment securities, it is a least reasonably 
possible that changes in risks in the near term could materially affect the net assets of the 
Foundation. 

 
Note 6 - Scholarships and Programs Payable 
 
 Scholarships and programs payable consist of amounts awarded but not paid.  The 

amounts payable of $326,419 as of June 30, 2016 are expected to be paid within one 
year. 

 
Note 7 - Restrictions and Limitation on Use of Net Assets 
 
 Unrestricted net assets of $835,997 as of June 30, 2016 have been designated by the 

Board of Directors to function as an endowment for scholarships to be funded through 
the Promise for Their Future program.  

 

52



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 11 - Continued 

Note 7 - Restrictions and Limitation on Use of Net Assets (Continued) 
 
 Temporarily restricted net assets of $4,173,982 as of June 30, 2016 were available 

primarily to fund scholarships.  Net assets of $750,464 were released from donor 
restrictions during the year ended June 30, 2016 by incurring expenses satisfying the 
purpose specified by donors and $50,000 were reclassified to permanent restrictions as a 
result of designations revised by the donor. 

 
 Permanently restricted net assets of $4,232,200 as of June 30, 2016 consist of perpetual 

endowment funds for scholarships. 
 
Note 8 - Endowment Funds 
 
 The Foundation’s endowments consist of both donor-restricted endowment funds and 

funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments.  The 
classification of the net assets of these funds is based upon the existence or absence of 
donor imposed restrictions.  The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the 
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the 
preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted 
endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. 

 
 As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net 

assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original 
value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the 
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift 
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.  The remaining portion of 
the donor-restricted endowment funds that are not classified as permanently restricted net 
assets is classified as temporarily restricted or unrestricted net assets until those amounts 
are appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the 
standard of prudence prescribed by the UPMIFA.  In accordance with UPMIFA, the 
Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or 
accumulate donor restricted endowment funds: 

 
• The duration and preservation of the fund; 
• The purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund; 
• General economic conditions; 
• The possible effect of inflation and deflation; 
• The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; 
• Other resources of the Foundation; and 
• The investment policies of the Foundation. 

53



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 12 - Continued 

Note 8 - Endowment Funds (Continued) 
 
 Endowment funds assets consist of the following at June 30, 2016: 
 
 Temporarily Permanently 
  Unrestricted   Restricted   Restricted   Total  

 Donor restricted 
 endowment funds $ 665,912 $ 693,205 $ 4,232,200 $ 5,591,317 
 Board-designated  
 endowment funds  835,997  -  -  835,997 
 
   Total endowment funds $ 1,501,909 $ 693,205 $ 4,232,200 $ 6,427,314 
 
 The changes in the endowment funds for the year ended June 30, 2016 are as follows: 
 
 Temporarily Permanently 
  Unrestricted   Restricted   Restricted   Total  

 Endowment net assets, 
 July 1, 2015, as restated $ 1,216,749 $ 544,139 $ 4,057,122 $ 5,818,010 
 Investment return: 
 Investment income  95,449  -  -  95,449 
 Net appreciation 
 (realized and unrealized)  22,480  149,066  -  171,546 
 Contributions  -  -  125,078  125,078 
 Change in donor designations  -  -  50,000  50,000 
 Governing Board designations  221,985  -  -  221,985 
 Expenditures  (54,754)  -  -  (54,754) 
 
 Endowment net assets, 
 June 30, 2016 $ 1,501,909 $ 693,205 $ 4,232,200 $ 6,427,314 
 
 The Foundation has adopted an investment and spending policy for endowment assets 

that attempts to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its 
endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  
The Foundation’s spending and investment policies work together to achieve this 
objective.  The investment policy establishes an achievable return objective through 
diversification of asset classes.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this 
amount.  To satisfy its long term rate of return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total 
return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation 
(realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).  The Foundation 
targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity based 
investments to achieve its long-term objective within prudent risk constraints. 

54



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
FOUNDATION, INC. 

(a Texas Nonprofit Corporation) 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 
 

 - 13 -  

Note 8 - Endowment Funds (Continued) 
 
 Over the long term, the Foundation expects its endowment assets to grow based on the 

current spending policy.  This is consistent with the Foundation’s objective to maintain 
the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity for a specific term as 
well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment returns. 

 
Note 9 - Related Party Transactions 
 
 The College provides the Foundation with employees, professional services and office 

supplies at no charge.  The College also provides office space to the Foundation at no 
charge.  The donated services and facilities from the College for the year ended           
June 30, 2016 was $477,677 and is included as contributions and as management and 
general expense in the statement of activities. 

 
Note 10 - Concentrations 
 
 Contributions 
 
 Donor amounts that exceed 10% of total receivables or contributions are considered 

significant.  At June 30, 2016, unconditional promises to give totaling $250,000 are due 
from two donors and represents 88% of total unconditional promises to give at             
June 30, 2016.   

 
Credit Risk 

 
 Certain financial instruments and cash potentially subject the Foundation to 

concentrations of credit risk.  Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment 
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in net values of investment 
securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the 
amounts recorded in the statement of financial position.  As of June 30, 2016, the 
Foundation’s cash deposits exceeded federal insured limits by $115,410.  Additionally, a 
depository account classified as an investment in the statement of financial position, 
exceeded federal insured limits by $1,036,846 as of June 30, 2016.  Management believes 
that the credit risk has been mitigated by the financial strength of the financial institutions 
in which the deposits are held. 

 
Note 11 - Subsequent Events 
 
 Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 15, 2017, the date which the 

financial statements were available to be issued.  Management has determined that no 
subsequent events require recognition or disclosure in these financial statements. 

 
* * * End of Notes * * * 

55



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 Executed 
Change 
Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 YTD 
Expenditures 

 Remaining 
Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central

North
2612 - NC Plant Chiller 14,225                   1,626,427            1,640,652           -                    784,630                793,695                62,327              96.20%

Sub-total 14,225                   1,626,427            1,640,652           -                    784,630                793,695                62,327              96.20%
South
3601 - SC Softball Improvements 26,500                   18,500                 45,000                -                    2,787                    28,405                  13,808              69.32%

Sub-total 26,500                   18,500                 45,000                -                    2,787                    28,405                  13,808              69.32%
District
720100 - Program Management -                             857,557               857,557              -                    58,939                  252,244                546,374            36.29%
726800 - Contingency 15,526,260            (7,411,866)           8,114,395           -                    -                            -                            8,114,395         -

Sub-total 15,526,260            (6,554,309)           8,971,952           -                    58,939                  252,244                8,660,769         3.47%

Projects Substantially Complete
2601 - NC Baseball Batting and Pitching 475,965                 114,992               590,957              -                    11,572                  542,246                37,139              93.72%
6803 - Maritime Training Facility 18,000,000            9,086,621            27,086,621         248,293         157,617                26,870,088           58,916              99.78%

Sub-total 18,475,965            9,201,613            27,677,578         248,293         169,189                27,412,334           96,055              99.65%
Projects Closed 
1001 - CC Primary Service Retrofit 2,774,950              1,695,228            4,470,178           -                    -                            4,470,178             -                       100.00%
1102 - CC In-Fill 47,572                   1,148,648            1,196,220           -                    -                            1,196,220             -                       100.00%
1109 - CC Maintenance & Police Bldg 3,560,360              2,702,048            6,262,408           -                    -                            6,262,408             -                       100.00%
1202 - CC Davis Library 8,418,096              (155,756)              8,262,340           -                    -                            8,262,340             -                       100.00%
1203 - CC Anders Gym 10,398,474            (10,288,751)         109,723              -                    -                            109,723                -                       100.00%
1217 - CC Transportation Center Buildout -                             1,039,383            1,039,383           -                    -                            1,039,383             -                       100.00%
1301 - CC Building 31 Renovation -                             497,887               497,887              -                    -                            497,887                -                       100.00%
1817 - CC Transportation Center 17,333,267            2,998,752            20,332,019         (137,768)       -                            20,332,019           -                       100.00%
1818 - CC Industrial Tech Buildings 7,758,416              (3,727,679)           4,030,737           -                    -                            4,030,737             -                       100.00%
1820 - CC Paving & Drainage 10,490,274            (913,895)              9,576,379           (207,575)       -                            9,576,379             -                       100.00%
1821 - CC Allied Health Addition 10,568,880            1,189,925            11,758,805         296,549         -                            11,758,805           -                       100.00%
1908 - CC Science Building 35,752,627            (148,641)              35,603,986         -                    -                            35,603,986           -                       100.00%
1909 - CC Petrochem/Vo Tech Building -                             175,822               175,822              -                    -                            175,822                -                       100.00%
2102 - NC In-Fill 23,086                   835,842               858,928              -                    -                            858,928                -                       100.00%
2201 - NC Lehr Library 2,022,600              11,807,000          13,829,600         -                    -                            13,829,600           -                       100.00%
2202 - NC Nichols Gym 4,949,996              (4,931,379)           18,617                -                    -                            18,617                  -                       100.00%
2401 - NC Outdoor Lighting 13,472                   785                      14,257                -                    -                            14,257                  -                       100.00%
2402 - NC MET Infrastructure N Library 851,510                 (792,067)              59,443                -                    -                            59,443                  -                       100.00%
2901 - NC Paving & Drainage 3,142,449              (435,395)              2,707,054           (15,714)         -                            2,707,054             -                       100.00%
2903 - NC Student Success Center 11,093,580            801,084               11,894,664         (499,063)       -                            11,894,664           -                       100.00%
2906 - NC Science & Allied Health 42,240,000            (6,014,982)           36,225,018         -                    -                            36,225,018           -                       100.00%
3102 - SC In-Fill 23,086                   947,381               970,467              -                    -                            970,467                -                       100.00%
3201 - SC Parker Williams Library 2,449,600              369,372               2,818,972           -                    -                            2,818,972             -                       100.00%
3202 - SC Smallwood Gym 6,919,331              (6,900,774)           18,557                -                    -                            18,557                  -                       100.00%
3401 - SC Traffic Signal Relocation 75,988                   (25,773)                50,215                -                    -                            50,215                  -                       100.00%
3402 - SC Water and Electrical Upgrade 29,305                   (5,044)                  24,261                -                    -                            24,261                  -                       100.00%
3903 - SC Student Success Center 8,220,000              2,074,228            10,294,228         109,650         -                            10,294,228           -                       100.00%
3905/3911 - SC Paving & Drainage 2,747,068              7,891,993            10,639,061         -                    -                            10,639,061           -                       100.00%
3906 - SC Mechanical Upgrades 1,252,855              (558,604)              694,251              (19,524)         -                            694,251                -                       100.00%
3907 - SC MEP Infrastructure 4,381,500              283,388               4,664,888           -                    -                            4,664,888             -                       100.00%
*3908 - SC Primary Service at New Site 809,625                 (809,625)              -                          -                    -                            -                            -                       -
3909 - SC Science & Allied Health 53,868,525            (6,251,380)           47,617,145         -                    -                            47,617,145           -                       100.00%
1828/2814/3817 - D DDC Network 2,190,750              318,314               2,509,064           -                    -                            2,509,064             -                       100.00%
6003 - D Graphics 900,000                 724,824               1,624,824           -                    -                            1,624,824             -                       100.00%
6007 - D Furniture Consultant 335,000                 (335,000)              -                          -                    -                            -                            -                       -
6601 - Generation Park 200,000                 12,577                 212,577              -                    -                            212,577                -                       100.00%
6602 - District Board Room Renovation 144,951                 (5,517)                  139,434              -                    -                            139,434                -                       100.00%
6705 - Data Networking 3,100,000              (25,015)                3,074,985           -                    -                            3,074,985             -                       100.00%
6902 - D Campus Mechanical Upgrades  1,869,857              518,564               2,388,421           (3,767)           -                            2,388,421             -                       100.00%

Sub-total 260,957,050          (4,292,232)           256,664,818       (477,212)       -                            256,664,818         -                       100.00%
TOTALS 295,000,000          -                           295,000,000       (228,919)       1,015,545             285,151,496         8,832,959         97.01%

 2008 Capital Improvement Program
 Report As of April 30, 2017

56



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 Executed Change 
Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 YTD 
Expenditures 

 Remaining 
Balance 

Percent of Budget 
Encumbered/Expensed

North - CIT
 North CIT - 904605-722909 47,591,645            -                          47,591,645  -                                        1,770,114              39,873,437            5,948,094         87.50%
Contingency (726900) 2,408,355              -                          2,408,355    -                                        -                            -                            2,408,355         -                                                   

Sub-total 50,000,000            -                          50,000,000  -                                        1,770,114              39,873,437            8,356,449         83.29%

2015 Revenue Bond 
 As of April 30, 2017

57



Project  Base Budget  Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 
Executed 
Change 
Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 YTD 
Expenditures 

 Remaining 
Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central
1601 - CC Petrochemical Center 52,450,000            337,630               52,787,630   -                   1,788,409            2,006,266             48,992,955      7.19%
1601A - CC Petrochem Process Plant -                             7,630,389            7,630,389     -                   -                           -                            7,630,389        -                           
1601B - CC Petrochem Extended Site Development -                             7,946,009            7,946,009     -                   -                           -                            7,946,009        -                           
1602 - CC Welcome Center 16,600,000            2,810,920            19,410,920   -                   27,276                 58,674                  19,324,970      0.44%
1602A - CC Welcome Center Site Development -                             3,000,000            3,000,000     -                   -                           -                            3,000,000        -                           
1603 - CC Class Room Building 47,155,000            (1,475,952)          45,679,049   -                   44,300                 26,650                  45,608,099      0.16%
1604 - CC Central Data Closets 2,444,000              (76,497)               2,367,503     -                   29,000                 -                            2,338,503        1.22%
1605 - CC Central Access Security 1,852,000              (578,768)             1,273,232     -                   29,976                 191                       1,243,065        2.37%
1606 - CC Frels Demo 1,153,000              -                          1,153,000     -                   -                           -                            1,153,000        -                           
1607 - CC Davison Building Reno 14,970,000            (468,561)             14,501,439   -                   -                           -                            14,501,439      -                           
1608 - CC McCollum Center Reno 24,685,000            (772,641)             23,912,359   -                   -                           -                            23,912,359      -                           
1609 - CC McCollum North Reno 2,535,000              (79,346)               2,455,655     -                   -                           -                            2,455,655        -                           
1610 - CC Ball Demo 1,725,000              -                          1,725,000     -                   -                           -                            1,725,000        -                           
1611 - CC Anderson Demo 2,654,000              (83,070)               2,570,930     -                   -                           -                            2,570,930        -                           
1612 - CC Stadium and Track Demo 174,000                 (5,446)                 168,554        -                   -                           -                            168,554           -                           
1613 - CC Central DDC Network 1,160,000              (36,308)               1,123,692     -                   5,555                   2,381                    1,115,756        0.71%
1614 - CC Central Plant Upgrades 1,160,000              (36,308)               1,123,692     -                   -                           -                            1,123,692        -                           

Sub-total 170,717,000          18,112,052          188,829,052 -                   1,924,516            2,094,162             184,810,374    2.13%
North
2601 - NC Cosmetology & Culinary Center 22,845,000            (715,048)             22,129,952   -                   42,000                 44,804                  22,043,148      0.39%
2602 - NC North Data Closets 915,000                 (28,640)               886,360        -                   34,140                 -                            852,220           3.85%
2604 - NC Lehr Library Demo 650,000                 (20,345)               629,655        -                   95,080                 4,544                    530,031           15.82%
2605 - NC North Access/Security 877,000                 93,950                 970,950        -                   22,482                 190                       948,278           2.34%
2606 - NC Wheeler Reno 14,300,000            (447,590)             13,852,410   -                   -                           -                            13,852,410      -                           
2607 - NC Brightwell Reno 6,628,000              (207,456)             6,420,544     -                   -                           -                            6,420,544        -                           
2608 - NC Spencer Reno 13,000,000            (406,900)             12,593,100   -                   -                           -                            12,593,100      -                           
2609 - NC North DDC Network 580,000                 (18,154)               561,846        -                   2,800                   1,200                    557,846           0.71%
2610 - NC Underground Utility Tunnel 11,600,000            (6,100,000)          5,500,000     -                   -                           -                            5,500,000        -                           
2612 - NC Uvalde Expansion 5,000,000              -                          5,000,000     -                   -                           -                            5,000,000        -                           

Sub-total 76,395,000            (7,850,183)          68,544,817   -                   196,502               50,738                  68,297,577      0.36%
South
3601 - SC Engineering & Technology Center 28,400,000            (888,920)             27,511,080   -                   37,393                 72,985                  27,400,702      0.40%
3602 - SC Cosmetology Center 16,213,000            (507,466)             15,705,534   -                   26,315                 40,307                  15,638,912      0.42%
3603 - SC Longenecker Reno 22,555,000            (705,972)             21,849,028   -                   48,787                 13,044                  21,787,197      0.28%
3604 - SC South Data Closets 765,000                 (23,944)               741,056        -                   20,140                 -                            720,916           2.72%
3605 - SC South Primary electrical Upgrade 5,800,000              (181,540)             5,618,460     -                   -                           -                            5,618,460        -                           
3606 - SC South Access/ Security 599,000                 214,250               813,250        -                   18,735                 191                       794,324           2.33%
3607 - SC South HW/CW Relocation 10,266,000            (321,326)             9,944,674     -                   -                           -                            9,944,674        -                           
3608 - SC South Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 1,160,000              (36,308)               1,123,692     -                   -                           -                            1,123,692        -                           
3610 - SC Jones Reno 13,803,000            (432,034)             13,370,966   -                   -                           -                            13,370,966      -                           
3611 - SC Bruce Student Center Reno 10,400,000            (325,520)             10,074,480   -                   484,040               11,514                  9,578,926        4.92%
3612 - SC HVAC Tech 312,000                 2,000,000            2,312,000     -                   4,300                   -                            2,307,700        0.19%
3613 - SC South DDC Network 580,000                 (18,154)               561,846        -                   3,500                   1,500                    556,846           0.89%

Sub-total 110,853,000          (1,226,934)          109,626,066 -                   643,210               139,541                108,843,315    0.71%
Maritime

6603 - MC Maritime Expansion 28,000,000            (13,000,000)        15,000,000   -                   -                           -                            15,000,000      -                           
Sub-total 28,000,000            (13,000,000)        15,000,000   -                   -                           -                            15,000,000      -                           

Admin
6602 - College Development 30,000,000            -                          30,000,000   -                   -                           -                            30,000,000      -                           
6604 - Dist Construction Studies -                             283,820               283,820        -                   49,495                 216,930                17,395             93.87%
6605 - Dist Access/Security -                             166,400               166,400        -                   3,747                   -                            162,653           2.25%
720100 - Program Management -                             9,118,003            9,118,003     -                   1,034,774            1,287,764             6,795,465        25.47%
736601 - Contingency -                             3,431,842            3,431,842     -                   -                           -                            3,431,842        -                           

Sub-total 30,000,000            13,000,065          43,000,065   -                   1,088,016            1,504,694             40,407,355      6.03%
Projects Closed 
2603 - NC Chiller Plant Replacement 1,450,000              (1,450,000)          -                    -                   -                           -                            -                       -                           
2611 - NC 24 Acres Wetlands Mitigation 2,000,000              (2,000,000)          -                    -                   -                           -                            -                       -                           
3609 - SC Fire House Expansion 5,585,000              (5,585,000)          -                    -                   -                           -                            -                       -                           

Sub-total 9,035,000              (9,035,000)          -                    -                   -                           -                            -                       -                           
TOTALS 425,000,000          -                          425,000,000 -                   3,852,244            3,789,135             417,358,621    1.80%

2015 Bond -  San Jac Tomorrow Capital Improvement Program
 Report as of April 30, 2017

58



ID Task Name Start Finish

1 Central Campus Wed 6/4/08 Fri 1/3/20
2 1820 - Paving & Drainage Mon 12/1/08 Tue 11/1/11
8 1817 - Transportation Center Wed 6/4/08 Thu 7/26/12

15 1818 - Industrial Technology II Mon 2/1/10 Fri 6/7/13
25 1109 - Maintenance/Police Mon 6/6/11 Fri 10/10/14
39 1301 - Building 31 Mon 6/6/11 Fri 6/6/14
53 1821 - Allied Health Sun 3/1/09 Wed 10/31/12
67 1908 - Science Building Wed 7/1/09 Fri 6/20/14
84 1001 - Primary Service Retrofit Mon 10/18/10 Fri 6/26/15
94 1202 - Davis Library Mon 1/9/12 Mon 4/20/15
108 1203 - Anders Gym Wed 9/21/16 Mon 3/11/19
121 1909 - Petrochemical Building Mon 9/7/15 Fri 1/3/20
122 Programming Mon 9/7/15 Fri 1/29/16
123 Design Mon 2/1/16 Fri 4/21/17
124 Review & Award Fri 7/29/16 Mon 6/5/17
125 SD Review Fri 7/29/16 Fri 7/29/16
126 DD Review Fri 11/25/16 Fri 11/25/16
127 75% Review Fri 1/13/17 Fri 1/13/17
128 100% Review Mon 4/24/17 Mon 4/24/17
129 GMP/Purchasing Fri 5/19/17 Fri 5/19/17
130 Building Committee Tue 5/23/17 Tue 5/23/17
131 Board Meeting Mon 6/5/17 Mon 6/5/17
132 Construction Tue 6/6/17 Fri 12/28/18
133 FF&E Mon 9/10/18 Fri 1/25/19
134 Close-out & Warranty Mon 12/31/18 Fri 1/3/20
135 North Campus Sun 6/1/08 Mon 3/11/19
136 2901 - Pavement & Drainage Sun 6/1/08 Tue 1/25/11
142 2903 - Student Success Center Mon 2/2/09 Fri 1/4/13
156 2906 - Science & Allied Health Wed 7/1/09 Mon 12/2/13
170 2201 - Lehr Library Mon 6/3/13 Fri 2/3/17
184 2202 - Nichols Gym Wed 9/21/16 Mon 3/11/19
198 2909 - Center for Industrial Tech Mon 7/7/14 Mon 2/26/18
199 Programming Mon 7/7/14 Fri 10/3/14
200 Design Mon 10/6/14 Fri 11/13/15
201 Review & Award Mon 10/6/14 Mon 2/1/16
202 SD Review Mon 10/6/14 Mon 10/6/14
203 DD Review Fri 2/20/15 Fri 2/20/15
204 75% Review Fri 10/23/15 Fri 10/23/15
205 100% Review Fri 11/13/15 Fri 11/13/15
206 GMP/Purchasing Fri 1/15/16 Fri 1/15/16
207 Building Committee Tue 1/26/16 Tue 1/26/16
208 Board Meeting Mon 2/1/16 Mon 2/1/16
209 Construction Fri 2/5/16 Fri 2/24/17
210 FF&E Mon 12/12/16 Fri 3/17/17
211 Close Out & Warranty Mon 2/27/17 Mon 2/26/18
212 South Campus Thu 1/1/09 Mon 3/11/19
213 3903 - Student Success Center Mon 2/2/09 Fri 3/1/13
227 3905 - Paving & Drainage Sun 3/1/09 Fri 4/19/13
240 3906 - Mechanical Upgrades Thu 1/1/09 Wed 10/26/11
246 3907 - MEP Infrastructure Mon 3/1/10 Thu 5/2/13
252 3909 - Science & Allied Health Mon 6/29/09 Thu 6/5/14
266 3201 - Parker Williams Library Mon 1/9/12 Mon 3/2/15
280 3202 - Smallwood Gym Wed 9/21/16 Mon 3/11/19
294 District Fri 8/1/08 Mon 8/22/16

4/24

11/13

Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1Q
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

2008 Bond Program 
Master Schedule

Mon 5/22/17 Page 1

59



ID Task
Mod

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors Resource Names

0 2015 Bond Program Schedule 1305 days? Wed 8/24/16 Tue 8/24/21

1 Central Campus 1288 days Wed 8/24/16 Sun 8/1/21

14 Welcome Center 544 days Wed 3/1/17 Mon 4/1/19

3 Central Plant Upgrade 297 days Fri 3/31/17 Mon 5/21/18

9 Stadium & Track Demolition 130 days Fri 9/15/17 Thu 3/15/18

42 Bldg. 02‐Early College HS 360 days Thu 3/15/18 Wed 7/31/19

20 Davison Bldg. Renovation 489 days Thu 5/17/18 Tue 3/31/20

48 McCollum Center Section Renovation 520 days Fri 6/1/18 Thu 5/28/20

26 Anderson Demolition 240 days Mon 12/24/18 Fri 11/22/19

31 Ball Demolition 240 days Mon 12/24/18 Fri 11/22/19

2 Petro‐Chem Move In Completion 1 day Tue 1/1/19 Tue 1/1/19
36 Classroom Building 560 days Mon 6/10/19 Fri 7/30/21

54 McCollum North Wing Renovation 260 days Fri 10/4/19 Thu 10/1/20

60 Frels Demolition 240 days Mon 8/31/20 Fri 7/30/21

101 South Campus (pending final campus site plan) 1305 days? Wed 8/24/16 Tue 8/24/21

151 Expansion of Building 23 (HVAC Tech) 1 day? Wed 8/24/16 Wed 8/24/16

129 Cosmetology Center 596 days Fri 11/25/16 Fri 3/8/19

102 Bruce Student Center Renovation (Phase I) 163 days Tue 12/13/16 Thu 7/27/17

123 Engineering & Technology Center 598 days Wed 1/25/17 Fri 5/10/19

116 HVAC Tech Renovation 370 days Mon 4/24/17 Fri 9/21/18

157 Primary Electrical Service Upgrade 295 days Mon 4/24/17 Fri 6/8/18

163 HW/CW Piping Replacement 432 days Wed 4/26/17 Thu 12/20/18

169 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 265 days Mon 6/19/17 Fri 6/22/18

135 Longenecker Building Renovation (Phase I) 430 days Mon 10/23/17 Fri 6/14/19

141 Longenecker Building Renovation (Phase II) 245 days Mon 3/25/19 Fri 2/28/20

145 Jones Bulding Renovation 510 days Tue 9/3/19 Mon 8/16/21

110 Bruce Student Center Renovation (Phase II) 510 days Wed 9/11/19 Tue 8/24/21

65 North Campus (pending final campus site plan) 1256 days Tue 11/1/16 Tue 8/24/21

71 Cosmetology/Culinary Center 672 days Tue 11/1/16 Wed 5/29/19

77 Underground Utility Tunnel Renovation 478 days Wed 3/1/17 Fri 12/28/18

66 Lehr Library Demolition 135 days Mon 3/13/17 Fri 9/15/17

83 Spencer Building Renovation 505 days Wed 11/1/17 Tue 10/8/19

89 Brightwell Building Renovation 505 days Wed 10/3/18 Tue 9/8/20

95 Wheeler Building Renovation 525 days Wed 8/21/19 Tue 8/24/21

175 Campus Wide Projects 1212 days? Mon 1/2/17 Tue 8/24/21

176 DDC Network (Campus Wide Package #1) 306 days Mon 1/2/17 Mon 3/5/18

184 Data Closets (Campus Wide Package #1) 334 days Wed 1/25/17 Mon 5/7/18

182 Access/Security (Campus Wide) 140 days Mon 5/1/17 Fri 11/10/17

190 Bond Program Completion Tue 8/24/21

1/1

3/8

5/10
9/21

12/20

6/14
2/28

8/16

8/24

Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan Apr Jul Oct Jan
uarter 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter 3rd Quarter 1st Qua

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Path Driving Predecessor Milestone Task

Path Driving Predecessor Summary Task

Path Driving Predecessor Normal Task

Progress

Manual Progress

2015Bond-AECOMProgramSchedule050917 (2).mpp 

Page 1

Project: 2015 Bond Program Schedule
Date: Mon 5/22/17

60



Project  Base       
Budget 

 Budget 
Adjustments 

 Current 
Budget 

 
Executed 
Change 
Orders 

 Encumbered 
Funds 

 FY15-16 
Expenditures  

 FY17 
Expenditures 

 Total 
Expenditures 

 Moved to 
Construction 

in Process 

 Remaining 
Balance 

Percent of 
Budget 

Encumbered/
Expensed

Central
F16035 - CC C32 Concrete pad 10,898      -                            10,898            -                   10,898                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F16097 - CC - C11 Tier 1 Upgrades 42,257      -                            42,257            -                   42,167                  -                             -                             -                             -                              90                          99.79%
F16106 - CC C30.115 Dual Projection 15,362      -                            15,362            -                   15,362                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F17001 - CC Misc. R&R at Central Campus 5,000        15,000                   20,000            -                   4,660                    -                             -                             -                             -                              15,340                   23.30%
F17022 - CC Projection Upgrades 6,783        -                            6,783              -                   6,783                    -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F17028 - CC C17 Anderson Bldg Humidity 14,420      18,540                   32,960            -                   18,540                  -                             -                             -                             -                              14,420                   56.25%
F17033 - CC C30.109/120 AV upgrade 10,301      -                            10,301            -                   7,080                    -                             -                             -                             -                              3,221                     68.73%
F17038 - CC C3 & C14 Card Readers 10,868      -                            10,868            -                   -                           -                             -                             -                             -                              10,868                   -                           
F17039 - CC C34.116 Additional Outlets/panel 10,913      -                            10,913            -                   10,913                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F17043 - CC Life Cycle 99,856      -                            99,856            -                   -                           -                             -                             -                             -                              99,856                   -                           
F17044 - CC C16.101 Gas Line 6,840        -                            6,840              -                   6,840                    -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F17056 - CC C16.104 Tier 1 upgrade 11,750      -                            11,750            -                   11,750                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F17057 - CC C14.200/240 Conference Rooms 17,139      -                            17,139            -                   17,139                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%

 Sub-total 262,387    33,540                   295,927          -                   152,132                -                             -                             -                             -                              143,795                 51.41%
North
F17002 - NC Misc. R&R at North Campus 5,000        15,000                   20,000            -                   4,288                    -                             -                             -                             -                              15,712                   21.44%
F17035 - NC N12 Fire alarm 55,448      -                            55,448            -                   55,448                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%
F17041 - NC Life Cycle 48,683      -                            48,683            -                   48,683                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%

Sub-total 109,131    15,000                   124,131          -                   108,419                -                             -                             -                             -                              15,712                   87.34%
South
F16098 - S8.2014 Tier 1 Upgrade 22,593      -                            22,593            -                   10,481                  -                             12,112                   12,112                    -                              -                            100.00%
F16099 - SC S8.1062 Tier 1 Upgrade 12,872      -                            12,872            -                   10,625                  -                             2,247                     2,247                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17003 - SC Misc. R&R at South Campus 5,000        15,000                   20,000            -                   -                           -                             2,325                     2,325                      -                              17,675                   11.63%
F17011 - SC AECOM Build-out 20,000      17,949                   37,949            -                   27,007                  -                             10,942                   10,942                    -                              -                            100.00%
F17015 - SC S6.160 Demountable door 2,721        -                            2,721              -                   -                           -                             444                        444                         -                              2,277                     16.32%
F17046 - SC S1 Occupational Therapy Prog 48,676      -                            48,676            -                   48,676                  -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%

Sub-total 111,862    32,949                   144,811          -                   96,789                  -                             28,070                   28,070                    -                              19,952                   86.22%
District
F17004 - Dist Misc. at the College Admin Bldg. 5,000        1,704                     6,704              -                   4,363                    -                             2,081                     2,081                      -                              260                        96.12%
F17005 - Dist Misc. Furniture Storage All Campuses 5,000        -                            5,000              -                   -                           -                             706                        706                         -                              4,294                     14.12%
F17008 - Dist A1. ADA Design Services 20,360      -                            20,360            -                   15,650                  -                             4,710                     4,710                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17009 - Dist FI Furniture moves 5,000        -                            5,000              -                   -                           -                             2,905                     2,905                      -                              2,095                     58.10%
F17029 - Dist - A1 Landscaping 30,891      -                            30,891            -                   -                           -                             -                             -                             -                              30,891                   -                           
F17031 - Dist A.1 RR Noise Abatement 9,623        -                            9,623              -                   -                           -                             9,623                     9,623                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17040 - Dist A2.208 Purchasing 7,299        -                            7,299              -                   5,409                    -                             1,890                     1,890                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17045 - Dist Reconfigure A2.122i 1,246        1,246                     2,492              -                   1,246                    -                             -                             -                             -                              1,246                     50.00%
F17062 - Dist A1.203b IT upgrade 6,952        -                            6,952              -                   6,952                    -                             -                             -                             -                              -                            100.00%

Sub-total 91,371      2,950                     94,321            -                   33,620                  -                             21,915                   21,915                    -                              38,786                   58.88%
Contingency (720700) 1,070,684 (754,641)                316,043          -                   -                           -                             -                             -                             -                              316,043                 -                           

Sub-total 1,070,684 (754,641)                316,043          -                   -                           -                             -                             -                             -                              316,043                 -                           
Projects Closed 
F16067 - CC Tank Storage Roof 4,638        -                            4,638              -                   -                           -                             4,638                     4,638                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17014 - CC C30.110 Drill Press 4,137        -                            4,137              -                   -                           -                             4,137                     4,137                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17016 - CC C1.129 Redesign 11,646      404                        12,050            -                   -                           -                             12,050                   12,050                    -                              -                            100.00%
F17018 - CC Vet Center Window Film 813           -                            813                 -                   -                           -                             813                        813                         -                              -                            100.00%
F17021 - CC C3.150/152 Renovation 35,845      943                        36,788            -                   -                           -                             36,788                   36,788                    -                              -                            100.00%
F17026 - CC C3.116 Family Restroom 2,961        -                            2,961              -                   -                           -                             2,961                     2,961                      -                              -                            100.00%
F16089 - NC N10.149 Renovation 7,179        -                            7,179              -                   -                           -                             7,179                     7,179                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17006 - NC N1.122 & 147 Lighting 2,578        -                            2,578              -                   -                           -                             2,578                     2,578                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17012 - NC N10.252 Electrical and AV/Data 1,903        -                            1,903              -                   -                           -                             1,903                     1,903                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17013 - NC N10.230 Electrical and Av/Data 5,616        -                            5,616              -                   -                           -                             5,616                     5,616                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17023 - NC N9 FMG Window Film 1,100        405                        1,505              -                   -                           -                             1,505                     1,505                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17025 - SC S.1 Emergency Power Rev 31,031      -                            31,031            -                   -                           -                             31,031                   31,031                    -                              -                            100.00%
F17007 - DIST A1.105 Power Whips 2,140        -                            2,140              -                   -                           -                             2,140                     2,140                      -                              -                            100.00%
F17027 - Dist Maritime Family RR 20,110      -                            20,110            -                   -                           -                             20,110                   20,110                    -                              -                            100.00%
F16081 - Dist A1.114 Renovation for OGM 195,710    (4,914)                   190,796          -                   -                           186,251                  4,545                     190,796                  84,811                    -                            100.00%

Sub-total 327,407    (3,162)                   324,245          -                   -                           186,251                  137,994                 324,245                  84,811                    -                            100.00%
TOTALS 1,972,842 (673,364)                1,299,478       -                   390,960                186,251                  187,979                 374,230                  84,811                    534,288                 58.88%

Repair and Renovation
 Report As of  April 30, 2017

61



ID Tas
Mo

Task Name Duration Start Finish Text1

1 F17064 N.10.113 CR Reno 1 day Mon 4/10/17 Mon 4/10/17Not Approved

2 F17065 N.10.123 CR Reno 1 day Mon 4/10/17 Mon 4/10/17Not Approved

3 F17050 N BB Fence 1 day Wed 2/22/17 Wed 2/22/17Not Approved

4 F17051 N BB Ump DR 1 day Wed 2/22/17 Wed 2/22/17Not Approved

5 F17034 N.12.205 PD FFE 1 day Mon 12/12/16 Mon 12/12/1Not Approved

6 F17069 S LS FFE 1 day Thu 4/27/17 Thu 4/27/17 Not Approved

7 F17052 S Training Fix 1 day Wed 2/22/17 Wed 2/22/17Not Approved

8 F17068 A.2.204 EM Office 1 day Thu 4/27/17 Thu 4/27/17 Not Approved

9

10 F17028 C.17 HVAC Humidity 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved

11 F17035 N.12 Fire Alarm 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved

12 F17008 A.1 ADA RR 1 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved

13 F17031 A.1 ADA RR 2 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved 

14 F17040 A.2.208 Off Reno 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved

15 F17029 A.1 Landscape 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved

16 F17024 A.1 Bike Rack 99 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 6/1/17 Approved

17 F17046 S.1 CR Reno 99 days Mon 3/20/17 Thu 8/3/17 Approved

18 F17042 C.11 Elevator Repair 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

19 F17043 C LS FFE 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

20 F17057 C.14.200/204 AV 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

24 15 7 29 20 12 3 25 16 10 1 23 15 6 28 20 11
ug 7, '1Sep 25, Nov 13, Jan 1, '17Feb 19, ' Apr 9, '1 May 28, Jul 16, '1

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

R&R Project Schedule Mon 5/22/17 11:32 AM

Page 1 R&R Project Schedule 05-17-2017.mpp

Project: R&R Project Schedule 0
Date: Mon 5/22/17

62



ID Tas
Mo

Task Name Duration Start Finish Text1

21 F16097 C.11 (3) CR 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

22 F17056 C.16.104 Tier I 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

23 F16035 C.32 Slab 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

24 F16106 C.30.115 Tier I 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

25 F17044 C.16.101 Nat Gas 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

26 F17033 C.30.109 Elec 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

27 F17022 C.26 Elec 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

28 F17039 C.34.116 Elec 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

29 F17038 C.3/C.14 Card Access 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

30 F17041 N LS FFE 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

31 F17062 A.1.203 AV  99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

32 F17045 A.2.112i Off Reno 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

33 F17054 A.1 HVAC Engr 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

34 F17053 A.1 Parking LED 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

35 F17055 A.1.210 Blinds 99 days Mon 4/17/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

36 F17001 C Misc 164 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

37 F17002 N Misc 164 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

38 F17003 S Misc 164 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

39 F17004 A Misc 164 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

40 F17005 A Misc Storage 256 days Thu 9/8/16 Thu 8/31/17 Approved

24 15 7 29 20 12 3 25 16 10 1 23 15 6 28 20 11
ug 7, '1Sep 25, Nov 13, Jan 1, '17Feb 19, ' Apr 9, '1 May 28, Jul 16, '1

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

R&R Project Schedule Mon 5/22/17 11:32 AM

Page 2 R&R Project Schedule 05-17-2017.mpp

Project: R&R Project Schedule 0
Date: Mon 5/22/17

63



ID Tas
Mo

Task Name Duration Start Finish Text1

41 <New Task>

42 F16089 N.10.149 FMG FFE 98 days Thu 9/1/16 Mon 1/16/17Completed

43 F17012 N.10.252 Elec 9 days Thu 9/22/16 Tue 10/4/16 Completed

44 F17013 N.10.230 Elec 9 days Thu 9/22/16 Tue 10/4/16 Completed

45 F17015 S.6.160 Door 23 days Fri 9/23/16 Tue 10/25/16Completed

46 F16098 S.8.2014 Tier I 66 days Mon 1/16/17 Mon 4/17/17Completed

47 F16099 S.8.1062 Tier I 66 days Mon 1/16/17 Mon 4/17/17Completed

48 F17016 C.1.129 Uni Ctr 61 days Mon 1/16/17 Mon 4/10/17Completed

49 F17018 C.1.154 Window Film 12 days Mon 1/16/17 Tue 1/31/17 Completed

50 F17021 C.3.152 Adjunct Space 12 days Mon 1/16/17 Tue 1/31/17 Completed

51 F17026 C.3.116 Fam RR 22 days Mon 1/16/17 Tue 2/14/17 Completed

52 F17006 N.1.122 Ligh Dim 32 days Mon 1/16/17 Tue 2/28/17 Completed

53 F17023 N.9.100 Window Film 12 days Mon 1/16/17 Tue 1/31/17 Completed

54 F17011 S.8.2002 AECOM 61 days Mon 1/16/17 Mon 4/10/17Completed

55 F17025 S.1 HVAC Controls 54 days Mon 1/16/17 Thu 3/30/17 Completed

56 F17027 M.211 Fam RR 32 days Mon 1/16/17 Tue 2/28/17 Completed

24 15 7 29 20 12 3 25 16 10 1 23 15 6 28 20 11
ug 7, '1Sep 25, Nov 13, Jan 1, '17Feb 19, ' Apr 9, '1 May 28, Jul 16, '1

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

R&R Project Schedule Mon 5/22/17 11:32 AM

Page 3 R&R Project Schedule 05-17-2017.mpp

Project: R&R Project Schedule 0
Date: Mon 5/22/17

64



SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT 
Building Committee Meeting 

May 23, 2017 
 
Members Present:  Marie Flickinger, Dan Mims, Brad Hance, Keith Sinor 
 
Members Absent:  None  
 
Others Trustees Present:  None 
 
Others Present:  James Braswell, Bill Dowell, Ken English (AECOM), Jessica Garcia,  

Allatia Harris, Mike Harris, Joseph Hebert, Brenda Hellyer, Bryan Jones, 
Angela Klaus, Ann Kokx-Templet, Chet Lewis, Janet Slocum 

 
I. The meeting was called to order at 4:03 p.m. by committee chair, Marie Flickinger. 

 
II. Roll Call of Committee Members by Marie Flickinger 

a. Dan Mims, present.  
b. Brad Hance, present. 
c. Keith Sinor, present. 
d. Other Trustees present:  None 

  
III. Approval of Minutes from the March 21, 2017 Building Committee Meeting 

a. Marie Flickinger presented the minutes of the March 21, 2017 Building Committee 
meeting.  A motion was made by Keith Sinor to accept the minutes as presented.  This 
was seconded by Brad Hance.  The minutes were approved as presented. 

 
IV. Recommended Projects and Delivery Methods which will provide the best value to the College 

(Bond and Operating Funds) 

a. Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement and Design Services for the Central 
Campus Welcome Center Extended Site Development and Central Campus Central Plant 
Upgrades 

i. This request provides for approval of the Competitive Sealed Proposal (CSP) 
method for construction work and approval of ACR Engineering (ACR 
Engineering, Inc) to provide engineering design services for the Central Campus 
Welcome Center Extended Site Development project. 

ii. Additionally, approval was requested for the Competitive Sealed Proposal method 
for the Central Campus Central Plant Upgrade project and the selection of ACR 
Engineering to provide engineering design services.  

iii. The site utilities need to be modified to support construction of the new Central 
Campus Welcome Center. 
 

b. Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Engineering Services for North Campus 
Utility Tunnel Upgrades 

i. This request is for ACR Engineering to complete the design and engineering 
work for the renovation of the utility tunnel. This would also extend utility 
services to the possible Cosmetology and Culinary building site located where 
the old Lehr Library exists currently, should that site be selected.  Construction 
funding will not be committed before the new site location is identified. 

65



Building Committee Minutes 
May 23, 2017 
Page 2 
 

 
c. Consideration of Approval to Contract for North Campus Library Demolition 

i. This action requests approval of the recommended firm, JTB Services, to 
demolish the building and clear the former building site. The proposal came in 
under budget.   

ii. Ken English noted that although a final report for the geotechnical study has not 
been completed, nothing in the preliminary information would prohibit 
rebuilding on this site for future projects. A final report will be presented 
(anticipated at next meeting) to the Committee for further discussion and review.  
 

d. Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for South Campus 
Center for Engineering and Technology 

i. This request provides for consideration to approve the architect for design of the 
Engineering and Technology building. Kirksey Architects was recommended as 
the most qualified architect from the approved pool of firms. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

e. Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Direct Digital Controls Network Upgrades, 
Package I 

i.       This request provides funding approval for a project to improve the energy 
management system across all campuses of the College. This will be a phased 
project, similar to that project carried out in the 2008 Bond Program.  The 
proposed vendor is Siemens.  
 

       f.   Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Repair of HVAC Chiller at the South 
Campus 

i. Chiller Number 4 experienced an internal catastrophic failure.  The unit is 16 
years old. This proposed expenditure will provide for the overhaul of the chiller 
compressor, motor and associated equipment.  Additionally, the purchase will 
include an extended warranty.  The proposed overhaul would extend the life of the 
unit for another 10 – 15 years.  

 
                    Reports (reviewed and distributed in handout packet) 

 
f. Bond project financial, schedule and status reports are provided in the booklets for 

individual review.  
 

V. Project Updates 
 

a. North Campus - Chiller Replacement 
i. The North Campus Chiller Replacement project was substantially completed 

over Spring Break. The chiller system is working as intended.  The cooling tower 
system is to be cleaned beginning next week. 
 

b. Maritime Technology and Training Center 
i. All revisions to the Maritime Technology and Training Center have been 

completed.  
 

c. North Campus - Center for Industrial Technology 
i. This building was placed in service following Spring Break. We are working 

66



Building Committee Minutes 
May 23, 2017 
Page 3 
 

now on Testing and Air Balancing the HVAC systems. Systems commissioning 
will begin this week. We are also working on correcting Punch List items.  

ii. We are researching costs and necessary modifications for re-purposing the 
Logistics space into a Pipefitting Lab. Brenda indicated this was a retrofit that is 
needed based on workforce needs.  

 
d. Central Campus – Center for Petrochemical, Energy, & Technology 

i. The project is moving well.  The bid package is scheduled to be released June 6th 
for development of the GMP. We anticipate having the GMP package for the 
Building Committee to review in July, barring substantial budget differences.  
 

e. Standards Consolidation 
i. We are assuring all standards are current and consistent before presenting to the 

design consultants being used for the 2015 Bond Program. 
 

f. Central Campus - Stadium & Track Demolition 
i. This will be a piece of the Welcome Center Extended Site Development project 

and more information will be provided at Building Committee meetings in the 
coming months. 
 

g. Direct Digital Control (DDC) Network Upgrades 
i. Information previously presented with the Board action item. 

 
h. Central Campus – Central Plant 

i. Information previously presented with the Board action item. 
 

i. North Campus- Cosmetology & Culinary Center 
i. Architectural programming is progressing well. 

 
j. North Campus- Former Lehr Library Demolition 

ii. Information previously presented with the Board action item. 
 

k. North Campus - Underground Utility Tunnel Renovations 
i. Information previously presented with the Board action item. 

 
l. South Campus - Cosmetology 

i. Architectural programing is progressing well.  
 

m. South Campus Longenecker Renovation 
i. We are working on the Early College High School program in addition to the 

general building renovation plan. 
 

n. South Campus - Bruce Student Center 
i. The Bruce Student Center Phase I demolition has concluded and construction 

will begin soon.  This project is working as planned with some issues requiring 
resolution, as noted in city building inspections. 
 

o. South Campus – HVAC Tech Renovation 
i. As noted in the March 2017 Building Committee meeting, this project has 

67



Building Committee Minutes 
May 23, 2017 
Page 4 
 

changed.  The old auto body & painting building will be repurposed into an 
HVAC Technology building. 

 
VI. Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 4:53 p.m. 

68



  
San Jacinto College District 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
May 23, 2017 

 
Members Present:  Dan Mims, John Moon, Ruede Wheeler, and Larry Wilson 
 
Members Absent:  None 
 
Other Trustees Present: None 
 
Others Present:  Lori Barbay, Brenda Hellyer, Chet Lewis, and Linda Torres 
 

I. The meeting was called to order at 5:03 p.m. by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Committee 
Chairman. Roll call of Committee members was taken.  

• Dan Mims, present. 
• John Moon, present. 
• Larry Wilson, present. 

 
II. Approval of Minutes from the March 21, 2017, Finance Committee Meeting 

• Ruede Wheeler presented the minutes from the March 21, 2017, Finance 
Committee Meeting.  A motion was made by Larry Wilson, seconded by John 
Moon, to accept the minutes as presented. 
 

III. Review and Discuss Internal Audit Follow-Up Assessment and Audits 
• Linda Torres, Director of Internal Audit, reviewed and discussed the Small 

Business Development Center Departmental Audit and the Meningitis 
Vaccination Compliance Audit. 

• Small Business Development Center (SBDC) Departmental Audit 
i. Leave forms for at least two fiscal years were not consistently submitted to 

the Payroll Department, resulting in employees not utilizing leave 
balances for time taken off.  Internal Audit recommended that an 
independent reconciliation of leave time should be performed monthly, to 
include documented confirmations of leave time taken for each month. 

ii. There is a lack of documented departmental procedures for the 
department.  It is recommended SBDC develop and maintain a written 
procedures manual. 

iii. The backup copies of SBDC grant performance reports are stored on the 
local C: drive of an administrative employee’s computer.  It is 
recommended that SBDC store pertinent data on backed-up College server 
drives such as the G: drive. 

iv. Some employees have access to Banner applications that do not appear to 
align with their job duties.  It is recommended that Banner access be 
reviewed to include only forms necessary to perform normal job functions. 

v. SBDC did not meet two out of six key performance measures defined by 
FY 2016 grant agreements.  It is recommended that SBDC continue to 
focus on meeting key performance measures as defined by the grant 
agreements.   
Dr. Hellyer explained to the committee that the SBDC consults small 
businesses and assists them with getting loans.  The department is funded 
from two separate sources; 50% of funding is through the College and 
50% is through a sub-recipient partnership with the University of Houston.   

• Meningitis Vaccination Compliance Audit 69



Finance Committee Minutes 
May 23, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

i. Ms. Torres explained the audit was performed to ensure the College was 
in compliance with the Texas Education Code statute requiring student 
Meningitis vaccinations. 

ii. It was noted that 27 out of 29,828 students in the population were 
incorrectly flagged as “age exempt” 

iii. Selections from a sample selected noted that 4 students out of 107 sampled 
had no documentation on file (2 had a Banner record indicating a 
vaccination status, 2 had no vaccination status); and additional 4 students 
out of 107 sampled had expired waivers on file. 

iv. Records Management will work with Information Technology Services 
(ITS) to create a report to identify students with any issues identified in 
the audit.  It is the hope that a continued audit of these issues can be 
combined into one report, such as an Argos report, to make review of the 
data issues easier to process on a regular basis.  It is the thought at this 
time that the report will be reviewed weekly to quickly identify problems 
and get them resolved. 

v. Dr. Hellyer explained to the committee that beginning in the fall 2017 the 
College will develop a pilot program that will include the Meningitis 
vaccination cost in the fees charged to the students.  A healthcare 
contractor will administer the immunization on site to those students 
needing the vaccination. 

  
IV. Review and Discuss Board of Trustees Bylaws Revisions 

• Dr. Hellyer shared and reviewed the revisions to the Board of Trustees Bylaws.  
The copy of the bylaws with the “track changes” indicated recommendations 
and/or changes made by both legal and the College administrators.  Some changes 
were then altered accordingly to align with the College’s philosophy. 

• These bylaws will be an action item on the June 5, 2017, Board of Trustees 
agenda.  

 
V. Review and Discuss Delinquent Tax Attorney for Chambers County Only 

• Mr. Lewis informed the committee of Chambers County’s request to have 
documentation signed for delinquent tax collection related to a single parcel of 
property.  The College has a portion of a property near the Houston Yacht Club 
that generates about $1,200 a year in tax revenue with an estimated value of 
approximately $600,000.  It was noted that Daniel Snooks is the College’s 
contracted delinquent tax attorney and will continue to provide these service 
related to the noted property in Chambers County and no action is necessary at 
this time. 
  

VI. Adjourned at 5:31 p.m. 
 

70



Action Item “X” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Oath of Office Administered to Recently Elected Trustees 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
No administrative recommendation required. The Oath of Office will be administered to re-
elected Trustee Dr. Ruede Wheeler for Trustee Position Two (2) and newly elected Trustee 
Mrs. Erica Davis Rouse for Trustee Positions One (1).  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with Texas Election Code Section 3.004(b), the Board of Trustees, on January 
30, 2017, authorized the execution of an Order for Election of San Jacinto Community 
College District Trustees for a six-year term for Trustee Position One (1) and Trustee 
Position Two (2). The election was scheduled to be held on May 6, 2017, with candidates 
filing from January 18, 2017 through February 17, 2017. The eligible candidates who filed 
for Position 1 were Mr. Rick Guerrero and Mrs. Erica Davis Rouse and for Position 2 was 
incumbent Dr. Ruede Wheeler.     
 
The election occurred on May 6, 2017. On May 17, 2017, a special Board meeting was held 
whereby the Board of Trustees, approved an Order Canvassing returns and declaring results 
of the election. Mrs. Erica Davis Rouse was declared the winner for Trustee Position One (1) 
and incumbent Dr. Ruede Wheeler retained Trustee Position Two (2).  
 
The candidates will be sworn into their elected positions on, June 5, 2017, which is after the 
official canvassing date.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
 
None 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Each new trustee will complete the following: 
Attachment 1 – Statement of Elected/Appointed Officer, Erica Davis Rouse   
Attachment 2 – Statement of Elected/Appointed Officer, Ruede M. Wheeler  
Attachment 3 – Oath of Office, Erica Davis Rouse  
Attachment 4 – Oath of Office, Ruede M. Wheeler 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer  281-998-6100  brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu  

71

mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1 
 

STATEMENT OF ELECTED/APPOINTED 
OFFICER 

 
 (Pursuant to Tex. Const. art. XVI, '1(b), amended 2002) 
 
 
I, Erica Davis Rouse, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I have not directly or indirectly 
paid offered, permitted to pay, contributed or promised to contribute any money or thing 
of value, or promised any public office or employment for the giving or withholding of a 
vote at the election of which I was elected or as a reward to secure any appointment or 
confirmation, whichever the case may be, so help me God. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Erica Davis Rouse 

 
 
Board of Trustees Position One (1)   Harris County, Texas 
San Jacinto Community College District   

  
 
 
SWORN TO and subscribed before me by the Erica Davis Rouse on this 5th day of  
June, 2017. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 

 
 

72



Attachment 2 
 

STATEMENT OF ELECTED/APPOINTED 
OFFICER 

 
 (Pursuant to Tex. Const. art. XVI, '1(b), amended 2002) 
 
 

I, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I have not directly or 
indirectly paid offered, permitted to pay, contributed or promised to contribute any money 
or thing of value, or promised any public office or employment for the giving or 
withholding of a vote at the election of which I was elected or as a reward to secure any 
appointment or confirmation, whichever the case may be, so help me God. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 

 
 
Board of Trustees Position Two (2)   Harris County, Texas 
San Jacinto Community College District     
 
 
SWORN TO and subscribed before me by the Dr. Ruede Wheeler on this 5th day of  
June, 2017. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 

 
 

73



Attachment 3 
 

In the name and by the authority of  
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 

OATH OF OFFICE 
 
 
 
 
I, Erica Davis Rouse, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will faithfully execute the duties 
of the office of Position No. 1 on the Board of Trustees of San Jacinto Community College 
District of the State of Texas and will to the best of my ability preserve, protect, and defend 
the Constitution and laws of the United States and of this State so help me God. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Erica Davis Rouse 

 
SWORN TO and subscribed before me by the Affiant on this 5th day of June, 2017. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 
 

74



Attachment 4 
 

In the name and by the authority of  
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 

OATH OF OFFICE 
 
 
 
 
I, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will faithfully execute the duties 
of the office of Position No. 2 on the Board of Trustees of San Jacinto Community College 
District of the State of Texas and will to the best of my ability preserve, protect, and defend 
the Constitution and laws of the United States and of this State so help me God. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 

 
SWORN TO and subscribed before me by the Affiant on this 5th day of June, 2017. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 
 

75



Action Item “XI” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of  
Election of Officers for the Board of Trustees 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the election of officers for 
the Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with Texas Education Code Section 130.082(d), Officers of the Board shall be 
elected at the first regular meeting of the Board of Trustees following the regular election of 
Board members. 
 
The Board shall be authorized to elect the following officers: 
 

• Chair 
• Vice Chair 
• Secretary 
• Assistant Secretary 

 
Following the May 9, 2015, unopposed Board Election, the Board of Trustees elected the 
current officers of the Board at the regular Board Meeting held on June 1, 2015. The current 
officers are: Dan Mims, Chair; Larry Wilson, Vice Chair; John Moon, Jr., Secretary; and 
Keith Sinor, Assistant Secretary.  
 
A Board election for Trustee Positions 1 and 2 was held on May 6, 2017. The votes were 
canvassed on May 17, 2017 and Mrs. Erica Davis Rouse and Dr. Ruede Wheeler were 
elected to Trustee Positions 1 and 2, respectively. The newly elected trustees will be sworn in 
on June 5, 2017 and the officers should be elected thereafter.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION  
 
None 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
According to the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, Officers are elected for two year terms.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Slate of Officers 
The Trustees will propose a slate of Officers on June 5, 2017. 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer  281-998-6100  brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu  
 
 

76

mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu


Action Item “XI” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of  
Election of Officers for the Board of Trustees 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 
 

1. Chair       ______________________________ 
 
 

2. Vice Chair       _____________________________ 
 
 

3. Secretary ______________________________ 
 
 

4. Assistant Secretary ______________________ 

77



Action Item “XII” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget 
 for Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants 

 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve an amendment to the 2016-
2017 budget for restricted revenue and expenses related to grants. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Federal, state, and local grants may require amendments for receipt of newly awarded grants or 
changes to existing grants. These amendments should be processed in a timely manner in order 
to provide the access to funding to meet the objectives set forth within the grant requirements. 
This budget amendment request includes the additions to restricted revenues and restricted 
expenses as a result of new awards and changes to existing grants received during the month of 
May, 2017. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of the budget amendment will allow the College’s staff to implement the programs in 
accordance with the requirements of funded award amounts. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
Restricted revenues and restricted expenses will each be increased by $1,980,000 so the net 
impact on the College budget is zero.   
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The Office of Grants Management provides continuous monitoring of grant operations, which 
are included in the annual financial report to the Board of Trustees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-06-05-17 
Attachment 2- Grant Detail-06-05-17 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chet Lewis   281-998-6306  chet.lewis@sjcd.edu  
Michael Lee Moore  281-998-6162    michael.moore@sjcd.edu  

78

mailto:chet.lewis@sjcd.edu
mailto:michael.moore@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-06-05-17

Amount
Debit

Fund Org. Account Prog. (Credit)

Integraph Power, Process, & Marine – CADWorx computer-aided plant design software grant (New Grant)
Local Grant Revenue 570017 56700 554300 110000 (1,980,000)      
Lab-Comp Sup-Software/Lic/Maint Agr. 570017 56700 711233 420300 1,980,000       

-                      

Net Increase (Decrease) -$                    

Note: Credits to revenues are increases and credits to expenses are decreases.
Conversely, debits to revenue are decreases and debits to expenses are increases.

New Grant and Additional Funding Summary by Agency:
Integraph Power, Process, & Marine, Inc. 1,980,000   

1,980,000$ 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
 Federal, State, and Local Grant Amendments

June 5, 2017

79



June 5, 2017 Board Book – Grant Amendments Detail List 
 
Integraph Power, Process, & Marine – CADWorx computer-aided plant design software grant 
(New Grant) 
The Intergraph Power, Process & Marine Education Grant is an initiative to prepare educators 
and launch students fully equipped into the process technology, power, and marine industries. It 
is designed to introduce and stimulate the use of life cycle engineering software at educational 
institutions with strong marine and/or plant-oriented engineering programs. Early access to 
leading technology ensures that students are better educated and highly qualified to become the 
industry's future leaders.  Intergraph CADWorx Plant Design Suite is an integrated, complete 
AutoCAD®-based software series for plant design that provides intelligent drawing and database 
connectivity, advanced levels of automation, and drafting tools.  San Jacinto College is the 
recipient of this software grant.  Institutional responsibilities involve professional development 
of staff to train students.  This is the second grant from Integraph to San Jacinto College. 
 

  Attachment 2- Grant Detail-06-05-17 
 
 

80



Action Item “XIII” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of the Board of Trustees Bylaws 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the updated Board of Trustees 
Bylaws.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Board of Trustees operates and functions in accordance with State and Federal statutes. The 
Board of Trustees developed its Bylaws to provide guidance, direction, and clarification on 
specific functions of the Board. The bylaws of the Board have been in place for many years with 
periodic revisions.  
 
A thorough and detailed review of the Bylaws was conducted during 2017. The changes in the 
Bylaws were reviewed with the members of the Board at several workshops. Trustees Dan 
Mims and Keith Sinor were also assigned to review all proposed changes and make 
recommendations. A legal review was also conducted.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The proposed Bylaws reflect the Board’s internal governance structure and philosophies. The 
updated Bylaws clarify representation and elections, specify duties and responsibilities, 
establish a statement of ethics and conduct, outline the processes for election and role of 
officers, and define committee assignments. The Bylaws also highlight the meeting structure 
and order, including processes for hearing of citizens. Additionally, the Bylaws define the 
Chancellor’s role as Chief Executive Officer and establish how amendments or revisions can be 
made.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
There are no budgetary implications.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
A review of the Board’s Bylaws will be completed regularly.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Current Bylaws 
Attachment 2 – Proposed Bylaws  
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Brenda Hellyer  281-998-6100   brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu  

81

mailto:brenda.hellyer@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1 
 

To hold the office of Trustee in The San Jacinto Community College District, one must: 

1. Be a qualified voter. 
2. Take the oath of office. 
3. Serve without compensation. 
4. Reside in one of the independent school districts comprising The San Jacinto Community College 

District; to wit, Channelview, Deer Park, Galena Park, La Porte, Pasadena, or Sheldon. 

 
An individual seeking election to the office of Trustee by having his or her name placed on the ballot must 
have been a resident of the state for 12 months, and a resident of the district for six months, prior to the 
last date on which the candidate could file to be listed on the ballot. An individual seeking election in the 
office of Trustee by write-in vote must have been a resident of the state for 12 months, and a resident of 
the district for six months, prior to the day of the election. An individual appointed to the office of Trustee 
must have been a resident of the state for 12 months, and a resident of the district for six months, prior to 
the day on which the appointment is made. 
 
Election of Trustees shall be at large by position and either two or three Trustees shall be elected at each 
election, the number of Trustees depending upon that required to constitute a Board of seven to serve 
terms of six years. 
 
A candidate for any position may have his or her name printed on a ballot for election to any position to 
be filled at each regular election by filing a written statement, signed by the candidate, with the secretary 
of the Board not later than 5 p.m. of the 61st day before the day of the election. An application may not be 
filed earlier than the 30th day before the date of the filing deadline. The application must state the number 
of the position for which the candidate is filing or the name of the incumbent member of the Board holding 
the position sought. The application shall include all statutorily required information, including a statement 
that the candidate is aware of the nepotism law. The location on the ballot of the names of the candidate 
for each position shall be chosen by lot. The candidate shall be eligible to run for only one position in 
each election. 
 
Before a candidate can have his or her name placed on the ballot, he or she must execute and have 
notarized the loyalty oath. 
 
A candidate shall not take any affirmative action to influence a district employee or current Trustee 
regarding the appointment, reappointment, employment, confirmation, re-employment, changes in status, 
compensation, or dismissal of a person related to the candidate within a prohibited degree of relationship 
under the nepotism law. However, this prohibition does not apply to a candidate's actions taken with 
respect to a bona fide class or category of employees or prospective employees. 
 
Candidates for the Board shall file the designation of a campaign treasurer and all required financial 
statements with the Secretary of the Board in accordance with applicable law and directives from the 
Texas Ethics Commission. 
 
The election of Trustees of the district shall be on the second Saturday in May in odd numbered years. 
The notice of election shall be given by publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation, at least 
ten days prior to the date of election, stating forth the date of the election, the polling place or places, the 
numbers or the positions to be filled, the candidates for each position, and any other matters deemed 
necessary or advisable. 
 
The district shall cooperate with the commissioner’ court in ensuring that each polling place is accessible 
to and usable by the elderly and physically handicapped by the statutory deadlines for elections. The 
Board shall provide for early voting in Board elections as provided by law. 
 

1 
 

82



Attachment 1 
 

The Board, being subject to the provisions of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, shall not hold an election that 
implements any changes affecting elections until clearance is obtained from the U.S. Justice 
Department. Requests for clearance shall be submitted as soon as possible after enactment. 
 
The winning candidate for any position shall obtain a simple majority of the votes cast. If no candidate 
receives a simple majority of the votes cast for all candidates for a position, then the two candidates 
receiving the highest number of votes shall run against each other for the position. The runoff election for 
all positions shall be held according to the provisions of Section 2.025 of the Election Code and shall be 
ordered, notice given, and held, as for regular elections. 
 
Upon election, the Trustee shall take the official oath of office, and file it with the chairman of the 
Board. The oath may be administered and a certificate of the fact given by: 
 
A judge, clerk, or commissioner of any court of record. 

1. A notary public. 
2. A justice of the peace. 
3. The Secretary of State of Texas. 
4. An employee of the Secretary of State of Texas who has duties related to the records required by 

Chapter 14, Texas Election Code, as amended. 
5. A member of the State Legislature. 

Any vacancy occurring on the board through death, resignation, or otherwise, shall be filled by a special 
election order by the board or by appointment by resolution or order of the board. A person appointed to 
fill a vacancy in the representation of the district at large must be a resident of the district at large. The 
person appointed to fill the unexpired term shall serve until the next regular election of members to the 
board, at which time the position shall be filled by election for a term appropriately shortened to conform 
to what regularly would have been the length of the term for that position. 
 
A person elected to serve as a Board member must remain a resident of the district throughout the term 
of office. A Board member who ceases to reside in the district vacates his or her office. 
 
Texas law provides for the removal of Board members only for cause, including incompetence, official 
misconduct, intoxication on or off duty caused by drinking an alcoholic beverage (but not if it was caused 
by drinking such beverage on the direction and prescription of a licensed practitioner), or conviction by 
jury for any felony or for misdemeanor official misconduct (including conviction of an offense relating to 
the violation of college purchasing procedures). Actions for removal of Board members must be brought 
before the judge of the district court holding jurisdiction, except that any court convicting a Trustee of a 
felony or official misconduct shall order immediate removal. 
 
Statement of Ethics 
 
As a member of the Board, I will strive to improve community college education, and to that end I shall 
adhere to the following ethical standards: 

1. Attend all regularly scheduled Board meetings insofar as possible, and become informed concerning 
issues to be considered at those meetings. 

2. Bring about desired changes through legal and ethical procedures, upholding and enforcing all 
applicable statutes, regulations, and court decisions pertaining to community colleges. 

3. Work with other Board members to establish effective Board policies and to delegate authority for the 
administration of the colleges to the Chief Executive Officer. 

2 
 

83



Attachment 1 
 

4. Work with other Board members to establish effective policies and practices prohibiting unlawful 
discrimination, including conduct that constitutes sexual harassment. 

5. Recognize that I should endeavor to make policy decisions only after full discussion at publicly held 
Board meetings. 

6. Render all decisions based on the available facts and my independent judgment, and refuse to 
surrender that judgment to individuals or special interest groups. 

7. Encourage the free expression of opinion by all Board members, and seek systematic 
communications between Board and students, staff, and all elements of the community. 

8. Communicate to other Board members and the Chief Executive Officer expressions of public reaction 
to Board policies and college programs. 

9. Inform myself about current educational issues by individual study and through participation in 
programs providing needed information, such as those sponsored by the American Association of 
Community Colleges and the Association of Community College Trustees. 

10. Support the employment of those persons best qualified to serve as college staff, and insist on a 
regular and impartial evaluation of all staff. 

11. Avoid being placed in a position of conflict of interest, and refrain from using my Board position for 
personal or partisan gain. In addition to filing disclosures required by the Texas Ethics Commission 
under Texas state law, a Board member who has a personal or private interest in a measure, 
proposal, or decision pending before the Board shall publicly disclose the fact to the Board, and that 
disclosure shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting. The Board member may not vote or 
otherwise participate in the decision. 

12. Take no private action that will compromise the Board or administration, and respect the 
confidentiality of information that is privileged under applicable law. 

13. Remember always that my first and greatest concern must be the educational welfare of the students 
attending the college. 

Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest 
 
As a member of the Board, I will strive to uphold those standards of conduct for state officers and 
employees and agree not to: 

1. Accept or solicit any gift, favor, or service that might reasonably tend to influence the officer or 
employee in the discharge of official duties or that the officer or employee knows or should know is 
being offered with the intent to influence the officer’s or employee’s official misconduct; 

2. accept another employment or engage in a business or professional activity that the officer or 
employee might reasonably expect would require or induce the officer or employee to disclose 
confidential information acquired by reason of the official position; 

3. accept other employment or compensation that could reasonably be expected to impair the officer’s 
or employee’s independence of judgment in the performance of the officer’s or employee’s official 
duties; 

4. make personal investments that could reasonably be expected to create a substantial conflict 
between the officer’s or employee’s private interest and the public interest; or 

3 
 

84



Attachment 1 
 

5. intentionally or knowingly solicit, accept, or agree to accept any benefit for having exercised the 
officer’s or employee’s official powers or performed the officer’s or employee’s official duties in favor 
of another. 

Article I 

The following rules and regulations shall constitute the Bylaws of The San Jacinto College District and 
shall govern the Board of Trustees and the officials of the college. 

Article II 

Section 1: Election of Officers 
 
The election of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and Assistant Secretary shall take place at the 
first meeting of the Board of Trustees after the Board of Trustees election or subsequent run-off 
election of each election year or immediately after a vacancy occurs in any of the positions. 
 
Section 2 
 
As far as practical, the Board of Trustees will perform its work as a committee of the whole. 
 
Section 3: 
 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees on authorization by the 
Board of Trustees. Such committees shall perform specific duties and when the work of the committee 
has been completed, the committee shall be automatically discharged. The function of all such special 
committees shall be fact-finding and advisory, but never legislative or administrative. No committee shall 
have power to act unless specifically empowered by the Board of Trustees. If empowered to act, the 
committee shall report its action to the Board of Trustees at its next regular meeting. 
 
Section 4: Powers and Duties of the Chairman 
 
The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees; enforce the Bylaws; 
sign all contracts duly authorized by the Board of Trustees; countersign all warrants drawn on the funds of 
the college which have been duly authorized by the Board of Trustees ; appoint all committees not 
otherwise provided for, of which he and the chief executive officer of the college shall be ex-officio 
members; and perform such other duties as may be required by law or imposed by the Board of Trustees. 
The Chairman shall be entitled to vote on all matters coming before the Board of Trustees. 
 
Section 5: Duties of the Vice Chairman 
 
In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall act in his place. 
 
Section 6: Powers and Duties of the Secretary 
 
The Secretary shall keep a record of the Board of Trustees’ meeting in a book provided for that purpose; 
sign all warrants drawn on the college funds that have been duly authorized. The books, papers and 
records of the Secretary shall be the property of the Board of Trustees, under the custody of the chief 
executive officer of the college and shall be opened to inspection on request of any citizen. 
 
It shall be the duty of the Secretary to record the vote of all members present on an action taken by the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
In the absence of the Chairman and Vice Chairman, the Secretary shall call the meeting to order and act 
as President Pro-Tem. 

4 
 

85



Attachment 1 
 

 
Section 7: Duties of the Assistant Secretary 
 
The Assistant Secretary shall act as Secretary in the absence of the Secretary. 
 
Section 8: Regular Meeting 
 
A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the first Monday of each month, at such hour 
and place as the Chairman of the Board of Trustees may designate, provided such regular meetings may 
be recessed or changed from time to time as the Board of Trustees may direct. 
 
Section 9: Special Meetings 
 
Special meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held upon call of the Chairman. The purpose of the 
special meeting shall be indicated at the time the special meeting is called. Written notice of all special 
meetings including dates of such meetings shall be given to all members, whenever possible. Such 
special meeting may be called without written notice by majority vote of the Board of Trustees when in a 
regular meeting or a duly called special meeting. 
 
Section 10: Official Business 
 
All official business of the Board of Trustees shall be transacted at regular or special meetings of the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
Section 11: Closed or Executive Sections. Convene in Opening Meeting. 
 
Closed or executive sessions will not be held unless the Board of Trustees has first convened in an 
opening meeting for which notice has been given. If, during the open meeting, a closed or executive 
session is necessary, the presiding officer of the Board of Trustees shall announce that a closed or 
executive session will be held in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code (the Open 
Meetings law) which authorizes the holdings of such closed or executive session, including, but not 
limited to: 
 
Section 551.071 - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board's attorney on any or all 
subjects or matters authorized by law. 
 
Section 551.072 and 551.073 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of 
real property and negotiated contracts for prospective gifts or donations. 
 
Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or 
charges against a public officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.075 - Nothing in this Act shall be construed to require a quorum of the members of a 
governmental body to confer with an employee or employees of the governmental body in an open 
meeting where such conference is for the sole purpose of receiving information from the employee or 
employees; provided, however, that no discussion of public business or agency policy that affects public 
business shall take place between the members of the governmental body during the conference. 
 
Section 551.076 - To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security 
personnel or devices. 
 
Section 551.083 - For the purpose of considering the standards, guidelines, terms or conditions the 
Board will follow, or instruct its representatives to follow, in consultation with representatives of employee 
groups in connection with consultation agreements provided for by Section 13.901 of the Texas 
Education Code 4. 

5 
 

86



Attachment 1 
 

 
Section 551.084 - For the purpose of excluding witness or witnesses from hearing during examination of 
another witness. 
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the Board with regard to 
any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or session, then such final action, final 
decision or final vote shall be at either: 
 
A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of this public meeting, or 
 
B. At the subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board shall determine. 

XIII. Reconvene In Open Meeting 
 
Consider items discussed in Executive Session. (Those listed under Executive Session in this Notice.) 
 
XIV. Adjournment 
 
Section 12: Hearing of Citizens on Agenda Items 
 
The Chairman of the Board of Trustees will include in the agenda of that meeting an opportunity for 
members of the public to address the Board of Trustees on any items of business which are included in 
the agenda, provided the citizen files an application with the secretary to the Board prior to the meeting 
being called to order. The Board of Trustees reserves the right to fix such time limits on presentations as 
it deems appropriate to the occasion and may limit the number of spokesmen who appear before it in 
opposition or in support of a given issue. 
 
Section 13: Hearing from Citizens 
 
A citizen desiring to appear before the Board of Trustees shall complete the Application for Hearing 
before the Board of Trustees, The San Jacinto College District, and file said application along with any 
support information concerning the citizen's concern, complaint or commendation, with the secretary to 
the Chancellor, before the scheduled meeting is called to order. 
 
The time allotted each citizen or organization for presentation shall be no more than five minutes with an 
additional five minutes interaction with the Board of Trustees if needed for further clarification and better 
understanding of an issue. The total time for hearing of citizens shall be no more than 60 minutes at any 
one meeting. Should the speaker drift from the stated subject, he or she shall be given one warning; if a 
second warning is required, then the speaker shall forfeit the remaining time allotment. 
 
Because the policy of the college flows from the Board of Trustees acting as a whole and not from 
individual members of the Board of Trustees, administrators or faculty, citizens' remarks must be confined 
to activities pertaining to the college. Other than the additional five minutes allocated for interaction, 
members of the Board of Trustees and/or administration will not respond at the meeting. However, there 
will be follow-up and reply to each person, or arrangements made for the appropriate administrator to 
contact the speaker regarding the concern expressed, provided the necessary evidentiary documentation 
has been submitted. Should a citizen or representative of a delegation or an organization wish to use the 
time as a forum, documentation and evidence will not be required and an official response will not be 
made. 
 
Should any citizen wish to distribute a handout to the Board of Trustees or audience, this shall be done 
before or after the official Board of Trustees meeting and not during. 
 
While citizens are urged to bring school matters to the Board of Trustees, no speech shall be permitted 
on behalf of any person running for political office, and no such literature pertaining to any form of 
electioneering will be permitted during the meeting. 

6 
 

87



Attachment 1 
 

 
Presentation of matters concerning a complaint or charge against a San Jacinto College District 
employee or officer will be heard in closed session unless the individual who is the subject of the change 
or complaint requests a public hearing. 
 
Section 14: Quorum Necessary for Transaction of Business 
 
A quorum for the transaction of college business shall consist of a majority of the membership of the 
Board of Trustees; less than a quorum may adjourn to a specific time. 
 
Section 15: Order of Business 
 
The order of business for regular meetings of the Board of Trustees will include the following items: 

1. Call to order 
2. Invocation and pledge to the flag 
3. Special Recognition and/or Presentations 
4. Communications to the Board of Trustees 
5. Hearing of such citizens or groups of citizens desiring to be heard before the Board 
6. Informative reports to the Board, when applicable 
7. Action Items 
8. Consent Agenda (Any item placed on the Consent Agenda shall be removed and taken up as a 

separate matter, if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will be voted on 
with one (1) motion, including the approval of Minutes from previous Board Meetings and the setting 
of the next meeting 

9. Items for Discussion/Possible Action (Items removed from the Consent Agenda) 
10. Reports from Board Committees (when applicable) 
11. Strategic Issues Discussion 
12. Adjournment to Closed or Executive Session Pursuant to Sections 551.071 to 551.084 of Chapter 

551, the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code 
13. Reconvene in Open Meeting for Consideration of Items Discussed in Closed Session 
14. Adjournment 

Section 16: Rules of Order 
 
All business of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order, 
newly revised, unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws. 

Section 17: Duties of the Board of Trustees 
 
The chief duty of the Board of Trustees is to provide for the program and welfare of the college and to 
establish upon recommendation of the chief executive officer of the college, the policies which govern the 
college organization and operation. The Board of Trustees functions only when it is convened in 
meetings. An individual board member may speak for the Board of Trustees only when such authority has 
been delegated by the Board of Trustees. As a governing body, the Board of Trustees performs its duties 
as follows: 

1. It acts as a policy-making body and legislates to make these policies effective. 

7 
 

88



Attachment 1 
 

2. It acts as an appraisal body sitting in judgment upon recommendations that may come to it through 
the chief administrator or its members. 

3. Performs other duties authorized by law. 

Section 18: Employment of Chancellor 
 
The Board of Trustees shall employ a chief executive officer carrying the title of Chancellor. The term of 
employment for the Chancellor shall be for a term set at the discretion of the Board of Trustees at the 
time of employment, in accordance with the school laws of Texas, and at an annual salary of such 
amount as may be fixed by the Board of Trustees. The Board shall evaluate the performance of the 
Chancellor on an annual basis. 
 
In the event of a vacancy in the position of Chancellor of the college, the Board of Trustees shall employ 
a successor thereto at the earliest opportunity. 
 
Section 19: Employment of Auditor 
 
An independent auditor shall be employed who shall audit all accounts of the college and make his or her 
report to the Board of Trustees periodically, as directed by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Section 20: Additional Powers and Duties 

1. Establish goals consistent with the role and mission of the college. 
2. Shall insist on the clarity of focus and mission. 
3. Assist the Chancellor in the achievement of performance goals. 
4. Shall nurture the college to the end that the college achieves its full potential within its role and 

mission. 
5. Study and pass upon the budget. 
6. Study and pass upon recommendations of the Chancellor for additional capital outlay and determine 

the means of financing them. 
7. Employ or reject the personnel upon recommendation of the Chancellor. 
8. Pass upon major financial problems upon the recommendation of the Chancellor of the college. 
9. Pass upon architect's plans for building which have been authorized, after approval of the Chancellor 

of the college. 
10. With the assistance of the Chancellor, determine current needs of the college and give active support 

to them before the public and the press. 
11. Approve the expenditures previously authorized by the Board of Trustees and approved by the 

Chancellor. 
12. Act as a body of final appeal for college personnel and the public in cases which may be appealed 

from the decision of the Chancellor of the college. 
13. Fill vacancies of the Board of Trustees created by death or resignation in accordance with laws of the 

state of Texas. 
14. Approve fees and tuition in accordance with statutory requirements. 
15. Approve the transfer of funds from one account to another. 
16. Approve the program of instruction as recommended by the Chancellor. 

Perform other duties and functions as provided by applicable laws or regulations. 

8 
 

89



Attachment 1 
 

Article III 

Section 1: 
 
The term "administration" shall apply to those officers who control and operate over the college as a 
whole, or over some administrative division of the college program. 
 
Section 2: The Chancellor as the Chief Executive Officer 
 
The chief responsibilities and powers of the Chancellor of the college shall include the following: 

1. The Chancellor shall attend all meetings of the Board unless excused from attendance. 
2. The Chancellor shall act as the chief professional advisor to the Board of Trustees in all matters 

pertaining to the educational and business policies of the college involving their organization and 
operation. 

3. The Chancellor shall have general charge over the educational and business matters of the college 
and overall persons employed therein. 

4. All educational and business employees of the college shall be under the direction of the Chancellor. 
He or she shall recommend such employees to the Board of Trustees for employment, as well as 
dismissal of such employees. 

5. The Chancellor shall report to the Board of Trustees from time to time at his discretion or upon 
request of the Board of Trustees on the educational and business affairs of the college. 

6. The Chancellor may call meetings of the faculty or other employees at such times as he or she 
deems necessary for professional training and consultation. 

7. The Chancellor shall investigate the needs of facilities for the college and make such 
recommendations to the Board of Trustees as will meet with these needs. 

8. The Chancellor shall prepare a carefully classified estimate of receipts and expenditures for the 
ensuing year and submit this proposal to the Board of Trustees within the dates prescribed by law. 

9. Within the limits of the budget approved by the Board of Trustees, the Chancellor shall have power to 
approve requisitions for purchases and expenditures for the operational program of the college. He or 
she may delegate this authority to another member of the administrative staff with approval of the 
Board of Trustees. It is understood that it is the policy of the Board of Trustees that at least three bids 
be taken on majority items in the budget before placing the order. However, in the case of capital 
outlay, the Board of Trustees must approve the bids before placing the order. 

10. The Chancellor shall recommend the transfer of funds from one account to another as conditions may 
require. The actual transfer will be made upon approval by the Board of Trustees. 

11. The Chancellor shall represent the college to its constituency, to the general public, and in 
educational groups. 

12. The Chancellor shall assist, as far as possible, in raising funds for the support of the college and its 
programs. 

13. The Chancellor is charged with the responsibility of maintaining amity and unity of purpose among all 
members of the teaching and administrative staff, the Board of Trustees, the alumni and the college 
constituency. 

14. The Chancellor shall recommend all trips involving students and other personnel which are 
specifically provided for in the budget. 

9 
 

90



Attachment 1 
 

Article IV 

These Bylaws may be altered or amended at any regular meeting of the Board of Trustees by the 
affirmative vote of four Trustees after 30 full days have passed after such amendment has been reduced 
to writing and filed with the Secretary of the Board of Trustees in a regular or special meeting. 
 
(Effective March 2, 1981. Revised February 3, 1992; August 7, 199; May 6, 1996; November 3, 1997, 
March 5, 2007) 

 

10 
 

91



Attachment 2 
 

San Jacinto Community College District  
Board of Trustees 

Bylaws 
 
The following rules and regulations shall constitute the Bylaws of the San Jacinto Community 
College District and shall govern the Board of Trustees and the officials of the College. 
References to Chair are in regards to the title of the officer position and not to the gender of the 
person holding the office. 
 

BOARD REPRESENTATION AND ELECTION  
The San Jacinto Community College District (College) Board of Trustees (Board) is comprised 
of seven members who are elected for six-year terms in accordance with State and Federal 
statutes. A candidate’s packet will be made available for interested parties based on the election 
order and the requirements of the Texas Election Code. 

To hold the office of Trustee for the College, one must: 

1. Be a qualified, registered voter according to the constitution and laws of the State of Texas. 
2. Take the oath of office. 
3. Serve without compensation. 
4. Be a resident, as defined by Texas Election Code §1.015 and applicable law, of one of the 

independent school districts (ISDs) comprising the San Jacinto Community College Taxing 
District (College Taxing District) which includes: Channelview, Deer Park, Galena Park, La 
Porte, Pasadena, or Sheldon and the certain areas of Clear Creek, Humble, and Pearland ISDs 
that are in the College Taxing District.  

A person elected to serve as a Board member must remain a resident of the College Taxing 
District throughout the term of office. A Board member who ceases to reside in the College 
Taxing District vacates his or her office. 

Regularly scheduled elections are held on the uniform election date in May in odd numbered 
years.  The election of Trustees shall be at large by position, and regularly scheduled elections 
shall typically be for two or three Trustees for staggered terms of Trustee positions. A special 
election to fill a Board vacancy shall be conducted in the same manner as the College’s general 
election except as may be provided by applicable provisions of the Texas Elections Code.  
Election of Trustees shall include the number of Trustee positions required to constitute a Board 
of seven members to serve terms of six years. The Board of Trustees will order the election 
according to Texas Election Code.  

The winning candidate for any position shall obtain a majority of the votes cast in the election 
for the position. If no candidate receives a majority of the votes cast for all candidates for a 
position, then the two candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall run against each 

1 
 

92



Attachment 2 
 

other for the position. The runoff election for all positions shall be held according to the Texas 
Election Code and shall be ordered, notice given, and held, as for regular elections except as 
otherwise provided by statute. 

Upon election, the Trustee shall take the official oath of office, and file it with the Chair of the 
Board. The oath may be administered and a certificate of the fact given by an authorized person 
under Section 602.002 of the Government Code. 

Any vacancy occurring on the Board through death, resignation, or otherwise, shall be filled by 
either a special election ordered by the Board to be held on the next uniform election date, or by 
appointment through a resolution of the Board.   

If, upon determining that a vacancy exists, the Board of Trustees determines that it would like to 
consider filling the vacated Trustee position by appointment, the following procedures will 
apply: 

 

1. The Board shall provide public notice of the vacancy to the public.  
2. The Board shall determine the period for responding to the announcement, with the 

recommended time being at least two weeks and a definitive deadline will be 
established.  

3. Persons interested in being appointed to the Board shall submit a resume, 
supplemental documents, and a completed standard application form demonstrating 
that he/she is a resident of the College Taxing District to the Chancellor of the 
College.  

4. The Board of Trustees shall review the resumes, supporting documents, and 
application form of the applicants and may select a number of candidates to be 
interviewed.  

5. The Board of Trustees shall interview candidates and may make a selection for a 
candidate or candidates to be brought forward for a vote of the Board.  

6. In order for a recommended candidate to move forward as an appointed Trustee, an 
affirmative vote of at least 80 percent of all members of the Board of Trustees will be 
required in the form of a Board resolution.  

    

The person appointed to fill the unexpired term shall serve until the next regular election of 
members to the Board, at which time the position shall be filled by election for a term 
appropriately shortened to conform to what regularly would have been the length of the term for 
that position if the term has not otherwise expired. 

Board members may be removed from office in accordance to Texas Const., Art. V, §24, Texas 
Local Government Code §§87.011-87.013, Texas Education Code §44.032, and Texas Education 
Code §130.0845. 

 
BOARD DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
The chief duty of the Board is to provide for the program and welfare of the College and to honor 
the College’s governance structure. In this regard, the Board:  

2 
 

93



Attachment 2 
 

 
1. Is expected to preserve the institutional independence and to defend its right to manage its 

own affairs through its administrators and employees.  
2. Shall enhance the public image of the College. 
3. Shall interpret the community to the College and interpret the College to the community.  
4. Shall nurture the College to achieve its full potential within its role and mission.  
5. Shall establish and periodically review the Vision and Mission statements and core values 

of the College.  
6. Shall establish the College’s strategic plan and goals consistent with the vision and mission 

of the College and its focus on student success.  
7. Shall provide for financial resources to adequately support the College’s institutional goals; 

accordingly, the Board will approve and authorize the annual budget and amendments, 
tuition and fees, debt funding, tax rates, real estate transactions, major capital projects, and 
other significant financial items.   

8. Shall appoint the Chancellor (Chief Executive Officer) of the College, conduct periodic 
evaluations of the Chancellor’s performance, and approve the annual contract and 
compensation of the Chancellor.  

9. Shall establish upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the College, the policies which 
govern the organization and operation.  

10. Shall act as an appraisal body of judgment as recommendations may come to it through 
the administration.   

11. Shall perform other duties authorized by applicable laws or regulations.  

The Board possesses and exercises its authority and duties as a collective body and functions only 
when it is convened in meetings. Unless specifically authorized by prior action of the Board, no 
individual member may speak, obligate, or exercise authority in the name of the Board of Trustees.   
 
The Board functions within the framework of laws, court decisions, attorney general’s opinions, 
and similar mandates and restrictions from external sources. It performs functions as specified by 
applicable laws and regulations.  
 
The Board formulates policies and delegates to the Chancellor of the College the function of 
administering policies and regulations. The Board is not involved in administrative details, but the 
Board’s review of administrative procedures and regulations may be undertaken if necessary to 
the function of policy formulation. In the absences of appropriate policy, the Chancellor of the 
College may need to make decisions and exercise authority, but such actions are subject to 
subsequent review by the Board for determination as to the need for a policy statement.  
 
If citizens bring a concern or complaint to an individual Trustee, the Trustee shall refer the citizen 
to the College Chancellor, who shall proceed according to appropriate Board policy or College 
procedure. This does not restrict the Board member from bringing the concern or complaint to the 
Board of Trustees.  

3 
 

94



Attachment 2 
 

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT  

Each Trustee of the Board will strive to support the Vision and Mission statements and core 
values of the College and, to that end, shall adhere to the following standards:  

1. Attend and participate in all regularly scheduled Board meetings insofar as possible, and 
become well-informed concerning issues to be considered at those meetings. 

2. Bring about desired changes through legal and ethical procedures, upholding and enforcing 
all applicable statutes, regulations, and court decisions pertaining to community colleges. 

3. Work with other Board members to establish effective Board policies, delegate authority for 
the administration of the College to the Chancellor of the College, and act on behalf of the 
Board only with the official authorization of a majority of the members of the Board.  

4. Work with other Board members to establish effective policies and practices prohibiting 
unlawful discrimination including conduct that constitutes sexual harassment.  

5. Make policy decisions only after full discussion at publicly held Board meetings. 
6. Render all decisions based on the available facts and independent judgment, refuse to 

surrender that judgment to individuals or special interest groups, and abide by and uphold the 
final majority of the Board. 

7. Recognizing that the College adheres to the concepts of free speech and academic freedom, 
encourage the free expression of opinion by all Board members and seek systematic 
communications between Board and students, faculty, staff, administrators, and the 
community while refraining from communicating with any such parties in a way that could 
be interpreted as having any authority outside the meetings of the Board and refraining from 
any communications among a quorum of Board members outside of the Board meeting.  

8. Communicate to other Board members and the Chancellor of the College expressions of 
public reaction to Board policies and College programs. 

9. Become informed about current educational issues by individual study and through 
participation in programs providing needed information, such as those sponsored by State 
and National community college organizations.  

10. Support the employment of those persons best qualified to serve as College faculty, staff, and 
administrators; insist on a regular and impartial evaluation of all faculty, staff, and 
administrators; and respect the authority and responsibilities of College employees and 
external contractors to empower them to work without interference.  

11. Work with other Trustees and with the Chancellor in a spirit of harmony and cooperation and 
in a manner that creates and sustains mutual respect.  

12. Engage in no activity that could create a conflict of interest.  
13. Refrain from using the Board position for personal or partisan gain.  
14. Identify and disclose any actual or potential conflict of interest (according to Chapter 171 of 

the Texas Local Government Code), and act for the general public good regardless of 
personal relationships or business interests. 

15. Take no private action that will compromise the Board or administration, and respect the 
confidentiality of information that is privileged under applicable law, including all 
deliberations of the Board in Closed Sessions.  

4 
 

95



Attachment 2 
 

16. Remember always that the first and greatest concern must be the educational welfare of the 
students attending the College. 

17. Refrain from any attempt to influence any operational decision, including but not limited to 
individual admissions, personnel or purchasing decisions except when such is an issue at a 
Board meeting; and no Trustee shall have any communications about a grievance with any 
person with a pending grievance.  

The Board of Trustees shall have the authority to censure a Trustee who is found by the Board to 
have violated the Trustee’s duties, the Code of Ethics or any other provision of these Bylaws. In 
order for the Board to censure a Trustee, the Trustee must be found to have violated a specific 
statute or law or the Board Bylaws. Such a finding shall be made to the Board only after an 
investigation by the Board or the Board’s designee. The investigation must include an opportunity 
for the Board member to respond to the specific allegation(s) that the Trustee has breached.  A 
censure of a Trustee will require a super majority (two thirds) vote of all members of the Board of 
Trustees. For purposes of this provision, “censure” shall mean a reprimand of a person through 
means of a written order or resolution for specified conduct.  
 
OFFICERS 
The Board shall elect the following officers from among their members: a Chair, Vice Chair, 
Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and other officers as deemed necessary.  
 
The election of the officers shall take place at the first regular meeting of the Board of Trustees 
after the regular election of members of the Board of each election year or at any time thereafter 
in order to fill a vacancy. Election of officers shall occur immediately following the swearing in 
of those elected to the Board of Trustees. Officers of the Board shall be elected by a majority of 
the total membership of the Board.  
 
The term of office for each officer shall be two years with no limit as to the number of terms which 
may be served.  
 
The duties of the officers shall be as follows:  

1. The Chair of the Board  
a. Presides at all meetings of the Board of Trustees. 
b. Enforces the Bylaws.  
c. Signs official contracts and documents as required by statute or Board policy.  
d. Recommends the appointment of all Board committees and chairpersons.  
e. Performs such other duties as may be required by law or imposed by the Board 

of Trustees.  
f. Shall be entitled to vote on all matters coming before the Board of Trustees. 

 
2. Vice Chair of the Board  

5 
 

96



Attachment 2 
 

a. Performs the duties of the Chair in the absence of the Chair.  
b. Performs such other duties as may be required by law or imposed by the Board 

of Trustees.  
 

3. Secretary  
a. Serves as the official custodian of the minutes, books, records, and seal of the 

Board. 
b. Presides at the meetings in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair 
c. Signs official contracts and documents as required by statute or Board policy.  
d. Performs such other duties as may be required by law or imposed by the Board 

of Trustees.  
 
          4. Assistant Secretary  

a. Shall act as Secretary in the absence of the Secretary. 
 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND LIAISON POSITIONS 
The Board of Trustees will perform its work as a committee of the whole, and all official actions 
of the Board shall occur at properly noticed meetings.  However, the Board may establish standing 
or special committees to engage in review and discussion on behalf of the full Board. Committees 
should engage in activities which encompass the authority of the Board so that the work of the 
committee enhances the productivity and efficiency of the full Board. The Chair of the Board of 
Trustees may recommend and establish committees with the authorization of the Board of 
Trustees.   
 
The Board of Trustees includes two regular standing committees. The committees are: 

1. Building Committee: The Building Committee may  receive and review 
recommendations prior to recommending actions to the Board of Trustees for master 
planning and developing, including facility and infrastructure needs assessment, 
construction, and other capital improvement projects, budget requirements, bids and 
awarding contracts, major change orders, and acceptance of completed projects.  

2. Finance Committee: The Finance Committee may receive and review 
recommendations prior to recommending actions to the Board of Trustees for the 
annual audit report, investment policy changes and strategies, budget assumptions and 
updates, debt analysis, revenue and expense analysis, procurement recommendations, 
and other fiscal strategies and impacts.  The Finance Committee also reviews the 
action plan, audit reports, and other recommendations from the College’s Internal 
Audit Department.  

 
The term of each standing committee will be for two years with no limit as to the number of terms 
which may be served.  Committee appointments shall occur following the appointment of the 
Officers of the Board of Trustees.  

6 
 

97



Attachment 2 
 

 
The Chair, in consultation with the other Trustees, is authorized to appoint committee members 
and to designate the chairperson of the committees.   
 
The Chair of the Board of Trustees may serve on each Board committee, and the Chancellor of the 
College will serve as ex-officio of each Board committee.  
 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees on authorization by 
the Board of Trustees. Such committees shall perform specific duties and when the work of the 
committee has been completed, the committee shall be automatically discharged. The function of 
all such special committees shall be fact-finding and advisory, but never legislative or 
administrative.  
 
No committee shall have power to act unless specifically empowered by the Board of Trustees. If 
empowered to act, the committee shall report its action to the Board of Trustees at its next regular 
meeting. 
 
All Trustees are welcome to attend any and all Board committee meetings. A notice of possible 
quorum shall be posted prior to all committee meetings in accordance with the provisions of the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
A standing or special Board committee must have at least three Trustees present in order to make 
recommendations to be forwarded to the full Board of Trustees. If only two Trustees are assigned 
to a special committee, both must be present in order for recommendations to be forwarded to the 
full Board of Trustees.  
  
Up to three Trustees may serve as liaisons to the San Jacinto College Foundation Board of 
Directors. The Chair of the Board is authorized to select the liaison(s) and such determination will 
occur following the appointment of the Officers of the Board of Trustees 
 
MEETINGS  
A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the first Monday of each month, at 
such hour and place as the Chair of the Board of Trustees may designate, provided such regular 
meetings may be recessed or changed from time to time upon proper notice as the Board of 
Trustees may direct. Normally, a workshop of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the same day 
as the regular meeting.  
 
Special or emergency meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called by the Chair of the Board. 
The purpose of such meetings shall be indicated at the time the special or emergency meeting is 
called. Written notice of all special or emergency meetings including dates of such meetings shall 
be given to all members, whenever possible. Emergency meetings may be called without written 

7 
 

98



Attachment 2 
 

notice upon a determination by the Board Chair or a majority of the Board that an emergency or 
urgent public necessity, as defined by law, warrants the meeting. 
 
Strategic planning retreats of the Board of Trustees may be called by the Chair of the Board. The 
purpose of such retreats shall be indicated at the time a retreat is planned.  
 
Items may be placed on the agenda for meetings of the Board of Trustees by the Chair of the Board, 
the Chancellor of the College, or by written request sent to the Board Chair by a member of the 
Board with concurrence provided from a second Board member by telephone, fax, mail, or email. 
The request then shall be sent to the Chancellor of the College. 
 
All official business of the Board of Trustees shall be transacted at regular, special, or emergency 
meetings, or in limited instances at workshops, of the Board of Trustees and will comply with 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code (the Open Meetings Act).  
 
Closed or executive sessions will not be held unless the Board of Trustees has first convened in an 
open meeting for which notice has been given. If, during the open meeting, a closed or executive 
session is necessary, the presiding officer of the Board of Trustees shall announce that a closed or 
executive session will be held in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code (the 
Open Meetings law).  All matters conducted in a closed meeting are confidential, including 
conversations and materials. No person shall reveal these matters unless required by law. 
 
Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the Board with 
regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or session, then such final 
action, final decision or final vote shall be at either: 

A. The open session portion of the meeting upon the reconvening of the public meeting, or 
B. At the subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board shall     

determine. 
 
QUORUM NECESSARY FOR TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS 
A quorum for the transaction of College business shall consist of a majority of the membership of 
the Board of Trustees; if there is a belief by the Board that one or more members may need to 
leave the meeting such that the Board may not be able to maintain a quorum, the Board may 
adjourn the meeting to a specific time. 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 
The order of business for regular meetings of the Board of Trustees will include the following 
items: 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call of Board Members   

8 
 

99



Attachment 2 
 

3. Invocation and Pledges to the Flags  
4. Special Announcements, Recognitions, Introductions, and Accolades  
5. Student Success Presentations and Staff Reports  
6. Communications to the Board of Trustees  
7. Hearing of Such Citizens or Groups of Citizens Desiring to be Heard before the Board  
8. Informative Reports to the Board and Reports from Board Committees (when applicable)  
9. Action Items  
10. Purchasing Requests 
11. Consent Agenda (Any item placed on the Consent Agenda shall be removed and taken up 

as a separate matter, if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will 
be voted on with one (1) motion, including the approval of Minutes from previous Board 
Meetings and the setting of the next meeting).  

12. Items for Discussion/Possible Action (Items removed from the Consent Agenda or Items 
discussed in Closed Session, will be considered at this time) 

13. Adjournment 

RULES OF ORDER  
The latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the Board of Trustees in its deliberations, 
except where it is inconsistent with these Bylaws or any applicable.  All members of the Board 
may vote on matters to be decided by the Board unless excused by law.  
 
MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of the proceedings of the Board of the previous meetings shall be included for approval 
at the next meeting or within a reasonable time frame for approval by the Board of Trustees. The 
minutes shall record the name of the person making a motion, the name of a person seconding it, 
and the vote. Minutes shall be succinct. Their basic function shall be the recording of official 
actions of the Board. Board members may request inclusion of statements or data that they deem 
vital to an adequate understanding of the minutes. 
 
The official minutes shall be maintained in the College Chancellor’s office.  
 
HEARING OF CITIZENS  
The Chair of the Board of Trustees will include in the agenda of that meeting an opportunity for 
members of the public to address the Board of Trustees, provided the citizen files an Application 
for Hearing with the Executive Assistant to the Board or his/her designee, ten minutes prior to the 
start of the posted meeting time. 
 
For items on the agenda, the time allotted each citizen or organization for discussion shall be no 
more than five (5) minutes with an additional five (5) minutes if requested by the Chair or a fellow 
Trustee, for further clarification and better understanding of an issue.  
 
For items not on the agenda, the time allotted each citizen or organization for discussion shall be 
no more than five (5)  minutes.   

9 
 

100



Attachment 2 
 

 
Discussion shall be addressed to the Board Chair and the entire membership of the Board. 
Discussion shall be limited solely to the matter currently under deliberation, and the Board Chair 
shall halt discussion that does not address the matter before the Board. Should the speaker fail to 
restrict his or her comment to the stated subject, he or she shall be given one warning by the Board 
Chair; if a second warning is required, then the speaker shall forfeit the remaining time allotment.  
 
The total time for hearing of citizens shall be no more than 60 minutes at any one meeting.  
Notwithstanding the general rule regarding speaking time, the Chair of the Board in consultation 
with the other Trustees, reserves the right to fix such time limits on discussions as he/she deems 
appropriate to the occasion and may limit the number of citizens who appear before the Board in 
opposition or in support of a given issue.  
 
Because the policy of the College flows from the Board of Trustees acting as a whole and not from 
individual members of the Board of Trustees, remarks from citizens must be confined to activities 
pertaining to the College. Members of the Board of Trustees and/or administration may not 
comment or deliberate during a public comment period at the meeting except to provide (1) a 
statement of specific factual information given in response to an inquiry or (2) a recitation of 
existing policy in response to an inquiry. Any deliberation of or decision regarding a subject 
presented during a public comment period shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on the 
agenda of a subsequent meeting. The Board may, however, request that the appropriate 
administrator contact the speaker regarding the concern expressed, provided the necessary 
evidentiary documentation has been submitted. Should a citizen or representative of a delegation 
or an organization wish to use the time as a forum, documentation and evidence will not be required 
and an official response will not be made. 
 
Should any citizen wish to distribute a handout to the Board of Trustees or audience, this shall be 
submitted at the time that the Application for Hearing is completed.  Such materials will be 
distributed by the Executive Assistant to the Board or his/her designee at a time deemed 
appropriate by the Chair of the Board.  
 
While citizens are urged to bring College matters to the Board of Trustees, no speech shall be 
permitted on behalf of any person running for political office, and no such literature pertaining to 
any form of electioneering will be permitted during the meeting.  
 
A citizen’s right to address the Board may be withdrawn if the citizen uses abusive or indecent 
language, engages in verbal attacks of a Board member or employee of the College, or becomes 
boisterous or makes unreasonable noise. 

 

10 
 

101



Attachment 2 
 

Comments regarding matters concerning a complaint or charge against a College employee or 
Trustee will be heard in closed session unless the individual who is the subject of the charge or 
complaint requests a public hearing. 
 
CHANCELLOR AS THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER   
The Chancellor serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the College. The Chancellor reports to 
and is evaluated by the Board of Trustees and is not a presiding officer or member of the Board. 
The Board of Trustees establishes the College’s vision, mission, core values, and strategic plan. 
The Chancellor is responsible for implementing the College’s strategic direction and ensuring 
operations are consistent with the mission, vision, purpose, and core values and in compliance with 
State and Federal laws and regulations and accreditation guidelines. The Chancellor is also 
responsible for effectively implementing policies and regulations established by the Board of 
Trustees.  
 
REVISIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS   
Revisions and amendments to these Bylaws must be reviewed at a regularly scheduled Board 
meeting or workshop. Such revisions or amendments will require the affirmative vote of four (4) 
Trustees at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees.   
 
(Effective March 2, 1981. Revised February 3, 1992; May 6, 1996; November 3, 1997, March 5, 
2007:  __________, 2017) 

11 
 

102



Action Item “XIV” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Policy III.3000.A, Campus Carry – Second Reading 
  

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the new Policy, Campus 
Carry.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On June 13, 2015, Texas Senate Bill No. 11 (S.B.11) was signed into law, which is generally 
referred to as the “campus carry” law, to allow the concealed carrying of handguns by license 
holders on the campuses of certain institutions.  This law will become effective for San 
Jacinto College on August 1, 2017.  The law requires that the College develop reasonable 
rules, regulations, and other provisions based on the consultation with faculty, staff, students, 
and stakeholders.  The College has conducted surveys which sought input from faculty, staff, 
and students regarding the implementation of the new campus carry law.  In addition, a 
Campus Carry Taskforce was created with 34 members, comprised of faculty, staff, and 
students of the College, who developed policy recommendations. 
 
The original draft of the campus carry policy included recommendations from the campus 
carry committee and the College Strategic Leadership Team (SLT).  The policy draft was 
then reviewed during the Board of Trustee’s Workshop held on March 6, 2017, and was 
adjusted to include the general comments received during that workshop.  The updated draft 
of the policy was circulated to the campus community on March 22, 2017, with a deadline to 
received comments by March 31, 2017.  Eight comments were received from the College 
community. The majority of these comments and suggestions were related to clarifications 
which will greatly assist in the development of clear communications and training regarding 
the implementation of the policy. Some of the other comments and suggestions resulted in 
changes to the Campus Carry Policy. On April 6, 2017, the Campus Carry Taskforce met to 
review comments and made additional changes which included the removal of the sole 
occupant “private” office area as a potential exclusion zone. The updated policy 
recommendation was reviewed at the April 10, 2017, Board of Trustees Workshop.  The 
revised draft policy was sent to the College community a second time for comments which 
were received through April 26, 2017. Ten responses were received from the College 
community. The Campus Carry Taskforce met on April 27, 2017 to review the comments 
and provide recommended changes.  The first reading of the campus carry policy was on 
May 1, 2017.  Since the first reading, the policy was updated to reflect the new policy format 
however, no material changes were made to the policy content. 
 
Although there are differing opinions on guns and the campus carry law, the College must 
comply with the requirements of S.B. 11 and allow for the general permission of concealed 
carry on our public campuses.  Additional information about the campus carry law and the 
related requirements can be found on the College’s campus carry website at 
www.sanjac.edu/campus-carry. 
 
 

103

http://www.sanjac.edu/campus-carry


Action Item “XIV” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Policy III.3000.A, Campus Carry – Second Reading 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The purpose of this policy is to comply with the requirements of S.B. 11, which is generally 
referred to as the “campus carry” law, to allow the concealed carrying of handguns by license 
holders on the campuses of certain institutions.  The policy grants permission for a valid 
Texas License to Carry a Handgun (LTC) license holder to generally carry a handgun on 
campus.  The policy also identifies certain campus locations and activities that a valid LTC 
holder may be excluded from carrying a handgun due to previously existing State of Texas 
Statutes or exclusion zones identified by the College. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The expenses to purchase and install signs to identify exclusion zones will be funded using 
2008 bond contingency funds. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The policy has been circulated to the College community for comments and concerns 
according to the current policy workflow process.  Associated procedures related to the 
policy will be developed over the next couple of months. The prior comments received from 
the College community will be addressed as appropriate in the procedures. These procedures 
will not be formally approved by the Board of Trustees. Because of the sensitivity of this 
topic, the procedures will be reviewed in detail with the Board of Trustees as they are 
developed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Campus Carry Policy III.3000.A 
 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chet Lewis  281-998-6306   chet.lewis@sjcd.edu 
Bruce Caldwell  281-542-2064    bruce.caldwell@sjcd.edu 

104

mailto:chet.lewis@sjcd.edu
mailto:bruce.caldwell@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1 
 

Policy III.3000.A, CAMPUS CARRY 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to comply with the requirements of Texas Senate Bill 11 (S.B. 11), 
which is generally referred to as the “campus carry” law, to allow the concealed carrying of 
handguns by license holders on the campuses of certain institutions.  The policy grants 
permission for a valid Texas License to Carry holder (LTC) to generally carry a concealed 
handgun on campus.  The policy also identifies certain campus locations and activities that a 
valid LTC holder may be excluded from carrying a handgun due to previously existing State of 
Texas Statues or exclusion zones identified by the San Jacinto Community College District 
(College). 

Policy 
The San Jacinto Community College District (College) is committed to providing a safe 
environment for students, employees, contractors, affiliates, and visitors, and to respecting the 
right of individuals licensed to carry a handgun in the state of Texas. Individuals licensed to 
carry may do so on campus except in locations and at activities prohibited by law or by this 
policy. The carrying of any handgun by an unlicensed person or the open carry of a handgun is 
not permitted in any place at the College. 
 
1. Individuals who hold a valid Texas License to Carry a Handgun (LTC), including a valid 

Texas Concealed Handgun License, (“license holders”) may (1) carry a handgun on campus 
so long as the handgun is not in plain view, on or about their person at all times, and under 
their control (e.g., purse, backpack, bag, etc.) or (2) secure their handgun in a locked motor 
vehicle. The carrying of an unconcealed handgun on campus is restricted to authorized law 
enforcement officers and other persons who may be designated by appropriate law 
enforcement agencies.  
 
All other weapons are strictly prohibited for students, faculty, staff, and visitors; their 
possession on campus is grounds for immediate action by law enforcement. See Section 
46.05 of the Texas Penal Code for a list of weapons.  
 
A license holder’s handgun must be concealed at all times. In compliance with Texas Penal 
Code §46.035(a-1), a license holder may not carry a partially or wholly visible handgun on 
campus premises or on any college driveway, street, sidewalk or walkway, parking lot, 
parking garage, or other parking  area. Anyone intentionally or knowingly displaying a 
handgun in plain view for others to see is in violation of Texas law. 
 
A license holder must display his or her License to Carry when directed by a law 
enforcement officer in accordance with section 411.205 of the Texas Government Code. 
Otherwise, an individual is not required to disclose whether he or she is a license holder in 
order to participate in any program or service offered by the College, except as required by 
law.  

1 
 

105



Attachment 1 
 

 
A license holder may not carry a handgun if he/she is intoxicated under Texas Penal Code 
46.035(d). 
 

2. It is the responsibility of license holders to carry their handguns on or about their person at 
all times. “About” the person means that a license holder may carry a holstered handgun in a 
backpack or handbag, but the backpack or handbag must be close enough that the license 
holder can grasp it without materially changing position.  A license holder who carries a 
handgun on campus must carry it in a holster that completely covers the trigger and the entire 
trigger guard area. The holster must have sufficient tension or grip on the handgun to retain it 
in the holster even when subjected to unexpected jostling.   
 
The College does not provide storage for handguns.  
 
The open carry of handguns is not permitted on college premises. 
 

3. The College is often the site of Pre-K-12 (Pre-Kindergarten – Grade 12) school-sponsored 
activities, such as field trips. When a Pre-K-12 school-sponsored activity is conducted at a 
particular location, the carrying of concealed handguns is prohibited. A sign shall be posted 
reading “Pre-K-12 school-sponsored activity in progress” during these activities. “School-
sponsored activities” for purposes of this policy are  defined as: tours, demonstrations, field 
trips, events, clubs, camps, clinics, programs, etc., held on College property that are 
authorized by a Pre-K-12 school district or individual school(s) as a curricular, co-curricular, 
or interscholastic activity and are managed or supervised in part by the district or school, or 
district or school employee.  
 
Upon a survey of the College campuses, areas identified as routinely hosting such school-
sponsored activities shall be posted on the College’s rules and regulations regarding campus 
carry. 
 

4. Texas Penal Code §46.03(a) (2) excludes license holders of handguns from carrying a 
handgun on premises of a polling place on the day of an election or while early voting is in 
progress according to Policy 2-19. A sign shall be posted at any polling place located on 
campus from the commencement of early voting through Election Day that reads either 
“Polling Place” or “Vote Here.” (See Electioneering Procedure 2-19A)   

 
5. Texas Penal Code §46.035(b) (6) excludes license holders of handguns from carrying a 

handgun on the premises of a church, synagogue, or other established place of religious 
worship. A sign shall be posted that conforms to Section 30.06 of the Texas Penal Code.  

 
6. Texas Penal Code §46.035(b)(2) excludes license holders of handguns from carrying a 

handgun where a high school, collegiate, or professional sporting event or interscholastic 
event is taking place, unless the license holder is a participant in the event and a handgun is 
used in the event. Notice shall be given for all collegiate sporting events. If possible, for 
ticketed sporting events this notice should be given by means of a written communication on 

2 
 

106



Attachment 1 
 

the back of, or appended to, the ticket. Vendors and others who are permitted to enter the 
premises without a ticket shall be provided written notice through other means.  A sign shall 
be posted that conforms to Texas Penal Code, Section 30.06. 

 
7. The concealed carry of handguns shall be prohibited in areas for which state or federal law, 

licensing requirements, or contracts require exclusion at the exclusive discretion of the state 
or federal government, or are required by a campus accrediting authority. Where appropriate, 
signage must conform to the overriding federal or state law requirements. Otherwise, notice 
conforming to Texas Penal Code §30.06 must be provided. 

 
8. The concealed carry of handguns shall be prohibited in patient-care areas, including those in 

which professional mental health and counseling services are provided.  A sign shall be 
posted that conforms to Texas Penal Code, Section 30.06. 

 
9. The concealed carry of handguns shall be prohibited in areas in which formal hearings are 

being conducted pursuant to Code of Student Conduct (Student Handbook); Academic 
Hearings; Veterans Appeal Hearings; Financial Aid Appeal Hearings; Employee Hearings; 
and Employee Grievances. A sign shall be posted that conforms to Texas Penal Code, 
Section 30.06. 

 
10. The concealed carry of handguns shall be prohibited in areas where the discharge of a 

firearm might cause great harm, such as laboratories with extremely dangerous chemicals, 
biologic agents, explosive agents, critical infrastructure, and areas with equipment that is 
incompatible with metallic objects, such as magnetic resonance imaging machines. A sign 
shall be posted that conforms to Texas Penal Code, Section 30.06. 

 
11. Counselors, staff, and volunteers who work in a campus program for minors must, as a 

condition of their participation, agree not to carry a concealed handgun on the grounds or in 
buildings where the program is conducted. Parents of attendees must also agree, as a 
condition of their child’s participation, not to carry a concealed handgun on the grounds or in 
buildings where the program is conducted. “Campus program for minors” is defined as to 
provide oversight and training for camps and programs involving minors held on College 
premises or operated by the College which have recreational, athletic, religious, or 
educational activities for the campers. This includes all camps or programs covered by Texas 
Education Code, Chapter 51, Section 51.976, as well as any day camp, activity, or University 
Interscholastic League (“UIL”) event sponsored by the College.  A sign shall be posted that 
conforms to Texas Penal Code, Section 30.06. 
  
This policy does not apply to College course-based academic service learning or research 
approved by the Institutional Review Board ("IRB"). 

 
12. The College shall amend the Code of Student Conduct, Faculty Handbook, and San Jacinto 

Policy and Procedure Manual to provide that causing the accidental or intentional showing of 
a firearm or the accidental discharge of a firearm is conduct subject to disciplinary action. 

 

3 
 

107



Attachment 1 
 

13. Exclusion zones created by Texas Penal Code §§46.03 and 46.035 as well as by the rules and 
regulations enacted under S.B. 11 may sometimes comprise only a portion of a building. In 
some instances it may not be feasible to exclude concealed handguns only from the 
designated exclusion zones. The following factors and principles shall govern the 
implementation of these rules and regulations in those buildings in which some, but not all 
parts are designated as exclusion zones. 

 
Governing factors: 

• The percentage of assignable space or rooms in a building that are designated as       
exclusion zones. 

• The extent to which the area (or areas) designated as exclusion zones are segregated 
from other areas of the building. 

• The extent to which use of the building, and hence its status as an exclusion zone, 
varies from day-to- day or week-to-week. 

 
Governing principles: 

• If a small number of rooms or a small fraction of assignable space in a building is 
subject to exclusion, only the rooms or areas that qualify for exclusion should be 
excluded.  

• If 85% or more of the total building in terms of number of rooms or assignable space 
is subject to exclusion, or if the excludable space is not segregated from other space, 
then as a matter of practicality, the whole building may be excluded. 

• Appropriate signage shall be posted that conforms to Texas Penal Code, Section 
30.06. 

 
14. The College shall develop training materials particular to San Jacinto College on how to 

respond to an active shooter situation. These shall be incorporated in the active shooter 
training, and all faculty and staff shall be required to complete this module. All students are 
encouraged to complete training on how to respond to an active shooter situation. 

 
15. The College shall develop and post in a prominent place a detailed Campus Carry FAQ. 
 
16. The College shall develop materials that educate and inform current and prospective San 

Jacinto College students about campus carry and how it is being implemented. 
 
17. To the extent possible, areas within gun-exclusion zones should be made available on a 

scheduled basis to faculty and staff. These spaces can be used for conferences that faculty or 
staff would prefer to conduct in a gun-exclusion zone. 

 
18. The following factors and principles shall govern the implementation of exclusions or 

allowances for Graduation ceremonies. 
 
 
 

4 
 

108



Attachment 1 
 

Governing factors: 

• Off-campus location shall follow the venue’s rules and regulations in regards to the 
permitted carrying of firearms. 

• On-campus location shall follow the use of the building and/or exclusion zone criteria 
set forth herein. 

 
19. The Campus Safety and Security Council, appointed by the Chancellor, shall be established 

and tasked, at a minimum, with the following responsibilities: 
 

(1) Support the consistent implementation of these policies; 
(2) Provide a review process for recommendations to the Chancellor; and 
(3) Compile, maintain, and provide a periodic review of the premises where license 

holders are prohibited from carrying a handgun. 
 

A student, or a member of the faculty or staff of the College may appeal a decision 
regarding the implementation of a policy or procedure contained herein to the Campus 
Safety and Security Council for consideration. A further appeal of the decision of the 
Campus Safety and Security Council may be submitted to the Vice Chancellor of Fiscal 
Affairs for consideration.  The Vice Chancellor of Fiscal Affairs may choose to make a 
final decision or submit the appeal to the Chancellor for consideration. The Chancellor 
may approve, reject, or modify the decision in question, or may submit the issue to the 
Campus Safety and Security Council for reconsideration. The decision of the Chancellor 
to approve, reject, or modify a decision is final. 
  
Additional policies or exclusion areas not provided for in this policy will not be the 
subject of or considered as a matter of appeal. In accordance with Texas Government 
Code, Section 411.2031, the Chancellor is authorized to enact reasonable rules and 
regulations regarding the concealed carry of handguns on campus. 
 

20. Not later than September 1 of each even-numbered year, the College shall submit a report to 
the Texas Legislature and to the standing committees of the Legislature with jurisdiction over 
the implementation of these policies that: 

 
(1) Describes the rules and regulations adopted by the College regarding the carrying of 

concealed handguns on its campuses; and 
(2) Outlines the reasons the College established the provisions adopted. 

   
Definitions 
Campus: All land and buildings owned or leased by the San Jacinto Community College 
District. 

College: The San Jacinto Community College District and also referenced as San Jacinto 
College. 

5 
 

109

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.411.htm%23411.2031


Attachment 1 
 

Concealed Carry: The Texas Department of Public Safety defines a concealed handgun as a 
handgun not openly discernable to the ordinary observation of a reasonable person. 

Employee: a full-time or part-time employee of the San Jacinto Community College District as 
defined by Human Resources policy and procedure. 

Exclusion Zones: An area of a campus, building, or room where the possession of a handgun is 
prohibited by current Texas statute; or an area of a campus, building, or room designated and 
approved by the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) and Board of Trustees in which the possession 
of a handgun is prohibited.   

Handgun: A handgun is any firearm that is designed, made, or adapted to be fired with one 
hand.  

License to Carry Holder: A person licensed to carry a concealed handgun under Chapter 411 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

"On or about their person": Means a person licensed to carry a handgun must carry a handgun 
in a manner that the handgun is close enough to the license holder that he or she can reach it 
without materially changing position.  

Patient-Care Areas: An area, including research areas, that involves the treatment or evaluation 
of a medical or mental health condition of a patient by a licensed health care provider or under 
the supervision or direction of a licensed health care provider and that results in a formal record 
of treatment. 

Student: a currently enrolled student of the San Jacinto Community College District as defined 
by instruction policy and procedure. 

Authority 
The Board of Trustees is authorized by the State of Texas to govern San Jacinto Community 
College District through the Texas State Constitution and Texas Education Code Chapter 130. 
College policy functions within the context of and is subject to compliance with laws, statutes, 
and regulations executed at federal, state, and local levels. The Board delegates authority to the 
Chancellor to develop policies for the Board’s consideration at its request or on the Chancellor’s 
initiative and delegates to the Chancellor the authority to develop, adopt, and implement 
procedures. To the extent that any policy is inconsistent with state or federal law, the state or 
federal law shall prevail. The Texas Government Code Section 411.2031 authorizes the 
Chancellor to establish reasonable rules, regulations, or other provisions regarding the carrying 
of concealed handguns by license holders on the campus or on premises located on the campus 
of the San Jacinto College.  

Applicability 
Peace Officers employed by the San Jacinto College Police Department or other law 
enforcement agencies are exempt from this policy. This policy applies to all other employees, 
students, contractors, affiliates, and visitors to the College, unless stated otherwise by the policy.  

6 
 

110



Attachment 1 
 

Sanctions 
Sanctions for violating a policy, unless stated otherwise by the policy, will be commensurate 
with the severity and/or frequency of the violation and will be administered according to human 
resources and student disciplinary policy or other applicable policy. Sanctions for violating state 
or federal laws shall be determined by the appropriate state or federal agency having jurisdiction.  

Exclusions 
The Chancellor has the authority to sign into effect, waive, or temporarily alter any policy 
necessary to address an emergency or temporary situation without utilizing the procedures 
outlined in this policy. The Board shall review any temporary exclusions at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Board. To become permanent, any changes made under this exclusion 
shall begin the policy review process defined by procedure at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the Board.  

Interpretation 
The authority to interpret this policy and all policies resides with the Board of Trustees. The 
Board delegates the day-to-day interpretation of policy to the Chancellor or his/her designee. 

Procedures 
Procedures related to this policy are currently under development.  

Date of Board 
Approval 

Anticipated June 5, 2017 

Effective Date August 1, 2017 

Primary 
Owner 

Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs 

Secondary 
Owner 

Chief of Police 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 
 

111



Action Item “XV” 
Regular Board Meeting, June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Galena Park Career and Technical 
 Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding 

 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Galena Park Career 
and Technical Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  This 
MOU is a component of the application for designation as an Early College High School 
from the Texas Education Agency. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Galena Park Independent School District (GPISD) opened a career and technical- focused 
early college high school in partnership with San Jacinto College in the fall semester of 2015.  
The Board of Trustees and administration of GPISD approved this project.  Administrators, 
faculty, and staff of San Jacinto College continue to be involved with the scheduling and 
advising of the students in Galena Park Career and Technical Early College High School 
(GPISD CTE ECHS).  The focus of the high school is on technical certificates and associate 
of applied science (AAS) degrees, specifically in the allied health and health science areas, as 
well as in high-demand construction, technology, and industrial skills areas. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This MOU acknowledges the dual credit tuition and fee waiver (75% on all college 
coursework and 100% on the EDUC/PSYC 1300 courses). GPISD will be responsible for the 
remaining tuition and fee costs, textbooks, expenses, and other materials as needed.  GPISD 
will provide a principal and counselor, as well as other faculty and staff to provide the high 
school instruction.  San Jacinto College North Campus faculty, staff, and administrators will 
support instruction for students in the program.  The GPISD CTE ECHS had an enrollment 
of 214 for academic year 2016-2017 comprised of 9th and 10th graders.  An additional 125 
students will be added each of the next two years.  The MOU also outlines the duties and 
responsibilities of both parties to support student access and success. The MOU outlies the 
occupancy of space on San Jacinto College North Campus in order to provide access for all 
students to the benefits of learning support and the college environment and culture. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
A Dual Credit Coordinator and a Dual Credit Educational Planner were added to the staff at 
North Campus.  These positions provide the appropriate support to advise and schedule the 
1,300+ dual credit, early college, and Modified Early College Academy (MECA) students 
currently enrolled at the San Jacinto College North Campus.  Some renovations are needed 
for the growth of the ECHS over the next two years.  Most of this is occurring under the 
renovations already scheduled with the construction and occupation of the Center for 
Industrial Trades (CIT) and the vacated spaces in buildings 8, 9, and 10. 

112



Action Item “XV” 
Regular Board Meeting, June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Galena Park Career and Technical 
 Early College High School Memorandum of Understanding 

 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Updates on the Collee’s Early College High School partnerships are reported at least 
annually to the Board of Trustees. The first graduates of the program will be reported in June 
2019.  The term of the MOU takes effect upon signatures from the San Jacinto Community 
College District Chancellor and the Chairman of the Board of Trustees and ends on June 30, 
2022.  The MOU calls for an annual review of the document according to Texas Education 
Agency requirements.  The MOU also specifies potential information regarding termination 
of the agreement including termination for convenience with 60 days notice and termination 
for insufficient enrollment.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Galena Park ISD Career and Technical Early College High School 

Memorandum of Understanding 2017-2021 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Laurel V. Williamson  281-998-6184  laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 
Pamela S. Campbell  281-991-2672  pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu 
Anne Dickens   281-998-6150x7443 anne.dickens@sjcd.edu 
 
    
 

113

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu
mailto:anne.dickens@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1

114



Attachment 1

115



Attachment 1

116



Attachment 1

117



Attachment 1

118



Attachment 1

119



Attachment 1

120



Attachment 1

121



Attachment 1

122



Attachment 1

123



Attachment 1

124



Attachment 1

125



Attachment 1

126



Attachment 1

127



Action Item “XVI” 
Regular Board Meeting, June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of College Readiness Mathematics Courses  
Memorandum of Understanding with University of Texas Dana Center 

 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the University of Texas 
Dana Center (UT Dana Center) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  This MOU re-
addresses a component of House Bill 5 (Tex. Leg. 83R).  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In House Bill 5, Section 10, each school district was mandated to partner with at least one 
institution of higher education to develop and provide courses in college preparatory 
mathematics and English language arts.  Students in the 12th grade who are deemed not 
college ready in mathematics may participate in these courses.  Due to changes in the 
mathematics courses required in transfer pathways, the earlier created course (only based on 
preparation for college algebra) will be redesigned to provide college preparatory coursework 
that will prepare students to be successful in college algebra, elementary statistics, and 
quantitative reasoning.  The Texas Success Center (TSC) recommended course framework 
will guide the course content and delivery. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Under the referenced legislation, successful completion of this course under the 
specifications in the MOU will allow students a temporary waiver and allow them to enroll in 
the credit-bearing college-level mathematics course that is a core component of their chosen 
academic pathway.  The specific requirements for claiming that waiver are delineated in the 
MOU.   
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
San Jacinto Community College District (SJCCD) and the UT Dana Center will collaborate 
to develop and maintain a college preparatory mathematics course (CPMC) in partnership 
with the participating school districts. Input and feedback from ISD and College faculty, as 
well as from school district and College administrators, will inform any revisions that need to 
be made in the spirit of continuous improvement.  Professional development opportunities 
will be collaboratively supported by the UT Dana Center and SJCCD. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The UT Dana Center will collect and analyze data related to college readiness for students 
enrolled in the course and share it with SJCCD.  The role of SJCCD in the data-sharing 
process includes providing the UT Dana Center with information on enrollment in entry-level 
college mathematics courses and performance data for participating students. 

128



Action Item “XVI” 
Regular Board Meeting, June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of College Readiness Mathematics Courses  
Memorandum of Understanding with University of Texas Dana Center 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Memorandum of Understanding San Jacinto Community College District and 

University of Texas Dana Center College Readiness Mathematics Courses 
CRMC14-2018 

 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Laurel V. Williamson  281-998-6184  laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 
Pamela S. Campbell  281-991-2672  pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu 
   
    
 

129

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1

130



Attachment 1

131



Attachment 1

132



Attachment 1

133



Attachment 1

134



Action Item “XVII” 
Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of the Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto Community 
College District and Lamar University 

 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the renewal of the 
Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto Community College District (SJCCD) and 
Lamar University (LU). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of this agreement is to formally recognize that both institutions are active 
educational partners, committed to providing greater educational opportunities and services 
for students transferring between institutions. Student benefits include: scholarships, joint 
admissions, and Honors College. This Agreement seeks to establish activities between LU 
and SJCCD which are designed to: 

• Increase awareness of educational opportunities at LU and SJCCD; 
• Ensure a seamless transfer process between the institutions; 
• Encourage students to complete degree programs at both institutions; and 
• Provide for expanded cooperative efforts between the institutions.  

 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This Agreement replaces multiple articulation agreements (i.e., industrial technology, 
reverse MOU, RN-BSN, and a general transfer agreement) with a single umbrella 
agreement and includes the Honors Program. 
 
Both institutions enter into this Agreement in the spirit of cooperation and mutually 
recognize each other as quality institutions of higher education. Each institution is dedicated 
to serving students from diverse populations. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
No budgetary impact.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
This Agreement shall be subject to review annually. Either party may independently 
terminate this Agreement by notifying the other party no less than one academic year before 
the intended date of termination. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1- Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto College District and Lamar 

University 
 

135



Action Item “XVII” 
Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of the Articulation Agreement between San Jacinto Community 
College District and Lamar University 

 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Laurel V. Williamson 281-998-6182 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 
Catherine O’Brien 281-998-6318 catherine.obrien@sjcd.edu  

136

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:catherine.obrien@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1 
 

Articulation Agreement 
 

San Jacinto Community College District & Lamar University 
 

 
This formal Articulation Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by Lamar University (“LU”), 
an institution of higher education, whose main office address is at 4400 MLK Parkway, Beaumont, 
TX 77710, and San Jacinto Community College District (“SJCCD”), a public institution of higher 
education, whose main office address is at 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, TX. 77504.  By this 
agreement, effective as of the 1st day of May, 2017, LU and SJCCD, collectively known as 
“Parties” or “Institutions”, express a shared commitment to increase opportunities for student 
access to, and success in, higher education.  By clarifying transfer policies and procedures that 
assure articulation between programs, the Institutions seek to forge a seamless transfer from the 
associate to the baccalaureate degree.  
 

General Provisions and Terms 
 

1. Purpose. This Agreement formally recognizes that both institutions are active 
educational partners, committed to providing greater educational opportunities and 
services for students transferring between institutions. Student benefits include: 
scholarships, joint admissions, and Honors College. This Agreement seeks to establish 
activities between LU and SJCCD which are designed to: 

 
• Increase awareness of educational opportunities at LU and SJCCD; 
• Ensure a seamless transfer process between the Institutions; 
• Encourage students to complete degree programs at both institutions; and 
• Provide for expanded cooperative efforts between the institutions.  

 
2. Transfer of Credit. The Institutions will jointly develop program agreements by major 

which will clearly identify the following: 
 

• The courses, sequences of courses or programs that are equivalent to specific 
course requirements between the institutions; 

• Required and recommended courses for a degree at LU; 
• Student performance criteria (courses, grades, GPA, etc.);  
• The number of SJCCD credit hours which may be transferred to a LU degree 

program; and  
• The specific residency credit hour requirement by program area to be completed 

at LU in order to complete the requirements for a bachelor’s degree.  
 

These specified, individualized program agreements/degree maps shall be designed to 
establish an efficient degree pathway for students who choose to participate in these plans.  
In order to be effective, all program agreements shall be reduced to writing and executed 
by the authorized representatives of both parties. The written program agreements shall be 
incorporated for all purposes into this Agreement as Addenda. In the event of a conflict 

1 
 

137



Attachment 1 
 

between a program agreement and this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall 
govern.  

 
3. Reverse Transfer.  In order to facilitate the reverse articulation of credit to eligible 

SJCCD students who transfer to LU prior to earning an associate’s degree at SJCCD, the 
parties agree to encourage the reverse transfer of credit from LU to SJCCD in order to allow 
said students to complete requirements for an associate’s degree in accordance with Texas 
Education Code, Section 61.833. This reverse transfer of credit is specifically designed to 
allow students to complete the requirements of an associate’s degree even after transferring 
from SJCCD and prior to completion of the baccalaureate degree. To facilitate the reverse 
transfer of credit, the parties agree that: 
a. At an interval agreed upon by both parties, LU will review its student records and 

determine which students are eligible for the reverse articulation of credit. SJCCD and 
LU will work together to establish a timeline for record exchange, including original 
submission and the schedule of repeated academic record submissions;  

b. In accordance with the requirements of Section 61.833 of the Texas Education Code, 
LU shall notify its matriculated students of the reverse transfer opportunity at SJCCD 
and request authorization from the student for LU to release the student’s academic 
course information to SJCCD for the purpose of determining whether the student has 
earned the required credits for an associate’s degree offered by SJCCD; 

c. Upon its receipt of a student’s signed consent, LU will provide SJCCD with 
information on transfer students to help SJCCD officials determine students who could 
benefit from reverse transfer of courses and SJCCD will provide LU with information 
about degrees awarded as a result of reverse transfer, subject to applicable state and 
federal laws.  

d. Upon its receipt of LU transcript information, SJCCD will conduct a degree audit of 
each eligible student and evaluate all coursework that may apply to the completion of 
the student’s associate degree at SJCCD.  SJCCD will notify each student that he or 
she is eligible to receive an associate’s degree and eligible to participate in SJCCD’s 
graduation ceremony.   

e.  SJCCD will collaborate with LU on the services listed above, provide the necessary 
contact information for students, and report any problems or challenges to the 
designated LU representative in a timely manner. 

f. Separate academic records for students will be maintained at each institution. 
 

4. Data Sharing.  SJCCD  and LU agree: (1) to exchange data that will contribute to 
the maintenance and improvement of this Agreement, as well as any program agreements 
developed hereunder, and promote effective cooperation between the two institutions; (2) 
to protect students’ privacy and guard against the unauthorized release of identifying 
student information and records in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and 
Privacy Act (FERPA); and (3) to comply with all applicable requirements regarding data 
sharing and storage of student records.   
 
SJCCD will provide the following data elements to LU on an annual basis:  
 

2 
 

138



Attachment 1 
 

a. Directory information, as designated by SJCCD, for students who have expressed a 
stated interest in transferring to LU; 

b. Major area of interest for students who have expressed a stated interest in transferring 
to LU; and 

c.  Student information within legal guidelines about specific students with the goal of 
making students aware of scholarship, financial aid, and the potential to satisfy degree 
requirements by transferring coursework between both Parties. 

 
LU will provide the following data elements to SJCCD on an annual basis: 
 
a. Directory information for students living in the SJCCD  service area;  
b. Degree name and completion status of SJCCD  transfer students; 
c. Semesters attended by SJCCD  transfer students; 
d. Hours completed by SJCCD  transfer students; 
e. Grade Point Average of SJCCD  transfer students, and 
f. Student information within legal guidelines about specific students with the goal of 

making students aware of scholarship, financial aid, and the potential to satisfy degree 
requirements by transferring coursework between both institutions. 

 
SJCCD agrees that data transferred from LU to SJCCD is and shall remain the sole and 
exclusive property of LU. LU agrees that the data transferred from SJCCD to LU is and 
shall remain the sole and exclusive property of SJCCD.  LU and SJCCD acknowledge that 
educational records maintained by each institution are subject to the Family Educational 
Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. §1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) and the 
regulations promulgated under its authority. Both institutions agree to comply with FERPA 
regulations, and implement appropriate procedures to ensure that confidential information 
is not disclosed or distributed. 
 

5. Cooperative Advising. Cooperative Advising allows students to access academic 
advisors at both institutions for the purpose of planning and selecting courses applicable to 
the anticipated degree program at both institutions. This opportunity applies to all students 
with an expressed interest in transferring to LU for advising on degree programs subject to 
this Agreement. LU agrees to provide reasonable access to academic advisors from LU to 
students attending SJCCD prior to their actual transfer and in accordance with this 
Agreement.  
 

6. Program Changes. SJCCD and LU agree to review annually and promptly communicate 
with each other any future curriculum changes, policy changes, or resident credit 
requirements that will affect this agreement or any program agreement developed 
hereunder. 
 

7. Promotion. SJCCD and LU agree to cooperate in communicating with each other 
concerning the relationship between the two institutions. SJCCD and LU agree to 
acknowledge and recognize the information in this agreement on each institution's website 
and via other marketing and publicity methods; any such website/marketing materials must 
be approved in writing in advance by both parties. 

3 
 

139



Attachment 1 
 

 
8. Term and Termination. Upon execution of this agreement, the arrangement shall continue 

for two years with automatic renewals for up to five years total until terminated by either 
party. Either party may terminate this Agreement after thirty (30) calendar days’ written 
notice is given to the other Party. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 
either Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days’ prior 
written notice if the Party to whom such notice is given has breached any provision of this 
Agreement, and such breach shall not have been cured within twenty (20) days following 
the receipt of such notice.  Immediate termination will occur if either party loses their 
current accreditation status. If termination due to a loss of accreditation occurs, the 
Agreement will end retroactive to the date the accreditation status changed.  
 
In the event of termination of this Agreement, LU agrees to ensure students currently 
enrolled in or newly accepted into a Program under this Agreement, prior to the effective 
termination date, will be given the opportunity to complete their Degree Program with LU. 

 
9. Non-Exclusivity. This Agreement does not preclude SJCCD or LU from entering into 

similar agreements with other institutions of higher education. 
 

10. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement and all of the rights and obligations of the parties 
hereto and all of the terms and conditions hereof will be construed, interpreted and applied 
in accordance with and governed by and enforced under the laws of the State of Texas. 
Harris County, Texas, will be the proper place of venue for suit on or in respect of this 
Agreement.   

 
11. No Waiver of Immunity. Nothing contained in this Agreement nor the execution of this 

Agreement, or the performance of any obligation hereunder shall operate to or be deemed 
to waive any immunity or defense that either party may be entitled under law. 

 
12. Indemnification.  To the extent authorized by the constitution and laws of the State of 

Texas, SJCCD AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, RELEASE, AND HOLD LU AND LU'S 
TRUSTEES, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, HARMLESS FROM ANY 
CLAIMS, DEMANDS, CAUSES OF ACTION, AND LIABILITIES (each as used herein 
shall be referred to as "Claim") ARISING FROM SJCCD’S ACTS OROMISSIONS 
WITHIN THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, SJCCD 
SHALL NOT HOLD LU HARMLESS FROM ANY CLAIMS, DEMANDS OR CUASES 
OF ACTION ARISING IN FAVOR OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY  RESULTING 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM THE NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT, 
CONCURRING, OR THERWISE) OF LU, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, 
REPRESENTATIVES OR EMPLOYEES, OR ANY PERSON OR ENTITY NOT 
SUBJECT TO SJCCD’S SUPERVISION OR CONTROL. BY ENTERING INTO THIS 
AGREEMENT, AND COMPLYING WITH THE TERMS AND REQUIREMENTS 
HEREOF, IT IS RECOGNIZED THAT SJCCD IS NOT WAIVING THE 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY THAT SJCCD, ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES 
HAVE UNDER LAW OR ANY OTHER RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES 

4 
 

140



Attachment 1 
 

BELONGING TO OR ASCERTAINABLE BY AFFILIATE UNDER EITHER STATE 
OR FEDERAL LAW. 

 
TO THE EXTENT AUTHORIZED BY THE CONSTITUTION AND THE LAWS OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS, LU AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, RELEASE, AND    HOLD    
SJCCD AND SJCCD'S TRUSTEES, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES,  
HARMLESS   FROM   ANY   AND   ALL   CLAIMS, DEMANDS, CAUSES OF 
ACTION, AND LIABILITIES (each as used herein shall be referred to as "Claim") OF 
ANY TYPE OR ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER  FOR DAMAGE TO, LOSS OF, OR 
DESTRUCTION  OF  ANY  TANGIBLE PROPERTY  OR  BODILY INJURY OR 
DEATH  TO  ANY  PERSON,  ARISING  FROM,  IN CONNECTION  WITH, OR ANY 
WAY INCIDENT  TO THIS AGREEMENT, TO THE EXTENT FINALLY 
DETERMINED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF LU 
AND ITS PERSONNEL IN PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES. 

 
13. Compliance with Laws and Regulations.  Each party will each comply with all state and 

federal laws applicable to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Title 
VII of the Civil Rights Act; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended; and 
all applicable provisions of the Texas Education Code and Texas Government Code.  

 
14. Dispute Resolution.  The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 of the 

Texas Government Code shall be used to resolve a dispute arising under the Agreement. 
 

15. Nondiscrimination.  The parties agree that in their execution of this agreement, all 
contractors, subcontractors, their respective employees, and others acting by or through 
them shall comply with all federal and state policies and laws prohibiting discrimination, 
harassment, and sexual misconduct. Any breach of this covenant may result in termination 
of this agreement. 

 
16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire Agreement and understanding 

between the parties and supersedes all prior Agreements, whether oral or written between 
the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. 
 

17. Severability. If any of the provisions or portions of this Agreement are invalid under any 
applicable statute or rule of law, they are to that extent to be deemed omitted. 
 

18. No Financial Implication - No financial implications concerning the transfer or exchange 
of cash, equipment, or real estate is intended or implied by this Agreement. LU and SJCCD 
are separate and independent institutions of higher education and intend to remain so. The 
administrators of LU and SJCCD are authorized to prepare and implement plans of action 
and procedures necessary to effect this Agreement 

 
 

5 
 

141



Attachment 1 
 

19. Notice.  Amendment, renewal or extension of this Agreement will require the written 
agreement of both institutions. Notice of termination by either party to the other shall be in 
writing and addressed to the party identified below with return receipt requested, or by 
personal delivery: 

 
Lamar University: 
Dr. James Marquart 
Provost and Vice President, Academic Affairs 
985 East Florida Drive 
Beaumont, TX 77710 
 
San Jacinto Community College District: 
Dr. Catherine O’Brien 
Associate Vice Chancellor for Learning 
4624 Fairmont Parkway 
Pasadena, Texas  

 
 
In witness whereof, the authorized representatives of the parties have executed this agreement in 
duplicate originals on the ___ day of _________________, 201__. An original, signed copy of this 
agreement will be maintained by each of the signatories. The effective date of this agreement will 
be the date listed herein. 
 
Lamar University San Jacinto Community College District 
Authorized Representative Authorized Representative 
 
 
_________________________ _________________________ 
Dr. James Marquart Dr. Brenda Hellyer 
Provost and Vice President, Chancellor 
Academic Affairs 

6 
 

142



I.

CSP 17-19
    North Campus Library Demolition (pgs. 2-3) 69,975$              

IFB 17-15
    Advanced Manufacturing Equipment (pgs. 4-5) 424,120              

RFP 17-12
    NCLEX Review Course Services (pgs. 6-8) 50,000                

TOTAL OF ALL BIDS 544,095

II.

Purchase Request #1 
    Method of Procurement and Design Services for Central Campus 
    Welcome Center Extended Site Development (pgs. 9-10) 1,750,000$         

Purchase Request #2 
    Engineering Services for North Campus Utility Tunnel Upgrades (pgs. 11-12) 384,700              

Purchase Request #3 
    Direct Digital Controls Network Upgrades, Package I (pgs. 13-14) 478,887              

Purchase Request #4
    Architectural Services for South Campus Center for
    Engineering and Technology (pgs. 15-16) 990,000              

Purchase Request #5
    Additional Funds for Repair of HVAC Chiller at
    South Campus (pgs. 17-18) 80,760                

Purchase Request #6
    Extend the Contract for Bookstore Operations (pgs. 19-20) 4,000,000           

Purchase Request #7
    Phone System Maintenance and Support (pgs. 21-22) 155,466              

TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS 7,839,813

GRAND TOTAL: $8,383,908

SOLE SOURCE VENDORS, 
COOPERATIVES, AND CONTRACT RENEWALS

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
PURCHASE RECAP

JUNE 5, 2017

PURCHASE REQUESTS,  

EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES BIDS

1 143



CSP 17-19 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to Contract for North Campus Library Demolition 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract with JTB Services 
Inc. for demolition of the North Campus former Lehr Library. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In April 2016, a new library was placed in service at the North Campus.  The previous library 
was deemed not suitable for continued service due to severe foundation issues and the need for 
interior renovation.  The combined cost to address these two items made the project not viable. 
 
A request for competitive sealed proposals, Project Number 17-19, was issued to procure 
demolition services for this project. Two responses were received and evaluated by a team 
comprised of representatives from Facility Services, a campus representative, and AECOM 
personnel. The evaluation team determined the proposal submitted by JTB Services would 
provide the best value to the College and could complete the project within the desired schedule 
completion date.   
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The existing building has no further use to the College and will be removed.  The building site 
will be cleared and made available for future use. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated demolition expenditure will not exceed $69,975. This expenditure will be 
funded from the 2015 Bond Program. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
All work is scheduled to be completed in seventy (70) calendar days from issuance of Notice 
to Proceed. Facilities Services personnel will oversee the project. Program management will 
be provided by AECOM. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Tabulation 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Mike Harris   281-998-6134   mike.harris@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet  281-998-6103   ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu  
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327   angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 

2 144



Project Name North Campus Former Lehr Library Demolition 
Project Number CSP 17-19
Number of Evaluators 3

Stated Criteria Criteria Explanation
Total 
Points 

Available
AAR Inc. JTB Services

Proposed amount of the 
base proposal

Proposed Construction Contract Amount (Base 
Proposal).  Lower amount equates to higher score. 20 17.52 20.00

Proposed Construction 
Schedule

Proposed Construction Schedule including Critical-Path 
Method (CPM) and milestones, with commitment of 
completion by August 18, 2017.

20 16.33 18.00

Project References References from project Owners and 
Architect/Engineers.  Evaluations will be based on 
responses received from references. Positive comments 
equate to a higher score.

10 9.00 8.33

Contractor’s history, 
experience, and quality of 
performance on current and 
previous projects

Contractor’s relevant and recent successful experience as 
a Prime Contractor with projects of similar size, scope, 
complexity and value. Document the ability to manage 
and sequence work. Positive experiences equate to a 
higher score.

10 9.67 10.00

Prime-Contractor/Sub-
Contractor Relationships

Subcontractors’ relevant and recent successful experience 
with the Primary Contractor on projects of similar size, 
scope, complexity and value. Include a written narrative 
of the Primary Contractor’s ability to provide Quality 
Assurance.

5 4.33 4.00

Safety Record and Program Quality of Contractor’s written Safety and Drug/Alcohol 
Policy.  Contractor’s current workmen’s Compensation 
Modifier.  Number of Lost Time Incidents during the 
past five years and the associated total number of lost 
days.  Number of Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration citations received during the past five 
years.  Positive policies, lower modifier, lower numbers 
of incidents and lost days, and lower number of citations 
equate to higher score.

10 6.33 9.33

Work Plan Quality of the written narrative and clarity of the 
Contractors Work Plan showing organization and 
coordination of staff, sequencing of activities, and 
management of the Work. Include office, staging, and lay-
down areas and provide a demonstration of Contractors 
sensitivity to ongoing college operations and ability to 
accommodate the Campus schedules.  Demonstrated 
quality, clarity, and sensitivity to equate to a higher 
score.

10 8.00 8.67

Staffing Approach Qualifications of the proposed project personnel to be 
assigned to the project.  Greater qualifications and level 
of commitment equate to a higher score.

10 9.33 6.33

Financial Stability Firm’s audited financial statements for the past two (2) 
years and firm’s ability to provide payment and 
performance bonds for this project.  More favorable 
financial records equate to a higher score.

5 1.00 2.83

100 81.52 87.50

Final Ranking
Total Score

JTB Services 87.50
AAR Inc. 81.52

Total Points Received

Vendor Name

3 145



IFB #17-15 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase for Advanced Manufacturing Equipment 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract to purchase 
advanced manufacturing equipment from Champion Machine Tool Sales, Inc. and Advanced 
Technologies Consultants for the Continuing and Professional Development (CPD) 
department. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The CPD Computer/IT department was expanded last year to include Advanced 
Manufacturing. Courses in this program include Computer Numeric Control (CNC), 
Programmable Logic Controller (PLC), Robotics, 3-D Printing, Sheet Metal, among many 
other additions. Space for the program was included in the new CIT building on North 
campus, and new equipment is needed to deliver these courses. The four machines to be 
purchased include a Haas Dual-Spindle CNC Lathe, Haas 5-Axis VMC, Siemens Simatic 
Trainer and a 3-D Printer.  
 
An invitation for bids, Project Number 17-15, was issued to procure equipment for these 
programs.  Three (3) bid responses were received and the bids submitted by Champion 
Machine Tool Sales, Inc. and Advanced Technologies Consultants were determined to be 
both compliant with all solicitation requirements, and provides the best value to the College. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
With this purchase, students will be able to take advantage of training in a high growth, high 
demand area and gain the necessary skills to become employable upon graduation. Several 
employers are currently sending students to the program’s introductory classes, and the 
department has had inquiries into classes that have not yet started.   
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The expenditure is $424,120 and will be funded from H1B DOL/Ready to Work grant funds.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
This is a one-time purchase and will be delivered and operational by September 1, 2017. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Tabulation 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Jerelyn Glenn   281-542-2066   jerelyn.glenn@sjcd.edu 
Gwen Henderson       281-998-6326   gwen.henderson@sjcd.edu 
 

4 146



Project Name
Project Number IFB 17-15

Final Ranking

Vendor Name
Total Bid 

Price Notes

Champion Machine Tool $290,925 Amount includes the Haas Dual-
Spindle CNC Lathe machine, the Haas 
5-Axis VMC 30" machine, training, 
shipping, installation and a two-year 
extended warranty for each piece of 
equipment at no additional cost. 

Advanced Technologies 
Consultants

$133,195 Amount includes ten (10) Siemens 
Simatic PLC S7-1500 Trainers, F270 
3-D printer, shipping and installation. 

Impac Systems Engineering $60,500 Amount includes only the F270 3-D 
printer, training, maintenance, 
shipping and installation. 

Advanced Manufacturing Equipment

5 147



RFP #17-12 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to NCLEX Review Course Services 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract for National 
Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) review course services with Assessment 
Technologies Institute, LLC, Elsevier, Inc., and Kaplan, Inc. for the Nursing departments at 
South and North campuses. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The North and South campus Nursing departments offer NCLEX-RN® (Registered Nurses) 
and NCLEX-PN/VN® (Practical Nurses/Vocational Nurse) reviews to Level III students 
who are in their last semester of the nursing programs.  The comprehensive review is to 
further prepare students for the licensure exam they will take after graduation with a goal of 
passing on the first attempt.  First attempt passing is important as the Texas Board of Nursing 
has set a standard of 80% as the minimum acceptable pass rate for first time testers.   
 
A request for proposal, Project Number 17-12, was issued to procure NCLEX review course 
services.  Seven (7) responses were received and evaluated by a team consisting of nursing 
department chairs from each campus who determined the proposals submitted by Assessment 
Technologies Institute, LLC, Elsevier, Inc., and Kaplan, Inc. would provide the best value to 
the College.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The solicitation was issued to remain compliant with spending thresholds, as well as to allow 
the Nursing departments on each campus the flexibility to meet their different styles of 
teaching within their respective programs.  Awarding to multiple firms provide options for 
flexible clinical hours, diagnostic assessment, evaluation of students’ weaknesses, and 
engagement in learning environment, therefore, promoting the resources for student success.    
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated annual expenditure is $50,000 and will be funded with both grant funds and 
departmental operating budgets.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The initial award term will be one (1) year, ending June 30, 2018, with renewal options of 
four (4) one-year terms. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Tabulation 
 

6 148



RFP #17-12 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to NCLEX Review Course Services 
 

RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Alexander Okwonna  281-922-3466  alexander.okwonna@sjcd.edu 
Rhonda Bell   281-459-7618  rhonda.bell@sjcd.edu 
Genevieve Scholes       281-998-6349  genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 

7 149



Project Name:   NCLEX Review Course
Project Number:   RFP 17-12

Number of Evaluators:   3

Total 
Points 

Available

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
ie

s 
In

st
itu

te
, L

L
C

E
ls

ev
ie

r 
In

c.

K
ap

la
n,

 In
c.

H
ur

st
 R

ev
ie

w
 

Se
rv

ic
es

, I
nc

.

N
ur

si
ng

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.

I C
A

N
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

E
df

ie
ld

 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l

Include project-staffing plan with resumes for all proposed “key” 
staff members/instructor(s) assigned to this project. Include the 
quality and depth of experience and education of individual 
personnel on similar projects. Similar projects must convey 
similarity in topic, dollar value, workload duration, and 
complexity.  

90 82 74 68 47 42 49 19

Pr
ic

e 
Pr

op
os

al Submit price proposals for the term and renewal periods in 
accordance with contract term.  Include in the price proposal cost 
of all required materials including books, online resources, and 
access codes as part of total review cost. State all anticipated, 
reimbursable travel-related expenses.  Pricing is to be provided on 
a per student basis. 

75 55 53 62 43 37 31 26

Pr
oj

ec
t U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 M
an

ag
em

en
t Vendor’s management and technical approach shall be evaluated 

on its feasibility, practicability, appropriateness, and timeliness.  
Include an analysis of vendor’s relevant approach and 
methodology as well as analyzing the likelihood of project 
success as it relates to the requirements of this RFP. Provide: (1) 
written summary of company’s proposed plan in assuming the 
service, (2) information on the process for individualized and 
group tracking of all testing psychometrics, (3) contact number 
for 24/7 problem support for both students and faculty, (4) 
samples of online question bank and practice test with NCLEX-
RN®/NCLEX-PN® style questions, and (5) evidence of at least 
one summary of student evaluations of courses the propose trainer 
has taught.

75 65 65 64 48 41 33 10

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 F
irm

Include a description of firm, with firm’s history, size, 
professional staff composition, description of firm’s past and 
current contracts/ assignments which are related to the type of 
services required by this solicitation and information regarding 
how long the proposer has provided the service requested in this 
RFP.  State of any lawsuits.  Proposer must provide reference, 
preferably other colleges or public sector of similar size.

45 38 43 33 16 25 26 26

B
us

in
es

s 
Q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re Proposer must have provided and addressed all concerns 

mentioned in Attributes Tab - Business Questionnaire such as 
performance reputation, delivery, value added services, and 
personnel.

15 13 9 13 3 8 9 7

300 253 244 240 157 153 148 88

Stated Criteria

Total Pointe Received 

Final Ranking  
ScoreVendor Name

253
244
240
157
153
148

88
I CAN Publishing
Edfield Corporation

Kaplan, Inc.
Hurst Review Services, Inc.
Nursing Education Consultants, Inc.

Elsevier Inc.
Assessment Technologies Institute, LLC

8 150



Purchase Request #1 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement and Design Services for  
Central Campus Welcome Center Extended Site Development 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPOR 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve the method of procurement 
and engineering design services for the Central Campus Welcome Center Extended Site 
Development project (utilities extension phase) and the Central Plant Upgrades.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Central Campus Welcome Center site has changed from that identified in the original 2015 
Bond Program.  This changed siting has brought about the need for more extensive site and 
utilities development.   
 
Two projects have currently been identified as part of the proposed Welcome Center Extended 
Site Development.  These projects are the Central Plant Upgrades and extension of utilities to 
the Welcome Center building location. 
 
Package 1 of the Extended Site Development includes extension of site utilities for the 
Welcome Center project and includes extending services for chilled water, domestic water, 
sanitary sewer, electrical power, natural gas, and telecommunications to the proposed 
Welcome Center site. These services will be extended from the nearest existing utility location 
capable of providing sufficient services. ACR Engineering, Inc. is the recommended 
engineering firm to provide mechanical, electrical, and plumbing (MEP) engineering design 
services for the site utilities extension for the Welcome Center.  The work proposed will be 
completed by an independent contractor solicited through the Competitive Sealed Proposal 
(CSP) delivery method.  CSP is recommended for this project because it allows for the 
selection of a contractor based on both price and qualifications, and has proven to be an 
effective procurement methodology for projects of this size and complexity. 
 
The Central Campus Central Plant Upgrade project includes upgrading the plant’s electrical 
capacity for all chillers, reconfiguring chilled water piping in order to allow for removal of the 
storage tank from the system, and alteration/upgrade of the system controls as related to the 
configuration changes.  ACR Engineering, Inc. is the recommended engineering firm to 
provide MEP engineering design services for the Central Campus Central Plant Upgrades. The 
work proposed will be completed by an independent contractor solicited though the CSP 
process.  
 
In November 2016 ACR Engineering was one of the five MEP engineering firms who were 
approved for use in the 2015 Bond Program as a result of RFQ 16-10.  
 
The CSP method includes detailed specifications and project plans developed by a qualified 
architect or engineer. The package of specifications and plans will be used as the 
documentation required for public solicitation of construction proposals in accordance with the 
Texas Government Code, Section 2269.151. 
 

9 151



Purchase Request #1 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement and Design Services for  
Central Campus Welcome Center Extended Site Development 

 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The Welcome Center Extended Site Development – Package 1, Site Utilities Extension project 
provides for the engineering design for extending the chilled water piping, domestic water, 
sanitary sewer, electrical power, natural gas, and telecommunications utilities from the current 
existing utility locations to the proposed Welcome Center building site.  This will allow the 
utilities to be in place for the start of construction of the Welcome Center. 
 
Central Plant Upgrades project provides for upgrading the electrical switchgear at the central 
plant to assure that there is sufficient power to operate all four chillers simultaneously.  With 
the decision not to construct a new chilled water storage tank adjacent to the central plant, 
related piping within the central plant needs to be reconfigured for proper operation.  The 
control systems operating the equipment will also be upgraded and altered to provide reliable 
and efficient control of the chilled water distribution system. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
These projects will be funded from 2015 Bond Program funds. The total project budgets, 
estimated construction expenditure, and design fees for these projects are as follows: 
 
Expanded Welcome Center Site Development – Package 1, Site Utilities Extension: 

Total Project Budget: $3,000,000 
Estimated Construction Expenditure: $900,000 
ACR Design Fees: $70,780 

 
Central Plant Upgrades:  

Total Project Budget: $1,160,000 
Estimated Construction Expenditure: $850,000 
ACR Design Fees: $63,460 

 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Both projects are expected to be completed within fifteen (15) months following Notice to 
Proceed. Work will be managed by the College Facilities Services personnel. Program 
management will be conducted by AECOM. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343  bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet  281-998-6103  ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu  
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327  angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 
 

10 152



Purchase Request #2 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Engineering Services 
for North Campus Utility Tunnel Upgrades 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract with ACR 
Engineering, Inc. to provide mechanical, electrical, and plumbing (MEP) engineering design 
services for the North Campus Utility Tunnel Upgrades project.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In April 2017, the Board approved the Competitive Sealed Proposal delivery method for North 
Campus Utility Tunnel Upgrades. ACR Engineering is recommended to provide MEP 
engineering design services for this project. Their prior surveys of the tunnel and detailed 
knowledge of the systems and infrastructure within the tunnel makes them the most qualified 
and best overall value to the College.  
 
Engineering services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the 
Texas Government Code. In November 2016, ACR Engineering was one of the five MEP 
engineering firms who were approved for use in the 2015 Bond Program as a result of requests 
for qualifications, Project Number 16-10.   
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This project includes refurbishment and repair of piping and related equipment installed in 
subsurface tunnels located in central portions of the North Campus.  This work will consist of 
repairing piping supports, cleaning and painting corroded piping, reinsulating piping, repairing 
damaged and leaking sections of the tunnel structure, installing ventilation and gas monitors, 
and installing sump pumps with backup generators.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The expenditure for this request is $384,700.  This expenditure will be funded from the 2015 
Bond Program. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The engineering design phase services are estimated to be completed twenty-six (26) weeks 
from release to project completion. This project will be monitored by San Jacinto College 
Facilities Services personnel. Program management will be provided by AECOM. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 

11 153



Purchase Request #2 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Engineering Services 
for North Campus Utility Tunnel Upgrades 

 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343  bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet  281-998-6103  ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu  
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327  angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 
 

12 154



Purchase Request #3 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for 
Direct Digital Controls Network Upgrades, Package I 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve Siemens Industry, Inc. 
(Siemens) to perform Package I of a building automation/energy management system 
upgrade project.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The College's Direct Digital Control (DDC) system provides two primary benefits.  The first 
is to allow remote electronic control of air conditioning and other critical utility systems 
across all campuses from any location with an internet connection.  This saves labor by 
preventing the need for Facilities Plant Operations and Maintenance personnel to travel to 
each building or plant location to make operational corrections. The second benefit is the 
ability to balance building comfort with minimal energy usage.  This would be essentially 
impossible without a central DDC system.   
 
In November 2016, ACR Engineering was one of the five MEP engineering firms who were 
approved for use in the 2015 Bond Program as a result of RFQ 16-10. ACR Engineering was 
selected to provide MEP engineering services, and they will provide contract administration 
services as required for the implementation of the Package I work.  
 
The installation and upgrades will be completed by Siemens, as they are the sole supplier for 
the building automation system currently installed in the campus buildings and is the only 
authorized provider of upgrade services to the system. Sole source number 1484 has been 
assigned. Siemens has a contract through the General Services Administration cooperative 
contracts program to provide facilities control and automation materials, installation and 
related services, Contract Number GS-07F-217CA, and complies with the competitive 
procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of the Texas Education Code and permitted 
through Section 791.001(g) of the Texas Government Code. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The scope of this project includes necessary physical components and upgrades to the DDC 
systems at targeted locations across each of the three campuses.  The targeted locations are in 
greatest need of improvement as they are either outdated or working at restricted capacity. 
The proposed upgrades will provide the necessary control capacity required to allow the 
system to operate at its optimum performance. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The expenditure for the Package I request is $478,887.  The entire DDC upgrade project 
budget is $2,320,000.  This expenditure will be funded from the 2015 Bond Program. 
 

13 155



Purchase Request #3 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for 
Direct Digital Controls Network Upgrades, Package I 

 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
These services are estimated to be completed within two-hundred seventy (270) calendar 
days from issuance of contract. This project will be monitored by San Jacinto College 
Facilities Services personnel. Program management will be provided by AECOM.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet      281-998-6103            ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu 
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327   angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 

14 156



Purchase Request #4 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for 
South Campus Center for Engineering and Technology 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Kirksey 
Architects. Inc. (Kirksey) to provide architectural services for design of the new South Campus 
Center for Engineering and Technology. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In June 2016, the Board approved a pool of architects for 2015 Bond projects. A review process 
was conducted to assess which firm would best suit the respective projects. It was determined 
that Kirksey is the firm best suited to design the South Campus Center for Engineering and 
Technology. This project is included in the 2015 Bond Program. 
 
Architectural services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the 
Texas Government Code and are awarded based on the firm’s qualifications relative to each 
project.  Kirksey is one of the seven architectural firms approved for the pool of architects to 
be utilized for the 2015 Bond Program as a result of RFQ 16-15. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This request action will authorize the contract for architectural design services of the South 
Campus Center for Engineering and Technology.  This new facility will consolidate 
Engineering Design Graphics, Computer Information Technology/Computer Security, and 
Engineering/Engineering Technology into one Center of Excellence.  In addition to these 
programs, it will include a series of labs to support the College’s Biomedical Equipment Repair 
program. 
 
BUDGET INFORMAITON (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The architect’s proposed fee basis for the South Campus Center for Engineering and 
Technology is 6.0% of $16,500,000, the estimated cost of work for the project. 
 
These expenditures will be funded by the 2015 Bond Program. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
Architectural design of this project will require approximately nine (9) months following 
notice to proceed. Design will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel.  
Program management will be provided by AECOM. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 

15 157



Purchase Request #4 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for 
South Campus Center for Engineering and Technology 

 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343  bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Ann Kokx-Templet  281-998-6103  ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu  
Angela Klaus   281-998-6327  angela.klaus@sjcd.edu 

 

16 158



Purchase Request #5 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Repair of HVAC Chiller at South Campus 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve the expenditure of additional 
funds for the repair of the HVAC Chiller Number 4 at South Campus from Hunton Services.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
South Campus Chiller Number 4 is a 16-year old package unit consisting of a centrifugal 
compressor, motor, water circulating pumps, piping, heat exchangers and control devices.  Its 
purpose is to cool circulated water needed to provide air conditioning service to campus 
buildings.  Chiller Number 4 provides 400-tons of cooling capacity to the campus, which has 
a 3,000-ton total capacity. Chiller Number 4 began experiencing problems after Spring Break 
2017, when symptoms of an imminent failure were noticed.  After investigation, it has been 
determined that the compressor, and likely the motor, have suffered catastrophic internal 
damage. Rotating turbo machinery of this type is susceptible to internal component failure 
causing cascading and extensive internal damage, which is believed to be what has occurred.  
 
Hunton Services is currently under contract with the College to provide HVAC system 
services.  They were consulted to perform troubleshooting and diagnostics on this system. 
Hunton Services has a contract through the Choice Partners cooperative contracts program to 
provide HVAC equipment and service, Contract Number 14/021JN-05, and complies with the 
competitive procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of the Texas Education Code and is 
permitted through Section 791.001(g) of the Texas Government Code. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
The scope of this project includes disassembly, inspection, and repair of all internal chiller 
compressor and motor components.  The exact nature of damage and repairs are not exactly 
known at this time, but generally involve damaged rotating element, bearings, seals, internal 
guide vanes, and possibly motor windings. At this time, the installed redundant HVAC chilling 
capacity at South Campus is sufficient to maintain environmental conditions across the 
campus.  However, if another chiller fails, there would likely be a negative impact to the 
campus cooling capacity. The only alternative to repairing the chiller would be use of rental 
chillers. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
In August 2016, the Board approved the expenditure of $150,000 for HVAC maintenance 
services from Hunton Services.  This request would increase the total amount approved by 
$80,760 for a total of $230,760. This additional funding will allow for complete chiller 
overhaul and motor exchange of Chiller Number 4.  Additionally, the purchase provides for a 
five year warranty on the chiller.  This expenditure will be funded from the Facilities Services 
department’s 2016-2017 operating budget. 
 

17 159



Purchase Request #5 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Additional Funds for Repair of HVAC Chiller at South Campus 
 

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
These services are estimated to be completed within forty-five (45) calendar days from 
issuance of contract. This project will be monitored by Facilities Services personnel.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Bryan Jones   281-998-6343   bryan.jones@sjcd.edu 
Genie Freeman-Scholes      281-998-6349            genevieve.scholes@sjcd.edu 

18 160



Purchase Request #6 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to Extend the Contract for Bookstore Operations 
  

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve a contract extension for 
bookstore operations with Barnes & Noble (B&N) for the College.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A request for proposals, Project Number 7-21, was issued in March 2007 to procure 
bookstore operations for the College. The Board approved the original contract with B&N in 
May 2007. 
 
The College and B&N entered into a five-year agreement, June 15, 2007, which provided a 
$1.5 million investment for campus bookstore renovations including:  updating storefronts, 
equipment enhancements and new Starbucks cafes.  In May 2012, the College exercised a 
five-year renewal option which incorporated additional income streams for the College, 
increased the guaranteed minimum return, increased commission rate, and added two 
$10,000 student scholarships. B&N has worked with the College to meet the needs of the 
faculty and students.  In an effort to decrease course material costs, making them more 
affordable, B&N decreased their profit margin by 1% and continues to offer students a price 
matching program.  
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
This contract extension will ensure B&N commission revenue and student scholarship 
proceeds continue to be income sources for the College. Furthermore, the extension will also 
allow for a thorough analysis identifying the financial impact of the Open Educational 
Resources (OER) program’s on future bookstore sales. This information will provide 
pertinent data necessary for the solicitation process of a bookstore vendor. B&N will 
continue to submit their commission payments on a monthly basis along with sales reports 
and commission calculations of auxiliary revenues as backup for audit purposes of the 
bookstore operations. 

 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated annual expenditure for this request is $4,000,000. This expenditure is 
primarily funded by student financial aid. The College has received more than $1,000,000 
annually in bookstore commissions which is an integral component of the College’s budget.  
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
The one-year contract extension term will be June 15, 2017 through June 14, 2018.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 

19 161



Purchase Request #6 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to Extend the Contract for Bookstore Operations 
  

 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Hilda Boyce    281-991-2627   hilda.boyce@sjcd.edu 
Gwen Henderson   281-998-6326  gwen.henderson@sjcd.edu 

20 162



Purchase Request #7 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Phone System Maintenance and Support 
 

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of phone system 
maintenance and support with Avaya, Inc. for the Information Technology Services (ITS) 
department. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2010, the College installed a new phone system and has contracted for a comprehensive 
maintenance and support agreement each year thereafter. That agreement provides for 
hardware repair, along with software support, patching, and upgrades. In August 2016, the 
Board approved funds to renew our phone system maintenance through an authorized Avaya 
reseller, Windstream Communications. However, Avaya now requires customers to purchase 
the renewal directly from Avaya.  
 
Avaya has a contract through the Department of Information Resources cooperative contracts 
program to provide network and telecommunications services, Contract Number DIR-TSO-
2654, and complies with the competitive procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of the 
Texas Education Code and is permitted through Section 791.011(g) of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of this request will allow ITS to continue providing necessary phone maintenance 
and support. The College’s phone system is a vital tool for business operations, adequate 
maintenance and support is necessary to minimize disruptions in College services should an 
outage occur. In addition, the patches and upgrades that are offered through the maintenance 
agreement will proactively ensure the system is secure and is up to manufacturer 
specifications.  
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
The estimated annual expenditure for this request is $155,466.  This expenditure is funded by 
the ITS department’s 2016-2017 operating budget and subsequent year budgets. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
 

21 163



Purchase Request #7 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval to Purchase Phone System Maintenance and Support 
 

RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Allen Bourque   281-922-3494   allen.bourque@sjcd.edu 
Charity Simpson      281-998-6328   charity.simpson@sjcd.edu 
 

22 164



Item “A” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Approval of the Minutes for the May 1, 2017 
Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
May 1, 2017, Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting. 
 
 

165



San Jacinto College District Board Workshop 
May 1, 2017 

District Administration Building, Suite 201 
 

MINUTES 
 

 Board Workshop 
Attendees: 

Board Members: Marie Flickinger, Brad Hance, Dan 
Mims, John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, 
Larry Wilson 
Chancellor: Brenda Hellyer  
Others: Amy Austin, Cristina Cárdenas, David LeMaster, 
Chet Lewis, Mandi Reiland, Steve Trncak, Laurel 
Williamson  

 
Agenda Item: Discussion/Information 

I.  Call the Meeting to 
Order 

Workshop began at 5:32 p.m. 

II.  Roll Call of Board 
Members 
 

Board Members: Dan Mims, Marie Flickinger, Brad 
Hance, John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, 
Larry Wilson  

III.  Adjournment to 
closed or executive 
session pursuant to 
Texas Government 
Code Section 
551.074 of the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, 
for the following 
purposes: Personnel 
 

Adjourned to closed session at 5:33 p.m. 
 
Chet Lewis, Mandi Reiland, and Steve Trncak were present 
for the executive session.  
 

a. Personnel - For the purpose of considering the 
appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, 
duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a 
public officer or employee. 

 
IV.  Reconvene in Open 

Meeting 
Reconvened in open meeting at 5:56 p.m.  
 

V.  Update on Faculty 
Organization/Senate 

Brenda Hellyer provided an introduction.  
Amy Austin explained the process of transitioning from 
Faculty Organization to Faculty Senate. She explained the 
major changes including the name change, number of 
senators at 18 total, and the added officer position of 
historian/treasurer.  
David LeMaster reviewed the minor changes which 
includes the new order of progression. He also explained 
language was updated throughout the constitution and 
bylaws to reflect wording changes and consistency.    

1 
 166



Cristina Cárdenas explained the executive teams and the 
campus leadership.  
Laurel Williamson asked if the vice president is also a 
senator. Amy answered yes. The Parliamentarian is the only 
non-elected position because it is past president.   
Cristina went into detail on the process of electing the 
senators.  
Brenda referenced the constitution purpose which is as 
follows:  

1. To promote excellence in education, and thus 
resulting in student success. 

2. To represent the professional interests of the 
collective faculty throughout the district. 

3. To promote communication. 

Brenda emphasized the importance of promoting 
communication. She explained that currently, the Faculty 
Organization is contacted for volunteers to serve on College 
working groups and those faculty representatives are 
expected to collect input from other faculty members. This 
process will continue with the Faculty Senate.   
Brenda thanked Amy, Cristina, and David for their 
leadership.   
Dr. Wheeler asked the officers to explain how they 
communicate.  
Amy explained there are campus meetings, monthly full 
faculty organization meetings, and college community week 
which includes a face to face meeting.  
Cristina explained committee structures and surveys they 
utilize. They also heavily use the blackboard site that goes 
to all faculty.   
Marie asked why they decided to change to a senate.  
Amy explained that it gives more representation.   
 
Laurel Williamson, Amy Austin, David LeMaster, and 
Cristina Cárdenas left after this item.  
 

VI.  Update on Campus 
Carry Task Force 
Progress & 
Policy/Procedure 
Review  
  
 

Brenda explained that the revised draft policy was sent to 
the College community a second time for comments which 
were received through April 26, 2017. Ten responses were 
received from the College community. The Campus Carry 
Taskforce met on April 27, 2017 (which is subsequent to 
the compilation of the Board items included in this 
document) to review the comments and provide 

2 
 167



recommended changes, if necessary.  Any changes will be 
incorporated in the second reading of the policy. 

Chet showed an example of the size of the 30.06 sign. The 
College will be using the standard signage rather than 
personalizing it for San Jacinto College.   
Marie asked how many of these will be around the 
campuses.   
Chet explained the goal is to put as few signs up as possible.   
Dan wants to make sure the sign is prominent where 
everyone can see it. Chet explained that they will be.   
The estimate cost of the signage is between $30,000 – 
40,000.   
Brenda explained that Chet and Chief Caldwell are working 
on training. Training will begin this summer and faculty 
will complete training when they return in August.   
Dan asked how we will educate students.   
Chet stated that adjustments will be made to the student 
handbook, and the plan is to utilize any other opportunity to 
present and educate.   
Brenda said we will add it to student orientation for new 
students.   
Chet explained that they are still working through this 
information and education process.  
Keith asked the estimate total cost of this endeavor.  
Chet estimated, including labor, the total cost would be 
$100,000 – 200,000 range.  
 

VII.  Update on 85th 
Legislative Session  

Brenda explained that at a recent legislative meeting 
Senator Garcia honored San Jacinto College with a 
proclamation for being an Aspen Rising Star. Senator 
Bettencourt and the Lt. Governor also recognized San 
Jacinto College.  
She explained that is was a very humbling experience. 
Three students were also in attendance with Dan and 
Brenda.   
Additionally, Dan, Brenda, and Teri Crawford met with 
several legislators while they were in Austin.   
 
Brenda gave an overview of the bills that are currently 
moving forward that could impact community colleges:  

• HB 2975 - Relating to requiring public junior 
colleges to report certain financial and instructional 
information for certain instructional locations. 

• SB 2118 - Authorize public junior colleges to offer 
baccalaureate degree programs in the fields of 
applied science, applied technology, and nursing 

3 
 168



 
Additionally, we are monitoring the budget process.  
 

VIII.  Review Of Board of 
Trustees Bylaws  

Brenda gave an overview of the handouts that were 
distributed to the Board members.  She thanked Keith Sinor 
and Dan Mims for their help with this draft.  
She explained that they changed the order significantly.   
Marie suggested adding a note about State law determining 
the election dates which could limit future changes. .  
Brenda explained each paragraph in the document.  
The Board members discussed including over 50% as the 
definition of majority.  
Marie asked if we can change to plurality because it would 
prevent run-off election.  
Dr. Wheeler does not agree with that. He agrees that run 
offs are expensive, but the College must ensure that a 
majority or over 50% is achieved by the candidate.  
Several members expressed concern over going to plurality.   
 
The Board members discussed the process of filling a 
position of a Board member resigns.  
Dr. Wheeler explained that he thinks the Board cannot wait 
until the next term.  Brenda said we will check with legal 
and reference the code.   
Brenda asked the members to review the section on 
appointing Board members. Keith and Dan thought a 
process was needed.  
The members discussed appointments.   
Keith stated he does not want to appear like a “good ol boy” 
Board. Dan agreed with him.   
Keith said we should check with legal for recommendations 
on the appointment process.  
Brenda asked if the members are comfortable adding the 
section on for censure of a Board member. Members were 
supportive of the changes.  
Marie suggested having five minutes each for citizens 
wishing to speak whether or not the item is on the agenda  
 
Brenda explained that the next step will be to have legal 
review the bylaws and then the anticipated approval will be 
at the Board meeting on June 5, 2017.  
 

IX.  Review of Calendar  Brenda Hellyer reviewed the calendar with the Board.  

4 
 169



X.  General Discussion 
of Meeting Items 

There were no additional items discussed.  

XI.  Adjournment Workshop adjourned at 7:00 p.m.  

 

5 
 170



San Jacinto College District 
Board Meeting Minutes 

 
May 1, 2017 

 
The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 7:00 p.m., 
Monday, May 1, 2017, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for the Regular Board Meeting. 

 
Board of 
Trustees: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   Marie Flickinger 
   Brad Hance  
   Dan Mims, Chair 
   John Moon, Jr., Secretary  
   Keith Sinor, Assistant Secretary  
   Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
   Larry Wilson, Vice Chair 
    

Chancellor:    Brenda Hellyer 
 

Others Present: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kevin Adams Hunter Hollis Bill Raffetto 
Amy Austin Clare Iannelli Nikolas Reuter 
Joshua Banks Sallie Kay Janes Nikole Reuter 
Katelynn Barlow Mark Johnson Shelley Rinehart 
Dean Barnes Alena Johnston Sarah Smith 
Rhonda Bell Brenda Jones Danny Snooks 
Pam Campbell Bryan Jones Rob Stanicic 
Cristina Cárdenas Smita Karihaloo John Stauffer 
Teri Crawford Tami Kelly Chris Talley  
Suzanne DeBlanc Ann Kokx-Templet Steve Trncak 
Jacob Dodfelter David LeMaster Elizabeth Valasquez 
Landon Duncan Chet Lewis Van Wigginton 
Chris Duke Chris Lopez Laurel Williamson 
Dawn Eaton Tanya Madrigal Craig Zimmerman 
Kenneth English Elizabeth McKinley Joanna Zimmermann 
Amanda Fenwick Kevin McKisson Joseph Zwiercan 
Jay Gish Stephanie McSheehy  
George González Kevin Morris  
Rebecca Goosen Lambrini Nicopoulos  
Abbie Grubb Catherine O'Brien  
Allatia Harris Alexander Okwonna  
Joseph Hebert Jeff Parks  
Zariah Hedge John Patterson  
   
   

  

1 
 

171



Call the Meeting 
to order: 
 

Chair Dan Mims called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees to 
order at 7:06 p.m.   

Roll Call of Board 
Members:  
 
 
 
 

Marie Flickinger 
Brad Hance 
John Moon, Jr.  
Keith Sinor 
Dr. Ruede Wheeler 
Larry Wilson  
 

Invocation and 
Pledges to the 
Flags: 

The invocation was given by Allatia Harris. The pledges to the American 
flag and the Texas flag were led by Marie Flickinger.     
 

Special 
Announcements, 
Recognitions, and 
Presentations: 
 

1. Dr. Brenda Jones recognized the South Campus Web Society Chapter. 
Dr. Abbie Grubb, Dr. Eddie Weller (not present), Alena Johnston, and 
Jay Gish were recognized.  

2. The Provosts, Dr. Brenda Jones, Dr. Bill Raffetto, and Van Wigginton, 
recognized the 2017 Phi Theta Kappa Distinguished Honors students. 
Dr. Jones recognized Stephanie McSheehy, Elizabeth Valasquez, Smita 
Karihaloo, and Katelynn Barlow, as well as the sponsors Elizabeth 
McKinley and Lambrini Nicopoulos. Dr. Raffetto recognized Zariah 
Hedge, Nikolas Reuter, Nikole Reuter, and their sponsor, John Michael 
Patterson. Van Wigginton recognized Sarah Smith and her sponsor 
Tanya Madrigal.  

3. Jeff Parks recognized the Process Technology Team for Winning the 
North American Process Technology Alliance Troubleshooting 
Competition.  Present for the recognition were Kenneth Jackson, 
Joseph Zwiercan, and Kevin Adams.   
   

Student Success 
Presentations: 
 

1. George González presented a report on spring certified headcount and 
FTIC Fall-to-Spring persistence rates.  
  

Communications 
to the Board: 

There were no communications to the Board.  

Hearing of Such 
Citizens or 
Groups of 
Citizens Desiring 
to be Heard 
Before the Board: 
 

There were no citizens desiring to be heard before the Board.  

Informative 
Reports: 

Dan Mims indicated such reports were in the Board documents. 
 

2 
 

172



Motion 9777 
Consideration of 
Approval of 
Amendment to 
the 2016-2017 
Budget for 
Restricted 
Revenue and 
Expenses Relating 
to Federal and 
State Grants 
 

Motion was made by Keith Sinor, seconded by Larry Wilson, for Approval 
of Amendment to the 2016-2017 Budget for Restricted Revenue and 
Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None 
 

Consideration of 
Policy, Campus 
Carry – First 
Reading 
(Information 
Only)  
 

Informational item on Policy, Campus Carry – First Reading.  
 
No vote needed.   
 
 

Motion 9778 
Consideration of 
Purchasing 
Requests 

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by Brad Hance, for 
approval of the purchasing requests. Dan Mims stated Item CSP #17-16 
was reviewed in the Board workshop with an updated amount of $772,287.  
 
CSP 17-16   
Renovation of the South Campus Bruce                                         $772,287 
Student Center - Phase 1 
 
Purchase Request #1    
Renew Contract for Electrical Maintenance Services             200,000  
   
Purchase Request #2    
Graduation Event License                                                  100,000  
   
Purchase Request #3    
Renew Contract for Consumable Welding Products     55,000  
   
Purchase Request #4   
Ratification of North Campus Center for Industrial Technology   
Substantial Completion                                                        -  
   
Purchase Request #5   
Audio Visual, Security and Cabling Supplies and Service               140,000 
  
TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS                                       $1,267,287 
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None 

3 
 

173



 
Motion 9779 
Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Larry Wilson, to 
approve the consent agenda.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Yeas: Flickinger, Hance, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson  
Nays: None 
 

Adjournment: Meeting Adjourned at 7:30 p.m.  

 

4 
 

174



Item “B” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Approval of the Minutes for the April 10, 2017 
Board Strategic Planning Retreat  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
April 10, 2017, Board Strategic Planning Retreat.  
 
 

175



SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT 
Board of Trustees Strategic Planning Retreat Minutes 

April 10, 2017 
 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 3:00 p.m., Monday, 
April 10, 2017, in Room A2.203 of the San Jacinto College Administration Building West, 4620 
Fairmont Pkwy., Pasadena, Texas, for a Board Strategic Planning Retreat. 

 
 

Members Present:   Marie Flickinger, Dan Mims, John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. 
Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson 

 
Members Absent:  Brad Hance  
 
Others Present:   Brenda Hellyer, Chet Lewis, and Mandi Reiland 
 

  
I. The meeting was called to order at 3:12 p.m. by Dan Mims. 

 
II. Discuss Site Planning of North and South Campuses 

Brenda Hellyer reviewed the master site planning for the North and South 
campuses. She also highlighted the Central Campus master site planning which 
was previously reviewed with the Board. The members agreed with the plans 
understanding that the plans will guide future decisions but are not final.  

 
III. Review 2008 Bond Program  

• Brenda gave an overview of the status of the $295 million Bond Program 
from 2008. She explained that Chet Lewis will begin having conversations 
with Rizzo and Associates regarding the building lease on Fairmont.  

• Contingency  
o The plan is to return all outstanding dollars on the gym line items to 

the contingency.  
o All open balances on projects need to be closed out to contingency. It 

is estimated the contingency balance is approximately $8 million. 
Plans will be developed based on needs and allocate these resources 
based on discussion with the Board.  

o Marie asked how many physical education classes are at Central. 
Brenda will get the numbers and provide an update to the Board. She 
explained that she does not have the numbers in front of her, but the 
enrollment is down in physical education classes college-wide.  

o Dr. Wheeler asked where colleges will be with athletics in ten years. 
Brenda said it is split. Some are reducing programs and some are 
adding new ones.  

o As previously discussed with the Board, some enhancements are 
needed for the softball field. Brenda reviewed the plans pricing and 
needs for softball and she recommends moving forward now with the 

1 
 

176



entire project which is estimated at $850,000. The project should be 
planned as to not interfere with the team’s play. The members 
recommended completing this summer.  

o Brenda explained that the three campuses are still working on the 
development of the science parks. She will bring back a plan and 
timeline to the Board for review.  

o Brenda explained that campus carry signage is needed as well as 
updates to campus signage. She will get a list of all of the signage 
needed. The cost estimate has been reduced to $400,000.  

o Brenda explained that the monument signs at each campus need 
updated. The plan is not to go back to digital/electronics, but we are 
still working through details. The cost estimate is $500,000, and 
Brenda will bring this back to the Board for review.  

o Brenda explained that she will provide a proposal for the next phase of 
renovation at the district administration building. The restrooms are 
not ADA compliant after the recent inspection from the City of 
Pasadena. While renovating the restrooms, the lobby could be 
renovated and updated at the same time. The canopy at the main 
entrance also needs replaced. The members were comfortable with 
Brenda bringing forward a proposal.  

 
IV. Review 2015 Revenue Bond 

The Board reviewed the spreadsheet with details on the 2015 Revenue Bond.  
The Center for Industrial Technology is complete with a few issues that need 
addressed. It is estimated that $1 million will be transferred back to contingency.   
 

V. Review 2015 Bond Program  
• Brenda provided an overview of the two spreadsheets with details on the 

status of the 2015 Bond Program.  
• Brenda reviewed the petrochemical center design with the Board. This facility 

is in the final design phases. Additional dollars will need to be transferred to 
this project. Approximately $7.9 million is needed for site development due to 
the new facility location. Additionally, the building and process plant will 
require approximately $8.2 million. The industry leaders have been 
instrumental in confirming the requirements of the facility. Several Board 
members discussed the significance of this facility on meeting the workforce 
needs of the region. She mentioned that a consultant, Bethany Reid, is 
working on a proposal and guidelines for naming opportunities. She should 
have her plans ready within the next few weeks. Additionally, Brenda and 
Randy Boeding have had conversations with industry partners on support. 
Dan Mims recommends a wall of recognition with company logos with 
varying sizes for donation amounts.   

• Brenda reviewed the budget and status for the following projects:  
a. Welcome Center and Site – Because of the Central site planning and 

the new proposed location, $3 million will be allocated for the site 
development budget and an additional $2.8 million is recommended 

2 
 

177



based on the programming phase of the building.  
b. North Tunnel – This budget will be reduced by $6.1 million due to 

scope revisions.  
c. Fire House – This budget will be reduced by $5.6 million due to scope 

revisions.  
d. Autobody/HVAC – This project will be increased by $2 million due to 

scope revisions.  
e. Maritime Expansion – It is recommended that this budget be reduced 

by $13 million. Brenda does not anticipate that the original budget will 
be required due to the timing of future expansions of the site and 
wetlands support provided by LBC.  

f. Cosmetology and Cosmetology/Culinary Centers – We are still 
working on programming and may be slightly over budget. But we are 
working to manage scope and requirements.  

g. North Wetlands Mitigation – This budget was reduced by $2 million 
because expansion will not be required for at least the next five years.  

h. Early College High School (ECHS) Plans at South and Central – 
Originally, the new ECHSs were going to be accommodated with a 
new classroom building at Central and the Jones renovation at South. 
Based on a review of needs and the required timeline, the 
recommendation is to accommodate in current facilities with limited 
renovations. Pasadena and Clear Creek Independent School District’s 
support the plans which will be more cost effective for the College. 
Additional updates will be provided as the scope is completed.  

  
VI. Wrap-up with Summary for Follow-up  

Brenda asked if there are any other items the Board would like an update on. The 
Board did not ask for an update on any other items.  

 
VII. Adjournment   

Dan Mims adjourned the meeting at 5:04 p.m.  
 

3 
 

178



Item “C” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Approval of the Minutes for the May 17, 2017 
Special Board Meeting  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the  
May 17, 2017, Special Board meeting.  
 
 

179



San Jacinto College District  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

May 17, 2017 

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 5:15 p.m., 
Wednesday, May 17, 2017, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration 
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for a Special Board Meeting. 

Chancellor:  Brenda Hellyer – via conference call 

Others Present: Kacie Allen  
Bo Hopper 
Ginger Lambert 
Chet Lewis 
Lorenzo Najera  
Mandi Reiland 
Erica Davis Rouse 
Tony Sirvello 
Danny Snooks 
Jaclyn Stafford 

 

Call the Meeting 
to order: 

Chair Dan Mims called the special meeting of the Board of Trustees to 
order at 5:16 p.m.   

Roll Call of 
Board Members: 

Marie Flickinger  
Brad Hance  - absent 
John Moon, Jr. - via conference call 
Keith Sinor  
Dr. Ruede Wheeler  
Larry Wilson - absent 

Motion 9780 
Consideration of 
Approval to 
Adopt Order 
Canvassing 
Returns and 
Declaring Results 
of Election  

Motion was made by Keith Sinor, seconded by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, to 
approve to adopt the order canvassing returns and declaring results of 
election.  

Motion Carried. 

Yeas: Flickinger, Mims, Moon, Jr. (via conference call), Sinor, Wheeler 
Nays: None 

Adjournment: Meeting Adjourned at 5:19 p.m. 

1 

180



Item “D” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Consideration of Approval of Budget Transfers 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT 
 
The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve budget transfers for 
2016-2017 which have been made in accordance with State accounting procedures. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Adoption of the budget by the Board of Trustees in August of each year serves as the 
authorization to expend funds for the next fiscal year. The budget is adopted by functional 
classification (or cost elements: Instruction, Academic Support, Student Services, 
Institutional Support, and Operation and Maintenance of Plant) as defined by the National 
Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). Realizing that the 
budget is a viable document that reflects the evolving needs of the College in terms of 
meeting goals and objectives, occasional movement of budgeted funds between cost elements 
is desirable and warranted. The budget transfers under consideration represent previously 
authorized expenditures that are requested to be reclassified from one cost element to another 
cost element. 
 
IMPACT OF THIS ACTION 
 
Approval of the budget transfers will allow the College to more effectively utilize existing 
resources in fulfilling its instructional objectives. 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS) 
 
This request is a reclassification of existing authorizations. 
 
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Budget Transfers 
 
RESOURCE PERSONNEL 
 
Chet Lewis   281-998-6306   chet.lewis@sjcd.edu 
Mini Izaguirre   281-998-6347   mini.izaguirre@sjcd.edu  

181

mailto:mini.izaguirre@sjcd.edu


Attachment 1 – Budget Transfers

ELEMENT OF COST DEBIT CREDIT
DISTRICT

INSTRUCTION -                  -                  
PUBLIC SERVICE -                  -                  
ACADEMIC SUPPORT -                  2,812               
STUDENT SERVICES 675                  3,276               
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT 9,418               45,037             
PHYSICAL PLANT -                  -                  
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                  -                  

CENTRAL
INSTRUCTION 16,095             9,466               
PUBLIC SERVICE -                  -                  
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 10,081             2,995               
STUDENT SERVICES -                  -                  
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT -                  850                  
PHYSICAL PLANT -                  -                  
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                  -                  

NORTH
INSTRUCTION 17,875             -                  
PUBLIC SERVICE -                  -                  
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 2,850               8,000               
STUDENT SERVICES 50                    -                  
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT -                  -                  
PHYSICAL PLANT -                  -                  
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                  -                  

SOUTH
INSTRUCTION 22,487             9,523               
PUBLIC SERVICE -                  
ACADEMIC SUPPORT 3,700               1,855               
STUDENT SERVICES -                  -                  
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT 583                  -                  
PHYSICAL PLANT -                  -                  
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES -                  -                  

83,814             83,814             

These transfers reflect adjustments of budgetary allocations between
campuses and departments. 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Budget Transfers For The June 5, 2017 Board Meeting
Budget Transfers Related to Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017 

182



Item “F” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Approval of the Affiliation Agreements 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve the following Affiliation Agreements: 
 
Central Campus  
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Respiratory Therapy Program    University of Texas Medical Branch of 

Galveston 
  
Medical Imaging Program    University of Texas Medical Branch of 

Galveston 
 
Eye Care Technology Program   Mann Eye Institute  
 
Associate Degree Nursing Program   Deer Park Independent School District 
 
South Campus 
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Occupational Therapy Assistant Program  Bay Area Rehabilitation Center 

 
   

Occupational Therapy Assistant Program Memorial Hermann-Texas Medical Center 
and Children’s Memorial Hermann Hospital  

 
Physical Therapist Assistant Program  Memorial Hermann Sports Medicine and 
And Occupational Therapy Assistant Program  Rehabilitation  
 
North Campus 
Department      Affiliation Entity 
Health Information Management   MD Anderson Tumor Registry 
 
Child Development/Early Childhood Education University of Houston-Clear Lake 
 
RATIONALE 
 
The Affiliation Agreements were reviewed by the College’s external legal counsel. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE 
 
N/A 
 
CONTACT PERSONNEL 
 
Daniel J. Snooks, Attorney  
Laurel Williamson  281-998-6184   laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu 

183

mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu


Item “G” 
Regular Board Meeting June 5, 2017 

Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be Monday,  
July 10, 2017. 
 
 

184


	01 Cover Sheet 6-5-17
	02 Board Workshop Agenda 6-5-17
	03 Board Meeting Agenda 6-5-17
	04 Financials April 2017
	05 Foundation Financials March 2017
	05.1 Foundation Financials March 2017
	Statement of Financial Position - March 2017
	Statement of Activities - March 2017
	Contributions Report - March 2017

	05.2 Foundation Financials April 2017
	05.3 Foundation Financials April 2017
	Statement of Financial Position - April 2017
	Statement of Activities - April 2017
	Contributions Report - April 2017

	05.4 Foundation Audit
	05.5 San Jac Foundation audit16 FINAL
	06 April CIP Report
	(3)  08 Bond 04.30.17.pdf
	Bond Report

	(8) Revenue Bond  04.30.17.pdf
	NCIT

	2015 San Jac Tomorrow 04.30.17 Final.pdf
	2015 Bond Report

	2015Bond-AECOMProgramSchedule050917 (2).pdf
	Master Schedule 102016.pdf
	(8)  Repair and Renovation Report 4.30.17.pdf
	Summary

	R&R Project Schedule 05-17-2017

	07 Building Committee minutes 2017-05-23 Rev BJ
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
	Building Committee Meeting
	May 23, 2017

	08 Finance Committee MINUTES 052317
	10 Oath of Office
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	10.1 Statement Form Davis
	10.2 Statement Form Wheeler
	10.3 Oath Form Erica
	10.4 Oath Form Wheeler
	11 Election of officers June
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FISCAL AFFAIRS JUN 05
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12.1 Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-06-05-17
	Sheet1

	12.2 Attachment 2-Grant Detail-06-05-17
	13 BOARD AGENDA ITEM - Board bylaws June 5 2017
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	13.1 Board by laws from website as of 3-3-17
	13.2 Board Bylaws 2017 05 23 final
	UREVISIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS U

	14 Agenda Item for Policy on Campus Carry June 5 2017
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	14.1 Campus Carry Policy final
	Policy III.3000.A, CAMPUS CARRY
	Purpose
	Policy
	Definitions
	Authority
	Applicability
	Sanctions
	Exclusions
	Interpretation
	Procedures


	15 GPISD CT ECHS MOU Board Agenda Item June 2017(R)
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINe
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	15.1 GPISD MOU ECHS 2017-2022_
	16 MOU with Dana Center for CPMC Board Agenda Item June 2017(R)
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	16.1 CPMC data sharing 2017.2018_
	17 Agenda Action Item.Lamar University.04 27 17
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	17.1 SJCCD-LU Umbrella Articulation Agreement 2017.Final.04 27 17
	18 Purchasing Package May 2017
	00 Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	01 CSP 17-19 NC Library Demo BJ 2017-05-15
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	02 CSP 17-19 Attachment No. 1  AKT 5.13.17
	Board Book

	03 IFB 17-15 Adv Mfg Equip - AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	04 IFB 17-15 Adv Mfg Equip Attach No. 1 AKT
	Board Book

	05 RFP 17-12 NCLEX Review AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	06 RFP 17-12 NCLEX Attachment No. 1 AKT
	Board Attachment

	07 PR 1 - Method of Procurement and Design for CC Welcome Center Extended Site BJ 2017-05-15
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	08 PR 2 - MEP Engineering Services for NC Utility Tunnel BJ 2017-05-15
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	09 PR 3 - DDC Package 1 Siemens BJ 2017-05-15
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	10 PR 4 - Architectural Services for SC Engineering and Technology BJ 2017-05-23
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	11 PR 5 - Additional Funds for S. Campus Chiller Number 4 Repair - AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12 PR 6 - B&N renewal AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	13 PR 7 - Avaya Phone System Maintenance - AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	21 Item A
	21.1 Board Workshop minutes 5-1-17
	21.2 Board Meeting Minutes 5-1-17
	22 Item B
	22.1 April Board Retreat minutes
	23 Item C
	23.1 Special Board Meeting Minutes 5-17-17
	24 20170605 Board Meeting
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	24.1 Element of Cost June 2017
	Elements of Cost

	26 Item F
	RECOMMENDATION
	FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE
	CONTACT PERSONNEL

	27 Item G
	RECOMMENDATION




